






















































and 

IMPAC SECURED ASSETS CMN TRUST 
SERIES 1998-1 
[CURRENT DEFENDANT; DO NOT 
SERVE] 

and 

PREFERRED MORTGAGE TRUST 1996-2 
[CURRENT DEFENDANT; DO NOT 
SERVE] 

and 

PREFERRED CREDIT TRUST 1997-1, 
[CURRENT DEFENDANT; DO NOT 
SERVE] 

and 

DEUTSCHE BANK TRUST COMPANY 
AMERICAS (f/k/a BANKERS TRUST 
COMPANY) 
[CURRENT DEFENDANT; DO NOT 
SERVEI 

and 

DEUTSCHE BANK NATIONAL TRUST 
COMPANY (f/k/a BANKERS TRUST 
COMPANY OF CALIFORNIA, NA) 
[CURRENT DEFENDANT; DO NOT 
SERVE] 

and 

U.S. BANK NATIONAL ASSOCIATION 
[CURRENT DEFENDANT; DO NOT 
SERVE] 

and 

IMPERIAL CREDIT INDUSTRIES INC., 
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ICIFC SEC. ASSETS CORP. MORTGAGE 
1997-1 
[CURRENT DEFENDANT; DO NOT 
SERVE] 

and 

IMPERIAL CREDIT INDUSTRIES INC., 
ICiFC SEC. ASSETS CORP. MORTGAGE 
1997-2 
[CURRENT DEFENDANT; DO NOT 
SERVE] 

and 

IMPERIAL CREDIT INDUSTRIES INC., 
ICIFC SEC. ASSETS CORP. MORTGAGE 
1997-3 
[CURRENT DEFENDANT; DO NOT 
SERVE] 

and 

WILMINGTON TRUST COMPANY 
[CURRENT DEFENDANT; DO NOT 
SERVE] 

And 

EMPIRE FUNDING HOME LOAN OWNER 
TRUST 1998-1 
[CURRENT DEFENDANT; DO NOT 
SERVEI 

and 

ADVANTA MORTGAGE CORP. USA 

a Delaware corporation 
[CURRENT DEFENDANT; DO 
SERVE] 

NOT 

and 

CDC MORTGAGE CAPITAL INC. 
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a New York corporation 
SERVE: 
Luc De Clapiers, Chairman 
9 W. 57 th Street, 36 tt• Floor 
New York, NY 10019 

and 

FEDERAL DEPOSIT INSURANCE 
CORPORATION as Receiver for CORUS 
BANK NA 

a national bank 
[CURRENT DEFENDANT; DO NOT 
SERVE] 

and 

COUNTRYWIDE HOME LOANS, INC. 
A New York Corporation 
[CURRENT DEFENDANT; DO NOT 
SERVEI 

and 

CREDIT-BASED ASSET SERVICING & 
SECURITIZATION LLC 

a New York corporation 
[CURRENT DEFENDANT; DO NOT 
SERVE] 

and 

CREDIT SUISSE FIRST BOSTON 
MORTGAGE SECURITIES 
CORPORATION. 

a Delaware corporation 
[CURRENT DEFENDANT; DO NOT 
SERVEI 

and 

DEUTSCHE BANK NATIONAL TRUST 
COMPANY 
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a New York corporation 
[CURRENT DEFENDANT; 
SERVE] 

DO 

and 

DEUTSCHE BANK TRUST COMPANY 
AMERICAS 

a New York corporation 
[CURRENT DEFENDANT; DO 
SERVEI 

and 

NOT 

NOT 

FIRST UNION NATIONAL BANK (n/k/a 
WELLS FARGO BANK N.A. 

a national bank 
[CURRENT DEFENDANT; DO NOT 
SERVE] 

DO NOT 

and 

IMH ASSETS CORP. 

a California corporation 
[CURRENT DEFENDANT; 
SERVE] 

and 

IMPAC MORTGAGE HOLD1NGS ASSET 
CORPORATION 

a California corporation 
[CURRENT DEFENDANT; DO 
SERVE] 

and 

IMPAC CMB TRUST SERIES 1999-1 

a California trust 
[CURRENT DEFENDANT; DO NOT 
SERVEI 

and 

IMPAC CMB TRUST SERIES 1999-2 

NOT 
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a California trust 
[CURRENT DEFENDANT; DO NOT 
SERVE[ 

and 

IMPAC CMB TRUST SERIES 2000-1 

a California trust 
[CURRENT DEFENDANT; DO NOT 
SERVE] 

and 

IMPAC CMB TRUST SERIES 2000-2 

a California trust 
[CURRENT DEFENDANT; DO NOT 
SERVE] 

and 

IMPAC CMB TRUST SERIES 2001-4 

a California trust 
[CURRENT DEFENDANT; DO NOT 
SERVE] 

and 

IMPAC CMB TRUST SERIES 2002-1 

a California trust 
[CURRENT DEFENDANT; DO NOT 
SERVEI 

and 

IMPAC CMB TRUST SERIES 2003-5 

a California trust 
[CURRENT DEFENDANT; DO NOT 
SERVE] 

and 
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JPMORGAN CHASE BANK (f/k/a THE 
CHASE MANHATTAN BANK) 

a national bank 
[CURRENT DEFENDANT; DO 
SERVE] 

NOT 

LASALLE NATIONAL BANK 

a national bank 
[CURRENT DEFENDANT; 
SERVEI 

DO NOT 

and 

LITTON LOAN SERVICING, L.P. 

a Delaware corporation 
[CURRENT DEFENDANT; DO NOT 
SERVE] 

and 

MORTGAGE LOAN SERVICING 
CORPORATION 

a California corporation 
SERVE: 
Officer or Person in Charge 
4600 E1 Camino Real 
Los Altos, CA 94022 

and 

OCWEN LOAN SERVICING, LLC 
OCWEN FEDERAL BANK, FSB) 

a federal bank 
[CURRENT DEFENDANT; DO NOT 
SERVE] 

(f/k/a 

and 

PREFERRED MORTGAGE TRUST 1996-1 
[CURRENT DEFENDANT; DO NOT 
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SERVEI 

and 
RESIDENTIAL FUNDING COMPANY, LLC 
(f/k/a RESIDENTIAL FUNDING 
CORPORATION) 

a Delaware corporation 
[CURRENT DEFENDANT; DO NOT 
SERVE] 

and 

SOVEREIGN BANK 

a federal bank 
[CURRENT DEFENDANT; DO NOT 
SERVE] 

and 

UNITED MORTGAGE C.B., LLC 
a North Carolina company 
[CURRENT DEFENDANT; DO NOT 
SERVE] 

and 

WELLS FARGO BANK N.A. (f/k/a WELLS 
FARGO BANK, MN, N.A.) 

a national bank 
[CURRENT DEFENDANT; DO NOT 
SERVEI 

and 

WENDOVER FINANCIAL SERVICES 
CORPORATION 

a North Carolina corporation 
[CURRENT DEFENDANT; DO NOT 
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SERVE] 

and 

UBS REAL ESTATE SECURITIES, INC. 
(f/k/a PAINE WEBBER REAL ESTATE 
SECURITIES, INC.) 

a Delaware corporation 
SERVE: 
Ramesh Singh 
1285 Avenue of the Americas 
New York, New York 10019 

and 

EMPIRE FUNDING GRANTOR 
1998-1 
Serve: 
U.S. Bank National Association 
601 Second Ave. South 
Minnesota MN 55402 

TRUST 

and 

EMPIRE FUNDING HOME LOAN OWNER 
TRUST 1999-1 
Serve: 
Wilmington Trust Company 
Rodney Square Noth 1100 N. Market Street 
Wilmington, DE 19890 

and 

EMPIRE FUNDING GRANTOR 
1999-1 
Serve: 
U.S. Bank National Association 
U.S. Bank National Association 
601 Second Ave. South 
Minnesota MN 55402 

TRUST 

and 

EMC MORTGAGE CORPORATION 
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Servel 
The Corporation Company 
120 South Central Avenue 
Clayton, MO 63105 

and 

BAC HOME LOAN SERVICING, L.P. (f/k/a 
COUNTRYWIDE HOME LOAN 
SERVICING, L.P.) 
Serve: 
CT Corporation System 
350 N. St. Paul St. 
Ste. 2900 
Dallas, TX 75201 

and 

CHASE HOME FINANCE LLC as successor 

by merger to CHASE MANHATTAN 
MORTGAGE CORPORATION 
Serve: 
The Corporation Trust Company 
Corporation Trust Center 
1209 Orange Street 
Wilmington DE 19801 

and 

IMPAC REAL ESTATE ASSET TRUST 
SERIES 2006-SD1 
SERVE: 
Officer or Person in Charge 
Deutsche Bank National Trust Company 
(f/k/a Bankers Trust Company of CA, N.A.) 
130 Liberty Street 
New York, NY 10006 

and 

WINGSPAN PORFOLIO ADVISORS, LLC 
Serve: 
Registered Agent Solutions, Inc. 
3225 A Emerald Lane 
Jefferson City MO 65109 
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and 

REAL TIME RESOLUTIONS, INC. 
Serve: 
C T Corporation System 
120 South Central Avenue 
Clayton, MO 63105 

DOES 1 THROUGH 25. 

Defendants. 

SEVENTH AMENDED COMPLAINT 

Plaintiffs Michael P. and Shellie Gilmor, Michael E. and Lois A. Harris, Leo E. Parvin, 

Jr., Ted and Raye Ann Varns, Mark and Thomasina Shipman, William and Marion Jones, Bruce 

and Mary James, Kevin and Susan Schaefer, David and Nicole Warkentien, John and Jeanne 

Rumans, Patricia Ann Worthy, Derrick and Alethia Rockett, William and Carole Hudson, James 

and Kathleen Woodward, Jeffrey Weathersby, and Debra Mooney, Joseph and Amy Black, 

individually and on behalf of all other persons similarly situated ("PLAINTIFFS"), state the 

following for their Sixth Amended Complaint against Defendants in this cause: 

Introduction 

1. This action is brought as a plaintiffs' class action against PREFERRED CREDIT 

CORPORATION ("PREFERRED CREDIT") and the rest of the above-named Defendants 

(individually and as representatives of a defendant class as hereinafter defined), as: (a) the 

holders or previous holders of the Second Mortgage Loans made in Missouri by PREFERRED 

CREDIT (as herein defined) (b) the trustees, agents and/or servicers of those persons or entities 

that purchased or were assigned and/or now hold or previously held said Second Mortgage Loans 

and/or (c) the trustees, agents, servicers and holders of said Second Mortgage Loans. 
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2. This action seeks redress on behalf of PLAINTIFFS and the SECOND 

MORTGAGE CLASS (defined below) against PREFERRED CREDIT and the other Defendants 

(including a defendant class) for violations of Missouri's Second Mortgage Loans Act (§§ 

408.231 Mo. Rev. Stat. et seq.), including claims for injunctive relief. 

The Plaintiffs 

3. Plaintiffs Michael P. Gilmor and Shellie Gilmor (the "GILMORS") are 

individuals who formerly resided at 11304 N. Donnelly Avenue, Kansas City, Clay County, 

Missouri. Shellie Gilmor currently resides at 1121 Canterbury Lane, Liberty, Clay County, 

Missouri, 64068. The GILMORS bring this action individually and as representatives on behalf 

of the class of plaintiff-borrowers described below. 

4. Plaintiffs Michael E. and Lois A. Harris (the "HARRISES") are lawfully married 

individuals who reside at 1349 East 84 th Street, Kansas City, Jackson County, Missouri. The 

HARRISES bring this action individually and as representatives on behalf of the class of 

plaintiff-borrowers described below. 

5. Plaintiff Leo E. Parvin, Jr. ("PARV1N") is an individual who resides at 686 

Outlook Drive, Edwards, Missouri. PARVIN brings this action individually and a representative 

on behalf of the class of plaintiff-borrowers described below. 

6. Plaintiffs Ted and Raye Ann Vams (the "VARNSES") are individuals who 

formerly resided at 108 South Atterbury Street, Atlanta, Macon County, Missouri. Raye Ann 

Vams currently resides at 10255 Faith Drive, Apt. 1, King George, Virginia. The VARNSES 

bring this action individually and as representatives on behalf of the class of plaintiff-borrowers 

described below. 
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7. Plaintiffs Mark and Thomasina Shipman (the "SHIPMANS") are lawfully married 

individuals who reside at 9991 Greenton Rd., Odessa, Missouri. The SHIPMANS bring this 

action individually and as representatives on behalf of the class of plaintiff-borrowers described 

below. 

8. Plaintiffs William and Marion Jones (the "JONESES") are lawfully married 

individuals who reside at 2208 Park Ave., St. Joseph, Missouri. The JONESES bring this action 

individually and as representatives on behalf of the class of plaintiff-borrowers described below. 

9. Plaintiffs Bruce and Mary James (the "JAMESES") are lawfully married 

individuals who reside at 724 Fernwood Terrace, Lake Saint Louis, Missouri. The JAMESES 

bring this action individually and as representatives on behalf of the class of plaintiff-borrowers 

described below. 

10. Plaintiffs Kevin and Susan Schaefer (the "SCHAEFERS") are lawfully married 

individuals who reside at 715 Hemsath Rd., St. Charles, Missouri. The SCHAEFERS bring this 

action individually and as representatives on behalf of the class of plaintiff-borrowers described 

below. 

11. Plaintiffs David and Nicole Warkentien (the "WARKENTIENS") are lawfully 

married individuals who reside at 9329 East 15th Street S, Independence, Missouri. The 

WARKENTIENS bring this action individually and as representatives on behalf of the class of 

plaintiff-borrowers described below. 

12. Plaintiffs John and Jeanne Rumans (the "RUMANS") are lawfully married 

individuals who reside at 808 NE 100th Terrace, Kansas City, Missouri. The RUMANS bring 

this action individually and as representatives on behalf of the class of plaintiff-borrowers 

described below. 
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13. Plaintiff Patricia Ann Worthy ("WORTHY") is an individual who resides at 7123 

Oreon Ave., St. Louis, Missouri. WORTHY brings this action individually and as 

representatives on behalf of the class of plaintiff-borrowers described below. 

14. Plaintiffs Derrick and Alethia Rockett (the "ROCKETTS") are lawfully married 

individuals who reside at i 39 Benedictine Ct., Florissant, Missouri. The ROCKETTS bring this 

action individually and as representatives on behalf of the class of plaintiff-borrowers described 

below. 

15. Plaintiffs William and Carole Hudson (the "HUDSONS") are lawfully married 

individuals who reside at 5977 SE 208th St., Holt, Missouri. The HUDSONS bring this action 

individually and as representatives on behalf of the class of plaintiff-borrowers described below. 

16. Plaintiffs James and Kathleen Woodward (the "WOODWARDS") are lawfully 

married individuals who reside at 1901 SW 5th St., Blue Springs, Missouri. The 

WOODWARDS bring this action individually and as representatives on behalf of the class of 

plaintiff-borrowers described below. 

17. Plaintiff Jeffrey Weathersby ("WEATHERSBY") is an individual who resides at 

9643 Newton Dr., St. Louis Missouri. WEATHERSBY bring this action individually and as 

representatives on behalf of the class of plaintiff-borrowers described below. 

18. Plaintiff Debra Mooney ("MOONEY") is an individual who resides at 519 

Kingston Dr., St. Louis Missouri. MOONEY brings this action individually and as 

representatives on behalf of the class of plaintiff-borrowers described below. 

19. Plaintiffs Joseph and Amy Black (the "BLACKS") are lawfully married 

individuals who reside at 10005 E. 36th Street South, Independence, Missouri. The BLACKS 
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bring this action individually and as representatives on behalf of the class of plaintiff-borrowers 

described below. 

Defendant Preferred Credit 

20. PREFERRED CREDIT (f/k/a T.A.R. Preferred Mortgage Corporation) is a 

California corporation that has no viable registered agent, but which has been served with process 

in this action by serving the California Secretary of State, 1500 11 th Street, Sacramento, CA 

95814. 

21. PREFERRED CREDIT is a "moneyed corporation" within the meaning of 

§516.420 Mo. Rev. Stat. At all times relevant to the subject matter of this action, PREFERRED 

CREDIT was engaged principally if not exclusively in the business of originating, funding and 

selling residential mortgage loans in a number of different states, including Missouri, and was 

subject to regulation by the Missouri Division of Finance with regard to its lending and loan 

activities within Missouri. In particular, PREFERRED CREDIT, as a "mortgage banker" as 

defined by the Missouri Division of Finance, lent money secured by residential real estate to 

Missouri consumers and then sold the residential mortgage loans it made for money to entities 

like the defendant businesses and trusts identified below. PREFERRED CREDIT, upon 

information and belief, then used the money it received for the loans to make and fund still other 

loans. 

22. As a lender of money secured by people's homes, PREFERRED CREDIT 

exercised "banking powers" and was at all relevant times subject to regulation by the Missouri 

Division of Finance. In addition, Plaintiffs allege upon information and belief that PREFERRED 

CREDIT was also licensed and regulated (or was exempted from certain state licensing 

requirements) at all relevant times by the banking and/or finance divisions/departments of a 
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number of different states, including the Missouri Division of Finance, as a "mortgage banker," 

"mortgage lender," and/or "money broker." 

The Investor Defendants 

23. Defendant IMPAC FUND1NG CORPORATION is a California corporation that 

has previously been served with (or waived service of) process in this action. 

24. Defendant U.S. BANK NATIONAL ASSOCIATION ND is a national bank that 

has previously been served with (or waived service of) process in this action. 

25. Defendant IMPERIAL CREDIT INDUSTRIES, INC. is a California corporation 

that has previously been served with (or waived service of) process in this action. 

26. Defendant IMPAC MORTGAGE HOLDINGS, INC. is a Maryland corporation 

that has previously been served with (or waived service of) process in this action. 

27. Defendant IMPAC SECURED ASSETS CORP. is a California corporation that 

has previously been served with (or waived service of) process in this action. 

28. Defendant IMPAC SECURED ASSETS CMN TRUST SERIES 1998-1 is a 

Delaware business trust that has previously been served with (or waived service of) process in 

this action. 

29. Defendant PREFERRED MORTGAGE TRUST 1996-2 is a trust or fund that has 

previously been served with (or waived service of) process in this action. 

30. Defendant PREFERRED CREDIT TRUST 1997-1 is a trust or fund that has 

previously been served with (or waived service of) process in this action. 

31. Defendant DEUTSCHE BANK NATIONAL TRUST COMPANY (f/k/a 

BANKERS TRUST COMPANY OF CALIFORNIA, NA) is a national bank that has previously 

been served with (or waived service of) process in this action. 
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32. Defendant DEUTSCHE BANK TRUST COMPANY AMERICAS (f/k/a 

BANKERS TRUST COMPANY) is a New York bank that has previously been served with (or 

waived service of) process in this action. 

33. Defendant U.S. BANK NATIONAL ASSOCIATION is a national bank that has 

previously been served with (or waived service of) process in this action. 

34. Defendant IMPERIAL CREDIT INDUSTRIES INC., ICIFC SEC. ASSETS 

CORP. MORTGAGE 1997-1 is a trust or fund that has previously been served with (or waived 

service of) process in this action. 

35. Defendant IMPERIAL CREDIT INDUSTRIES INC., ICIFC SEC. ASSETS 

CORP. MORTGAGE 1997-2 is a trust or fund that has previously been served with (or waived 

service of) process in this action. 

36. Defendant IMPERIAL CREDIT INDUSTRIES INC., ICIFC SEC. ASSETS 

CORP. MORTGAGE 1997-3 is a trust or fund that has previously been served with (or waived 

service of) process in this action. 

37. Defendant WILMINGTON TRUST COMPANY ("WTC") is a Delaware bank 

that has previously been served with (or waived service of) process in this action. 

38. Defendant EMPIRE FUNDING HOME LOAN OWNER TRUST 1998-1 is a 

Delaware business trust that has previously been served with (or waived service of) process in 

this action. 

39. Defendant ADVANTA MORTGAGE CORP. USA is a Delaware corporation 

currently in bankruptcy and against which this action has been stayed pursuant to 11 U.S.C. § 

362(a), pending further order of the bankruptcy court. 

40. Defendant CDC MORTGAGE CAPITAL INC. is a New York corporation and 
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can be served with legal process by serving Luc De Clapiers, Chairman, 9 W. 57 th Street, 36 th 

Floor, New York, NY 10019. 

41. Defendant FEDERAL DEPOSIT INSURANCE CORPORATION as Receiver for 

CORUS BANK NA, a national bank that has previously been served with (or waived service of) 

process in this action. 

42. Defendant COUNTRYWIDE HOME LOANS, INC. is a New York corporation 

that has previously been served with (or waived service of) process in this action. 

43. Defendant CREDIT-BASED ASSET SERVICING & SECURITIZATION LLC is 

a New York corporation currently in bankruptcy and against which this action has been stayed 

pursuant to 11 U.S.C. § 362(a), pending further order of the bankruptcy court. 

44. Defendant CREDIT SUISSE FIRST BOSTON MORTGAGE SECURITIES 

CORPORATION is a Delaware corporation that has previously been served with (or waived 

service of) process in this action. 

45. Defendant DEUTSCHE BANK NATIONAL TRUST COMPANY is a New York 

corporation that has previously been served with (or waived service of) process in this action. 

46. Defendant DEUTSCHE BANK TRUST COMPANY AMERICAS is a New York 

corporation that has previously been served with (or waived service of) process in this action. 

47. Defendant FIRST UNION NATIONAL BANK is a national bank that has merged 

with and is now part of WELLS FARGO BANK N.A. 

48. Defendant IMH ASSETS CORP. is a California corporation that has previously 

been served with (or waived service of) process in this action. 
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49. Defendant IMPAC MORTGAGE HOLDINGS ASSET CORPORATION is a 

California corporation that has previously been served with (or waived service of) process in this 

action. 

50. Defendant IMPAC CMB TRUST SERIES 1999-1 is a California trust that has 

previously been served with (or waived service of) process in this action. 

51. Defendant IMPAC CMB TRUST SERIES 1999-2 is a California trust that has 

previously been served with (or waived service of) process in this action. 

52. Defendant IMPAC CMB TRUST SERIES 2000-1 is a California trust that has 

previously been served with (or waived service of) process in this action. 

53. Defendant IMPAC CMB TRUST SERIES 2000-2 is a California trust that has 

previously been served with (or waived service of) process In this action. 

54. Defendant IMPAC CMB TRUST SERIES 2001-4 is a California trust that has 

previously been served with (or waived service of) process in this action. 

55. Defendant IMPAC CMB TRUST SERIES 2002-1 is a California trust that has 

previously been served with (or waived service of) process in this action. 

56. Defendant IMPAC CMB TRUST SERIES 2003-5 is a California trust that has 

previously been served with (or waived service of) process in this action. 

57. Defendant JPMORGAN CHASE BANK (f/k/a THE CHASE MANHATTAN 

BANK) ("CHASE") is a national bank that has previously been served with (or waived service 

of) process in this action. CHASE is named both individually and as a successor in interest to 

ADVANTA MORTGAGE CORPORATION USA. 

58. Defendant LASALLE NATIONAL BANK is a national bank that has previously 

been served with (or waived service of) process in this action. 
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59. Defendant LITTON LOAN SERVICING, L.P. is a Delaware corporation that has 

previously been served with (or waived service of) process in this action. 

60. Defendant MORTGAGE LOAN SERVICING CORPORATION is a California 

corporation that can be served with legal process by serving the officer or person in charge, 4600 

gl (2amino Real, Los Altos, CA 94022. 

61. Defendant OCWEN LOAN SERVICING, LLC (f/k/a OCWEN FEDERAL 

BANK, FSB) is a federal bank that has previously been served with (or waived service of) 

process in this action. 

62. Defendant PREFERRED MORTGAGE TRUST 1996-1 is a trust or fund that has 

previously been served with (or waived service of) process in this action. 

63. Defendant RESIDENTIAL FUNDING COMPANY, LLC (f/k/a RESIDENTIAL 

FUNDING CORPORATION) is a Delaware corporation that has previously been served with (or 

waived service of) process in this action. 

64. Defendant SOVEREIGN BANK is a federal bank that has previously been served 

with (or waived service of) process in this action. 

65. Defendant UNITED MORTGAGE C.B., LLC. is a North Carolina company that 

has previously been served with (or waived service of) process in this action. 

66. Defendant WELLS FARGO BANK N.A. (f/k/a WELLS FARGO BANK, MN, 

N.A.) is a national bank that has previously been served with (or waived service of) process in 

this action. 

67. Defendant WENDOVER FINANCIAL SERVICES CORPORATION is a North 

Carolina corporation that has previously been served with (or waived service of) process in this 

action. 
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68. Defendant UBS REAL ESTATE SECURITIES INC. (f/k/a PAINE WEBBER 

REAL ESTATE SECURITIES, INC.) is a Delaware corporation and can be served with legal 

process by serving Ramesh Singh, 1285 Avenue of the Americas, New York, New York 10019. 

69. Defendant EMPIRE FUNDING GRANTOR TRUST 1998-1 is a Delaware 

business trust and can be served wifia legal process by serving its trustee U.S. Bank National 

Association, 601 Second Ave. South, Minnesota MN 55402. 

70. Defendant EMPIRE FUNDING HOME LOAN OWNER TRUST 1999-1 is a 

Delaware business trust and can be served with legal process by serving Wilmington Trust 

Company, Rodney Square North 1100 N. Market Street, Wilmington, DE 19890. 

71. Defendant EMPIRE FUNDING GRANTOR TRUST 1999-1 Delaware business 

trust and can be served with legal process by serving its trustee U.S. Bank National Association, 

601 Second Ave. South, Minnesota MN 55402. 

72. Defendant EMC MORTGAGE CORPORATION is a Delaware corporation and 

can be served with legal process by serving The Corporation Company, 120 South Central 

Avenue, Clayton, MO 63105. 

73. Defendant BAC HOME LOAN SERVICING, L.P. (f/k/a COUNTRYWIDE 

HOME LOAN SERVICING, L.P.) is a Texas Corporation and can be served with legal process 

by serving CT Corporation System, 350 N. St. Paul St., Ste. 2900, Dallas, TX 75201. 

74. Defendant CHASE HOME FINANCE LLC as successor by merger to CHASE 

MANHATTAN MORTGAGE CORPORATION is a Delaware Corporation and can be served 

with legal process by serving The Corporation Trust Company, Corporation Trust Center, 1209 

Orange Street, Wilmington DE 19801. 

75. Defendant is IMPAC REAL ESTATE ASSET TRUST SERIES 2006-SD1 is a 
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California trust and can be served by serving Officer or Person in Charge, Deutsche Bank 

National Trust Company (f/k/a Bankers Trust Company of CA, N.A.), 130 Liberty Street, New 

York, NY 10006. 

76. Defendant REAL TIME REOLUTIONS, INC. is a Texas corporation and can be 

served with legal process by serving t2 1 t2orporation System i20 South Central Avenue Clayton, 

MO 63105. 

77. Defendant WINGSPAN PORTFOLIO ADVISORS, LLC is a Texas corporation 

and can be served with legal process by serving Registered Agent Solutions, Inc., 3225 A 

Emerald Lane, Jefferson City, MO 65109. 

78. Each of the Defendants named in paragraphs 23 through 77 above (collectively 

the "INVESTOR DEFENDANTS") purchased and/or is or was an owner, assignee (holder) of, 

and/or the trustee and/or servicer and/or agent of an entity, trust, fund or pool owning and/or 

holding one or more of the Second Mortgage Loans made to the PLAINTIFFS and the 

PLAINTIFF CLASS including, inter alia, the mortgages and servicing rights for the loans, which 

the 1NVESTOR ASSIGNEES thereafter held, owned and/or serviced, and which Second 

Mortgage Loans were originated and/or made by PREFERRED CREDIT (or a finder or broker 

on its behalf), all as is more particularly set forth below. 

The Doe Defendants 

79. Defendants DOE 1 through 25 ("DOES 1-25") are the remaining owners, 

assignees (holders) and trusts, funds and/or pools, and the trustees and/or agents thereof, 

organized under various state laws, if any, that are yet to be named and whose identity will 

become known through discovery and/or by requests made by Plaintiffs or the members of the 

plaintiff class of their second mortgage servicers, after which such remaining assignees (holders) 
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and trusts, funds and pools, and the trustees and/or agents thereof, to the extent that they can be 

identified, will be added as individual and/or class representative defendants. 

The Assignee Defendants 

80. Each of the INVESTOR DEFENDANTS and DOES 1 through 25 (collectively, 

the "ASSIGNEE 19EFENDANTS") is named as a Defendant bot'n individually, in its capacity as 

an owner and/or assignee (holder) of, and/or the trustee and/or servicer and/or agent of an entity, 

trust, fund or pool owning or holding, the Second Mortgage Loans, and as a member and 

representative of every other member of the Defendant Class (as hereinafter defined), which 

includes the remaining owners and assignees (holders) of, and trustees and/or servicers, and/or 

agents of the entities, trusts, funds and pools owning and/or holding, said Second Mortgage 

Loans. 

81. The ASSIGNEE DEFENDANTS, individually and/or through their bank trustees 

or other trustees, servicers, and/or agents, purchased the Second Mortgage Loans that 

PREFERRED CREDIT made to PLAINTIFFS and the Plaintiff Class pursuant to one or more 

standing agreements and/or a course of business dealing with PREFERRED CREDIT and/or on a 

"secondary market" comprised of businesses like said ASSIGNEE DEFENDANTS and used the 

Second Mortgage Loans and the money streams they generated for purposes of investment, 

including use of the loans and money streams as collateral for notes that certain ASSIGNEE 

DEFENDANTS and their trustees and agents sold to the public. 

82. The existence of these agreements, course of dealing and "secondary market," and 

the capital that the ASSIGNEE DEFENDANTS provided to PREFERRED CREDIT by agreeing 

to repurchase the loans that it originated and made, enabled PREFERRED CREDIT to make the 

second mortgage home loans it was making in the first place, including the Missouri Second 
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Mortgage Loans at issue. 

83. Each of the ASSIGNEE DEFENDANTS is a "moneyed corporation" within the 

meaning of §516.420 Mo. Rev. Stat. in that the ASSIGNEE DEFENDANTS, and each of them, 

at all relevant times: (a) purchased and/or acquired the subject Second Mortgage Loans made by 

PREFERRED CREDIT, which originated and funded the loans in violation of Missouri law; (b) 

was so closely-connected to PREFERRED CREDIT, and/or were indirectly or directly involved 

in the making and origination of the loans, directly or through an affiliated entity, by virtue of 

certain business arrangements, that they should be deemed "moneyed corporations" too; (c) were 

engaged principally if not exclusively in the business of purchasing and/or acquiring residential 

mortgage loans and the money streams such loans generated in competition with banks, and used 

the loans for investment; and/or (d) are business enterprises engaged in the business of using 

money to make money, as alleged herein. 

84. The ASSIGNEE DEFENDANTS, upon information and belief, were partners with 

and/or principals or agents of PREFERRED CREDIT and/or one or more other entities and/or 

ASSIGNEE DEFENDANTS acting in concert with PREFERRED CREDIT, and/or were engaged 

in a joint venture and enterprise with PREFERRED CREDIT and/or said other entities, and/or a 

conspiracy with PREFERRED CREDIT and/or said other entities, to originate, exchange and 

exploit second mortgage loans from PREFERRED CREDIT's Missouri borrowers without regard 

to state law and applicable state law fee limitations, in that, among other things, the ASSIGNEE 

DEFENDANTS bound themselves by commitments and agreements and established 

relationships with PREFERRED CREDIT and/or the other entities in terms of origination and 

underwriting criteria, loan terms and fees, and funding arrangements, and/or were otherwise so 

closely connected, that they are jointly and severally liable for the losses arising from the 
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unlawful loans. 

Jurisdiction and Venue 

85. This Court has jurisdiction over each DEFENDANT since each transacted 

business, made contracts, committed torts and/or are or were assignees, trustees, servicers and/or 

agents of such entities and/or of the Second Mortgage Loans, and/or used or possessed an interest 

in real estate located within the state of Missouri, and/or are subject to process in this state, all as 

is herein alleged. 

86. PREFERRED CREDIT is subject to the jurisdiction of this Court either having a 

registered agent in and/or a continuous and systematic presence in or contacts with the State of 

Missouri, and/or pursuant to the provisions of §506.500 Mo. Rev. Stat. having further: 

(a) Transacted business within this state by virtue of its making numerous Second 

Mortgage Loans (as hereinafter defined) in this state; 

(b) Made contracts within this state by virtue of its making numerous Second 

Mortgage Loans in this state and the contracts made in conjunction with such 

Second Mortgage Loans; 

(c) Committed tortious acts within this state by virtue of its violations of Missouri's 

Second Mortgage Loan Act and/or its unlawful collection and conversion of 

monies in violation of such Act (including without limitation, continuing to 

collect illegal interest from the class members as more specifically set forth 

below); and 

(d) Used real estate situated in this state to illegally secure the Second Mortgage 

Loans that are the subject of this action. 
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87. Each of the ASSIGNEE DEFENDANTS is subject to the jurisdiction of this 

Court, either having a registered agent in and/or a continuous and systematic presence in or 

contacts with the state of Missouri, and/or pursuant to the provisions of §506.500 Mo. Rev. Star., 

having further, individually and/or through one or more trustees, servicers and/or agents: 

(a) Transacted business within this state individually and/or by virtue of being an 

assignee (holder) and/or the trustee, agent and/or servicer of an assignee of the 

Second Mortgage Loans (as herein defined) of PREFERRED CREDIT, by its 

direct or indirect involvement in the origination and making of the Second 

Mortgage Loans, and/or by virtue of it being a holder of and/or a trustee, agent 

and/or servicer of a holder of said Second Mortgage Loans and collecting the 

benefits of and amounts due under said Second Mortgage Loans from and/or 

within this state; 

(b) Made contracts within this state individually and/or by virtue of being an assignee 

(holder) or the trustee, agent and/or servicer of an assignee or holder of 

PREFERRED CREDIT and/or said Second Mortgage Loans, by its direct or 

indirect involvement in the origination and making of the Second Mortgage Loans 

and/or by being an intended secondary market purchaser of the Second Mortgage 

Loans after their closing; 

(c) Committed tortious acts within this state individually and/or by virtue of being an 

assignee (holder) and/or the trustee, agent and/or servicer of an assignee of 

PREFERRED CREDIT and/or the Second Mortgage Loans by virtue of its 

conduct in directly or indirectly charging, contracting for and/or receiving illegal 

fees in violation of the SMLA and Missouri law and continuing to do so, in their 
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collection and/or receipt of illegal fees and interest from PLAINTIFFS and the 

Plaintiff Class, and continuing to do so, and/or by its direct or indirect 

involvement in the origination and making of the Second Mortgage Loans, and/or 

by being an intended secondary market purchaser of the illegal Second Mortgage 

Loans after their closing, all as is more specifically set forth below; and 

(d) Used real estate situated in this state to secure the Second Mortgage Loans 

individually and/or by virtue of being an assignee (holder) or the trustee, agent 

and/or servicer of an assignee of PREFERRED CREDIT and/or the Second 

Mortgage Loans, and/or by virtue of its continuing capacity as the beneficiary of 

the deeds of trust and mortgages, or the trustee and/or agent for such beneficiaries, 

that secure the Second Mortgage Loans. 

88. Venue is proper in the Circuit Court of Clay County pursuant to the terms of 

§408.562 Mo. Rev. Stat. because one or more plaintiffs reside in that county and/or because the 

transactions complained of occurred in that county and pursuant to §407.025 Mo. Rev. Stat. and 

because one or more plaintiffs reside in that county and pursuant to §508.010 Mo. Rev. Stat. 

because the subject causes of action accrued in Clay County. 

General Alle•ations 

89. PLAINTIFFS bring this action individually and as a class action on behalf of the 

statewide class of Missouri residential real estate owners or borrowers who obtained Second 

Mortgage Loans from PREFERRED CREDIT. "Second Mortgage Loans" are defined at 

§408.231 Mo. Rev. Stat. to mean "...a loan secured in whole or in part by a lien upon any 

interest in residential real estate created by a security instrument, including a mortgage, trust 
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deed, or other similar instrument or document which residential real estate is subject to one or 

more prior mortgage loans." 

90. "Residential real estate" is defined at §408.231.3 Mo. Rev. Stat., to mean "... any 

real estate used or intended to be used as a residence by not more than four families 

9 i. From and after six years prior to the original filing of this action and through the 

present time, PREFERRED CREDIT made Second Mortgage Loans to PLAINTIFFS and the 

members of the Plaintiff Class 

92. In each of the of the Second Mortgage Loans at issue, PREFERRED CREDIT 

received a promissory note from PLAINTIFFS and from the members of the Plaintiff Class (as 

hereinafter deigned) and was named as the "Beneficiary" in a second mortgage deed of trust to 

secure the said Second Mortgage Loans. 

93. In connection with these Second Mortgage Loans, the rate of interest was 

unlawful, except for the lawful rate of interest permitted by Missouri's Second Mortgage Loans 

Act, and in particular §408.233.1 Mo. Rev. Stat. 

94. In connection with these Second Mortgage Loans PREFERRED CREDIT 

contracted for, charged and/or received, and the INVESTOR and ASSIGNEE DEFENDANTS 

contracted for, charged and/or received fees that violated Missouri's Second Mortgage Loans 

Act. In particular, PREFERRED CREDIT contracted for, charged and/or received and 

PREFERRED CREDIT and the INVESTOR and ASSIGNEE DEFENDANTS contracted for, 

charged and/or received, what PREFERRED CREDIT disclosed to the Plaintiffs and class 

members to be fees that were either wholly prohibited by or in excess of that allowed by 

Missouri's Second Mortgage Loans Act, § 408.233.1 Mo. Rev. Stat. and/or other fees that were 

either not paid to third parties of the lender or were not permitted by or were in excess of those 
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permitted by Missouri's Second Mortgage Loans Act, § 408.233.1(3) Mo. Rev. Stat. 

95. These illegal settlement charges and fees were payable and paid at the time that 

the loans were funded and were added to the principal balance of the Second Mortgage Loan 

notes and on which amounts interest was charged, as it was charged on the entire principal 

balance of the notes. 

96. Most if not all of the Second Mortgage Loans that PREFERRED CREDIT made, 

and which any one or more of the ASSIGNEE DEFENDANTS purchased and received by 

assignment from PREFERRED CREDIT or another ASSIGNEE DEFENDANT, was a "high 

cost" mortgage within the meaning of 15 U.S.C.§ 1602(aa) having met the requirements of that 

statute as alleged herein. 

97. Since acquiring the loans, the ASSIGNEE DEFENDANTS, individually and/or 

through their trustees, agents and/or servicers, have directly and/or indirectly charged, contracted 

for, and/or received (and continue to charge, contract for, collect, or receive) payments of interest 

on the loans, as well as a portion of the origination and other fees that were rolled into and paid 

as a part of the loan amounts. 

The Gilmor Second Mortgage Loan 

98. On or about October 3, 1997, PREFERRED CREDIT loaned the GILMORS 

$40,000.00, to be repaid with interest at the yearly rate of 13.5% in consecutive monthly 

installments over a period of 15 years. 

99. The 13.5% rate charged was a lawful rate permitted in §408.232.1, but it was 

otherwise "unlawful" without regard to the rate permitted in §408.232.1. The Annual Percentage 

Rate (APR) for the loan was 15.752%. 
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100. To secure repayment of their note, the GILMORS were required to and did 

execute a deed of trust for the benefit of PREFERRED CREDIT. The deed of trust granted 

PREFERRED CREDIT a security lien in residential real estate as defined at §408.231 Mo. Rev. 

Stat. and was subject to one or more prior mortgage loans. 

101. In connection wifn this Second Mortgage Loan, PREFERRED CREDIT charged 

the following fees payable at closing, each of which was an illegal settlement charge, in violation 

of Missouri's Second Mortgage Loans Act (§408.231.1 Mo. Rev. Stat.): 

Origination Fee to PREFERRED CREDIT $3,200.00 
Loan Processing Fee to PREFERRED CREDIT 395.00 
Underwriting Fee to PREFERRED CREDIT 125.00 
Administration Fee/Document Fee to PREFERRED CREDIT 500.00 
Signing Fees to PREFERRED CREDIT 150.00 

102. The GILMORS incurred these Origination fees and other fees when the loan was 

funded by financing such over the life of the loan, as evidenced by the fact that such charges were 

included in the principal balance of the note. 

103. At some point after PREFERRED CREDIT made the above second mortgage loan 

to the GILMORS, the loan was subsequently sold and assigned to and/or serviced by one or more 

of the other ASSIGNEE DEFENDANTS. 

104. Any or all of the above fees that PREFERRED CREDIT and/or any of the 

ASSIGNEE DEFENDANTS charged, contracted for and/or received from the GILMORS was an 

illegal settlement charge, in violation of Missouri's Second Mortgage Loans Act (§408.233.1 Mo. 

Rev. Stat. et seq.), in that, among other things, (a) the loan origination fee 0exceeded that which 

PREFERRED CREDIT could lawfully contract for, charge, and/or receive; and/or (b) 

PREFERRED CREDIT was prohibited by §408.233.1 from charging, contracting for, and/or 

receiving from the GILMORS any loan processing, underwriting, administration/document 
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and/or signing fees. 

105. Since September 1997, the GILMORS made all of the monthly payments due 

under their second mortgage loan, paying the same to PREFERRED CREDIT and/or to any one 

or more ASSIGNEE DEFENDANTS that purchased and/or acquired the loan, and/or that 

serviced and handled the loan as an agent on behalf of others, including but not limited to 

DEFENDANTS IMPAC FUNDING CORPORATION, WENDOVER FINANCIAL SERVICES, 

and its trustees. 

106. The Gilmors continued to make monthly payments on their loan until June 2001, 

when they paid it off, and the ASSIGNEE DEFENDANTS that purchased and/or acquired the 

loan, and/or that serviced and handled the loan as an agent on behalf of others, continued to 

charge and receive the monthly payments through that date. 

107. The second mortgage loan that PREFERRED CREDIT made to the GILMORS 

and which any one or more of the ASSIGNEE DEFENDANTS purchased and received by 

assignment from PREFERRED CREDIT or an intervening purchaser-assignee was a "high-cost" 

mortgage within the meaning of 15 U.S.C. § 1602(aa) in that the Annual Percentage Rate (APR) 

for the loan and/or the total points and fees payable by the GILMORS at or before closing met the 

applicable APR and/or Points and Fees Triggers. 

The Harris Second Mortgage Loan 

108. On or about August 12, 1997, PREFERRED CREDIT loaned the HARRISES 

$45,000.00, to be repaid with interest at the yearly rate of 13.99% in consecutive monthly 

installments over a period of 15 years. 

109. The 13.99% rate charged was a lawful rate permitted in §408.232.1, but it was 

otherwise "unlawful" without regard to the rate permitted in §408.232.1. The Annual Percentage 
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Rate (APR) for the loan was 16.655%. 

110. To secure repayment of their note, the HARRISES were required to and did 

execute a deed of trust for the benefit of PREFERRED CREDIT. The deed of trust granted 

PREFERRED CREDIT a security lien in Residential real estate as defined at §408.231 Mo. Rev. 

Stat. and was subject to one or more prior mortgage loans. 

111. In connection with this Second Mortgage Loan, PREFERRED CREDIT charged 

the following fees payable at closing and each of which was an illegal settlement charge, in 

violation of Missouri's Second Mortgage Loans Act (§408.231.1 Mo. Rev. Stat.): 

Mortgage Broker Fee 
Loan Processing Fee 
Underwriting Fee 
Administration Fee/Document Fee 
Review/Signing Fee 
Processing/Administration Fee 

$ 900.00 
395.00 
125.00 
500.00 
210.00 

3,275.00 

112. The HARRISES incurred these fees when the loan was funded by financing such 

over the life of the loan, as evidenced by the fact that such charges were included in the principal 

balance of the note. 

113. At some point after PREFERRED CREDIT made the above second mortgage loan 

to the HARRISES, the loan was subsequently sold and assigned to and/or serviced by one or 

more of the other ASSIGNEE DEFENDANTS. 

114. Any or all of the above fees that PREFERRED CREDIT and/or any of the 

ASSIGNEE DEFENDANTS charged, contracted for and/or received from the HARRISES was 

an illegal settlement charge, in violation of Missouri's Second Mortgage Loans Act (§408.233.1 

Mo. Rev. Stat. et seq.), in that, among other things, (a) any or all of these fees exceeded that 

which PREFERRED CREDIT could lawfully contract for, charge, and/or receive; and/or (b) 
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PREFERRED CREDIT was prohibited by §408.233.1 from charging, contracting for, and/or 

receiving from the HARRISES any mortgage broker fee, loan processing, underwriting, 

administration/document, review/signing, and processing fees. 

115. Since September 1997, the HARRISES have made all of the monthly payments 

due under their second mortgage loan, paying the same to PREFERRED CREDIT and/or any one 

or more ASSIGNEE DEFENDANTS that purchased and/or acquired the loan, and/or that 

serviced and handled the loan as an agent on behalf of others, including but not limited to 

DEFENDANTS IMPAC FUND1NG CORPORATION, IMPAC SECURED ASSETS 

CORPORATION, IMPAC SECURED ASSETS CMN TRUST SERIES 1998-1, WENDOVER 

FINANCIAL SERVICES, and DEUTSCHE BANK NATIONAL TRUST COMPANY (f/k/a 

BANKERS TRUST COMPANY OF CALIFORNIA, NA and WTC, its co-trustees. 

1 t 6. The HARRISES continue to make monthly payments on their loan to this day and 

the ASSIGNEE DEFENDANTS that purchased and/or acquired the loan, and/or that serviced 

and handled the loan as an agent on behalf of others, continue to charge and receive the monthly 

payments. 

117. The second mortgage loan that PREFERRED CREDIT made to the HARRISES 

and which any one or more of the ASSIGNEE DEFENDANTS purchased and received by 

assignment from PREFERRED CREDIT or an intervening purchaser-assignee was a ""high-cost" 

mortgage within the meaning of 15 U.S.C. § 1602(aa) in that the Annual Percentage Rate (APR) 

for the loan and/or the total points and fees payable by the HARRISES at or before closing met 

the applicable APR and/or Points and Fees Triggers. 

The Parvin Second Mortgage Loan 

118. On or about June 11, 1997, PREFERRED CREDIT loaned PARVIN $20,000.00, 
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to be repaid with interest at the yearly rate of 13.99% in consecutive monthly installments over a 

period of 15 years. 

119. The 13.99% rate charged was a lawful rate permitted in §408.232.1, but it was 

otherwise "unlawful" without regard to the rate permitted in §408.232.1. The Annual Percentage 

Rate (APR) for the loan was i 5.06%. 

120. To secure repayment of his note, PARVIN was required to and did execute a deed 

of trust for the benefit of PREFERRED CREDIT. The deed of trust granted PREFERRED 

CREDIT a security lien in residential real estate as defined at §408.231 Mo. Rev. Stat. and was 

subject to one or more prior mortgage loans. 

121. In connection with this Second Mortgage Loan, PREFERRED CREDIT charged 

the following fees payable at closing and each of which was an illegal settlement charge, in 

violation of Missouri's Second Mortgage Loans Act (§408.231.1 Mo. Rev. Stat.): 

Mortgage Broker Fee 
Document Fee to PREFERRED CREDIT 
Loan Processing Fee to PREFERRED CREDIT 
Underwriting Fee to PREFERRED CREDIT 
Sub-Escrow/UPS/Application Fee 
Processing/Administration Fee 
Signing Fee to PREFERRED CREDIT 

$ 400.00 
125.00 
395.00 
125.00 
190.00 

1,488.42 
150.00 

122. PARVIN incurred these fees when the loan was funded by financing such over the 

life of the loan, as evidenced by the fact that such charges were included in the principal balance 

of the note. 

123. At some point after PREFERRED CREDIT made the above second mortgage loan 

to PARVIN, the loan was subsequently sold and assigned to and/or serviced by one or more of 

the other ASSIGNEE DEFENDANTS. 

124. Any or all of the above fees that PREFERRED CREDIT and/or any of the 
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ASSIGNEE DEFENDANTS charged, contracted for and/or received from PARVIN was an 

illegal settlement charge, in violation of Missouri's Second Mortgage Loans Act (§408.233.1 Mo. 

Rev. Stat. et seq.), in that, among other things, (a) any or all of these fees exceeded that which 

PREFERRED CREDIT could lawfully contract for, charge, and/or receive; and/or (b) 

PREFERRED CREDIT was prohibited by §408.233.1 from charging, contracting •'-• •, and/or 

receiving from PARVIN any document signing fee. 

125. Since September 1997, PARVIN has made all of the monthly payments due under 

his second mortgage loan, paying the same to PREFERRED CREDIT and/or to any one or more 

ASSIGNEE DEFENDANTS that purchased and/or acquired the loan, and/or that serviced and 

handled the loan as an agent on behalf of others, including but not limited to DEFENDANTS 

IMPAC FUNDING CORPORATION, IMPAC MORTGAGE HOLDINGS, INC., IMPAC 

MORTAGE HOLDINGS ASSET CORPORATION, IMPAC CMB TRUST SERIES 2000-1 and 

2003-5, COUNTRYWIDE HOME LOANS, INC., and DEUTSCHE BANK NATIONAL 

TRUST COMPANY (f/k/a BANKERS TRUST COMPANY OF CALIFORNIA), 

DEUTSCHE BANK TRUST COMPANY AMERICAS (f/k/a BANKERS TRUST 

COMPANY) and WELLS FARGO BANK N.A. (f/k/a WELLS FARGO BANK, MN, N.A. its 

co-trustees. 

126. PARVIN continues to make monthly payments on his loan to this day and the 

ASSIGNEE DEFENDANTS that purchased and/or acquired the loan, and/or that serviced and 

handled the loan as an agent on behalf of others, continue to charge and receive the monthly 

payments. 

127. 

which 

The second mortgage loan that PREFERRED CREDIT made to PARVIN and 

any one or more of the ASSIGNEE DEFENDANTS purchased and received by 
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assignment from PREFERRED CREDIT or an intervening purchaser-assignee was a "high-cost" 

mortgage within the meaning of 15 U.S.C. § 1602(aa) in that the Annual Percentage Rate (APR) 

for the loan and/or the total points and fees payable by PARVIN at or before closing met the 

applicable APR and/or Points and Fees Triggers. 

The Varns Second Mortgage Loan 

128. On or about August 28, 1997, PREFERRED CREDIT loaned the VARNSES 

$34,000.00, to be repaid with interest at the yearly rate of 12.5% in consecutive monthly 

installments over a period of 15 years. 

129. The 12.5% rate charged was a lawful rate permitted in §408.232.1, but it was 

otherwise "unlawful" without regard to the rate permitted in §408.232.1. The Annual Percentage 

Rate (APR) for the loan was 14.635%. 

130. To secure repayment of their note, the VARNSES were required to and did 

execute a deed of trust for the benefit of PREFERRED CREDIT. The deed of trust granted 

PREFERRED CREDIT a security lien in residential real estate as defined at §408.231 Mo. Rev. 

Stat. and was subject to one or more prior mortgage loans. 

131. In connection with this Second Mortgage Loan, PREFERRED CREDIT charged 

the following fees payable at closing and each of which was an illegal settlement charge, in 

violation of Missouri's Second Mortgage Loans Act (§408.231.1 Mo. Rev. Stato): 

Origination Fee to PREFERRED CREDIT 
Loan Processing Fee to PREFERRED CREDIT 
Underwriting Fee to PREFERRED CREDIT 
Administration Fee/Document Fee to PREFERRED CREDIT 
Appraisal Fee PREFERRED CREDIT 
Review/Signing Fees to PREFERRED CREDIT 

$2,600.00 
395.00 
125.00 
500.00 
60.00 

200.00 
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132. The VARNSES incurred these fees when the loan was funded by financing such 

over the life of the loan, as evidenced by the fact that such charges were included in the principal 

balance of the note. 

133. At some point after PREFERRED CREDIT made the above second mortgage loan 

to the VARNSES, the loan was subsequently sold and assigned to and/or serviced by one or more 

of the other ASSIGNEE DEFENDANTS. 

134. Any or all of the above fees that PREFERRED CREDIT and/or any of the 

ASSIGNEE DEFENDANTS charged, contracted for and/or received from the VARNSES was an 

illegal settlement charge, in violation of Missouri's Second Mortgage Loans Act (§408.233.1 Mo. 

Rev. Stat. et seq.), in that, among other things, (a) the loan origination fee exceeded that which 

PREFERRED CREDIT could lawfully contract for, charge, and/or receive; and/or (b) 

PREFERRED CREDIT was prohibited by §408.233.1 from charging, contracting for, and/or 

receiving from the VARNSES any document signing fees. 

135. Since September 1997, the VARNSES have made all of the monthly payments 

due under their second mortgage loan, paying the same to PREFERRED CREDIT and/or to any 

one or more ASSIGNEE DEFENDANTS that purchased and/or acquired the loan, and/or that 

serviced and handled the loan as an agent on behalf of others, including but not limited to 

DEFENDANTS U.S. BANK, NATIONAL ASSOCIATION ND, LITTON LOAN SERVICING 

and DEUTSCHE BANK NATIONAL TRUST COMPANY (f/k/a BANKERS TRUST 

COMPANY OF CALIFORNIA), DEUTSCHE BANK TRUST COMPANY AMERICAS 

(f/k/a BANKERS TRUST COMPANY) and U.S. BANK, NATIONAL ASSOCIATION, its 

co-trustees. 

136. The VARNSES continue to make monthly payments on their loan to this day and 
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the ASSIGNEE DEFENDANTS that purchased and/or acquired the loan, and/or that serviced 

and handled the loan as an agent on behalf of others, continue to chm'ge and receive the monthly 

payments. 

137. The second mortgage loan that PREFERRED CREDIT made to the VARNSES 

and which any one or more of the ASSIGNEE DEFENDANTS purchased and received by 

assignment from PREFERRED CREDIT or an intervening purchaser-assignee was a "high-cost" 

mortgage within the meaning of 15 U.S.C. § 1602(aa) in that the Annual Percentage Rate (APR) 

for the loan and/or the total points and fees payable by the VARNSES at or before closing met 

the applicable APR and/or Points and Fees Triggers. 

The Shipman Second Mortgage Loan 

138. On or about July 14, 1997, PREFERRED CREDIT loaned the SHIPMANS 

$35,000.00, to be repaid with interest at the yearly rate of 14.75% in consecutive monthly 

installments over a period of twenty (20) years. 

139. The 14.75% rate charged was a lawful rate permitted in § 408.232.1, but was 

otherwise "unlawful" without regard to the rate permitted in § 408.232.1. 

140. To secure repayment of their note, the SHIPMANS were required to and did 

execute a deed of trust for the benefit of PREFERRED CREDIT. The deed of trust granted 

PREFERRED CREDIT a security lien in residential real estate as defined at § 408.231 Mo. Rev. 

Stat. and was subject to one or more prior mortgage loans. 

141. In connection with this Second Mortgage Loan, PREFERRED CREDIT charged, 

contracted for and/or received the following fees, each of which was an illegal settlement charge, 

in violation of Missouri's Second Mortgage Loans Act (§ 408.231.1 Mo. Rev. Stat.), including 

but not limited to: 
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Mortgage Broker Fee 
Document Preparation Fee to PREFERRED CREDIT 
Loan Processing Fee to PREFERRED CREDIT 
Underwriting Fee to PREFERRED CREDIT 

$ 315.00 
125.00 
395.00 
125.00 

142. The SHIPMANS incurred these fees when the loan was funded by financing such 

over the life of the loan, as evidenced by the fact that such charges were included in the principal 

balance of the note. 

143. At some point after PREFERRED CREDIT made the above second mortgage loan 

to the SHIPMANS, the loan was subsequently sold and assigned to and/or serviced by one or 

more of the other ASSIGNEE DEFENDANTS. 

144. Any or all of the above fees that PREFERRED CREDIT and/or any of the 

ASSIGNEE DEFENDANTS charged, contracted for and/or received from the SHIPMANS was 

an illegal settlement charge, in violation of Missouri's Second Mortgage Loans Act (§ 408.231.1 

Mo. Rev. Stat.), in that, among other things, PREFERRED CREDIT was prohibited by § 

408.231.3 from charging, contracting for, and/or receiving from the SHIPMANS any of the stated 

fees. 

145, The SHIPMANS made monthly payments due under their second mortgage loan, 

paying the same to PREFERRED CREDIT and/or to any one or more ASSIGNEE 

DEFENDANTS that purchased, acquired and/or serviced the loan, including but not limited to 

SOVEREIGN BANK. 

146. The ASSIGNEE DEFENDANTS that purchased, acquired and/or serviced the 

loan continued to charge and receive the monthly payments. 

147. Upon information and belief, the second mortgage loan that PREFERRED 

CREDIT made to the SHIPMANS and which any one or more of the ASSIGNEE 
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DEFENDANTS purchased and received by assignment from PREFERRED CREDIT or an 

intervening purchaser-assignee was a "high-cost" mortgage within the meaning of 15 U.S.C. § 

1602(aa) in that the Annual Percentage Rate (APR) for the loan and/or the total points and fees 

payable by the SHIPMANS at or before closing met the applicable APR and/or Points and Fees 

Triggers. 

The Jones Second Mortgage Loan 

148. On or about September 9, 1997, PREFERRED CREDIT loaned the JONESES 

$55,000.00, to be repaid with interest at the yearly rate of 12.99% in consecutive monthly 

installments over a period of fifteen (15) years. 

149. The 12.99% rate charged was a lawful rate permitted in § 408.232.1, but was 

otherwise "unlawful" without regard to the rate permitted in § 408.232.1. 

150. To secure repayment of their note, the JONESES were required to and did execute 

a deed of trust for the benefit of PREFERRED CREDIT. The deed of trust granted 

PREFERRED CREDIT a security lien in residential real estate as defined at § 408.231 Mo. Rev. 

Stat. and was subject to one or more prior mortgage loans. 

151. Upon information and belief, and based upon the loan fees that PREFERRED 

CREDIT typically charged, contracted for and/or received in connection with Missouri Second 

Mortgage Loans, in connection with this Second Mortgage Loan, PREFERRED CREDIT 

charged, contracted for and/or received various loan fees from the JONESES. 

152. The JONSES incurred these fees when the loan was funded by financing such 

over the life of the loan, because, upon information and belief, and based upon the typical 

practice of PREFERRED CREDIT, such charges were included in the principal balance of the 

note. 
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153. At some point after PREFERRED CREDIT made the above second mortgage loan 

to the JONESES, the loan was subsequently sold and assigned to and/or serviced by one or more 

of the other ASSIGNEE DEFENDANTS. 

154. Upon information and belief, and based upon the loan fees that PREFERRED 

CREDIT typically charged, contracted for and/or received in connection with Missouri Second 

Mortgage Loans, PREFERRED CREDIT and/or any ofthe ASSIGNEE DEFENDANTS charged, 

contracted for and/or received fees from the JONESES that were illegal settlement charges, in 

violation of Missouri's Second Mortgage Loans Act (§ 408.231.1 Mo. Rev. Stato). 

155. The JONESES made monthly payments due under their second mortgage loan, 

paying the same to PREFERRED CREDIT and/or to any one or more ASSIGNEE 

DEFENDANTS that purchased, acquired and/or serviced the loan, including but not limited to 

Empire Funding Home Loan Owner Trust 1998-1 and Empire Funding Grantor Trust 1998-1. 

156. The ASSIGNEE DEFENDANTS that purchased, acquired and/or serviced the 

loan continued to charge and receive the monthly payments. 

157. Upon information and belief, the second mortgage loan that PREFERRED 

CREDIT made to the JONESES and which any one or more of the ASSIGNEE DEFENDANTS 

purchased and received by assignment from PREFERRED CREDIT or an intervening purchaser- 

assignee was a "high-cost" mortgage within the meaning of 15 U.S.C. § 1602(aa) in that the 

Annual Percentage Rate (APR) for the loan and/or the total points and fees payable by the 

JONESES at or before closing met the applicable APR and/or Points and Fees Triggers. 

The James Second Mortgage Loan 

158. On or about August 7, 1997, PREFERRED CREDIT loaned the JAMESES 

$55,000.00, to be repaid with interest at the yearly rate of 13.99% in consecutive monthly 
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installments over a period of fifteen (15) years. 

159. The 13.99% rate charged was a lawful rate permitted in § 408.232.1, but was 

otherwise "unlawful" without regard to the rate permitted in § 408.232.1. 

160. To secure repayment of their note, the JAMESES were required to and did 

execute a deed of trust for the benefit of PREFERRED CREDIT. The deed of trust granted 

PREFERRED CREDIT a security lien in residential real estate as defined at § 408.231 Mo. Rev. 

Stat. and was subject to one or more prior mortgage loans. 

161. Upon information and belief, and based upon the loan fees that PREFERRED 

CREDIT typically charged, contracted for and/or received in connection with Missouri Second 

Mortgage Loans, in connection with this Second Mortgage Loan, PREFERRED CREDIT 

charged, contracted for and/or received various loan fees from the JAMESES. 

162. The JAMESES incurred these fees when the loan was funded by financing such 

over the life of the loan, because, upon information and belief, and based upon the typical 

practice of PREFERRED CREDIT, such charges were included in the principal balance of the 

note. 

163. At some point after PREFERRED CREDIT made the above second mortgage loan 

to the JAMESES, the loan was subsequently sold and assigned to and/or serviced by one or more 

of the other ASSIGNEE DEFENDANTS. 

164. Upon information and belief, and based upon the loan fees that PREFERRED 

CREDIT typically charged, contracted for and/or received in connection with Missouri Second 

Mortgage Loans, PREFERRED CREDIT and/or any of the ASSIGNEE DEFENDANTS charged, 

contracted for and/or received fees from the JAMESES that were illegal settlement charges, in 

violation of Missouri's Second Mortgage Loans Act (§ 408.231.1 Mo. Rev. Stat.). 
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165. The JAMESES made monthly payments due under their second mortgage loan, 

paying the same to PREFERRED CREDIT and/or to any one or more ASSIGNEE 

DEFENDANTS that purchased, acquired and/or serviced the loan, including but not limited to 

Empire Funding Home Loan Owner Trust 1999-1 and Empire Funding Grantor Trust 1999-1. 

166. The ASSIGNEE DEFENDANTS that purchased, acquired and/or serviced the 

loan continued to charge and receive the monthly payments. 

167. Upon information and belief, the second mortgage loan that PREFERRED 

CREDIT made to the JAMESES and which any one or more of the ASSIGNEE DEFENDANTS 

purchased and received by assignment from PREFERRED CREDIT or an intervening purchaser- 

assignee was a "high-cost" mortgage within the meaning of 15 U.S.C. § 1602(aa) in that the 

Annual Percentage Rate (APR) for the loan and/or the total points and fee's payable by the 

JAMESES at or before closing met the applicable APR and/or Points and Fees Triggers. 

The Schaefer Second Mortgage Loan 

168. PREFERRED CREDIT loaned the SCHAEFERS money, to be repaid with 

interest in consecutive monthly installments over a period of time. 

169. Upon information and belief, the interest rate charged was a lawful rate permitted 

in § 408.232.1, but was otherwise "unlawful" without regard to the rate permitted in § 408.232.1. 

170. Upon information and belief, to secure repayment of their note, the SCHAEFERS 

were required to and did execute a deed of trust for the benefit of PREFERRED CREDIT. The 

deed of trust granted PREFERRED CREDIT a security lien in residential real estate as defined at 

§ 408.231 Mo. Rev. Stat. and •vas subject to one or more prior mortgage loans. 

171. Upon information and belief, and based upon the loan fees that PREFERRED 

CREDIT typically charged, contracted for and/or received in connection with Missouri Second 
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Mortgage Loans, in connection with this Second Mortgage Loan, PREFERRED CREDIT 

charged, contracted for and/or received various loan fees from the SCHAEFERS. 

172. The SCHAEFERS incurred these fees when the loan was funded by financing 

such over the life of the loan, because, upon information and belief, and based upon the typical 

practice of PREFERRED CREDIT, such charges were incl-aded in the principal balance of the 

note. 

173. At some point after PREFERRED CREDIT made the above second mortgage loan 

to the SCHAEFERS, the loan was subsequently sold and assigned to and/or serviced by one or 

more of the other ASSIGNEE DEFENDANTS. 

174. Upon information and belief, and based upon the loan fees that PREFERRED 

CREDIT typically charged, contracted for and/or received in connection with Missouri Second 

Mortgage Loans, PREFERRED CREDIT and/or any of the ASSIGNEE DEFENDANTS charged, 

contracted for and/or received fees from the SCHAEFERS that were illegal settlement charges, in 

violation of Missouri's Second Mortgage Loans Act (§ 408.231.1 Mo. Rev. Stat.). 

175. The SCHAEFERS made monthly payments due under their second mortgage 

loan, paying the same to PREFERRED CREDIT and/or to any one or more ASSIGNEE 

DEFENDANTS that purchased, acquired and/or serviced the loan, including but not limited to 

PREFERRED MORTGAGE TRUST 1996-1 and CHASE HOME FINANCE LLC. 

176. The ASSIGNEE DEFENDANTS that purchased, acquired and/or serviced the 

loan continued to charge and receive the monthly payments. 

177. Upon information and belief, the second mortgage loan that PREFERRED 

CREDIT made to the SCHAEFERS and which any one or more of the ASSIGNEE 

DEFENDANTS purchased and received by assignment from PREFERRED CREDIT or an 
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intervening purchaser-assignee was a "high-cost" mortgage within the meaning of 15 U.S.C. § 

1602(aa) in that the Annual Percentage Rate (APR) for the loan and/or the total points and fees 

payable by the SCHAEFERS at or before c!osing met the applicable APR and/or Points and Fees 

Triggers. 

The Warkentien Second Mortgage Loan 

178. Upon information and belief, on or about January 20, 1997, PREFERRED 

CREDIT loaned the WARKENTIENS $35,000.00, to be repaid with interest in consecutive 

monthly installments over a period of time. 

179. Upon information and belief, the interest rate charged was a lawful rate permitted 

in § 408.232.1, but was otherwise "unlawful" without regard to the rate permitted in § 408.232.1. 

180. Upon information and belief, to secure repayment of their note, the 

WARKENTIENS were required to and did execute a deed of trust for the benefit of 

PREFERRED CREDIT. The deed of trust granted PREFERRED CREDIT a security lien in 

residential real estate as defined at § 408.231 Mo. Rev. Stat. and was subject to one or more prior 

mortgage loans. 

181. Upon information and belief, and based upon the loan fees that PREFERRED 

CREDIT typically charged, contracted for and/or received in connection with Missouri Second 

Mortgage Loans, in connection with this Second Mortgage Loan, PREFERRED CREDIT 

charged, contracted for and/or received various loan fees from the WARKENTIENS. 

182. The WARKENTIENS incurred these fees when the loan was funded by financing 

such over the life of the loan, because upon information and belief, and based upon the typical 

practice of PREFERRED CREDIT, such charges were included in the principal balance of the 

note. 
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183. At some point after PREFERRED CREDIT made the above second mortgage loan 

to the WARKENTIENS, the loan was subsequently sold and assigned to and/or serviced by one 

or more of the other ASSIGNEE DEFENDANTS. 

184. Upon information and belief, and based upon the loan fees that PREFERRED 

CREDIT typically charged, contracted for and/or received in connection wifla Missouri Second 

Mortgage Loans, PREFERRED CREDIT and/or any of the ASSIGNEE DEFENDANTS charged, 

contracted for and/or received fees from the WARKENTIENS that were illegal settlement 

charges, in violation of Missouri's Second Mortgage Loans Act (§ 408.231.1 Mo. Rev. Stat.). 

185. The WARKENTIENS made monthly payments due under their second mortgage 

loan, paying the same to PREFERRED CREDIT and/or to any one or more ASSIGNEE 

DEFENDANTS that purchased, acquired and/or serviced the loan, including but not limited to 

Preferred Mortgage Trust 1996-2 and Chase Home Finance LLC. 

186. The ASSIGNEE DEFENDANTS that purchased, acquired and/or serviced the 

loan continued to charge and receive the monthly payments. 

187. Upon information and belief, the second mortgage loan that PREFERRED 

CREDIT made to the WARKENTIENS and which any one or more of the ASSIGNEE 

DEFENDANTS purchased and received by assignment from PREFERRED CREDIT or an 

intervening purchaser-assignee was a "high-cost" mortgage within the meaning of 15 U.S.C. § 

1602(aa) in that the Annual Percentage Rate (APR) for the loan and/or the total points and fees 

payable by the WARKENTIENS at or before closing met the applicable APR and/or Points and 

Fees Triggers. 

The Rumans Second Mortgage Loan 

188. On or about February 24, 1997, PREFERRED CREDIT loaned the RUMANS 

46 

Case 4:10-cv-00189-ODS   Document 258   Filed 04/25/11   Page 46 of 73



$50,000.00, to be repaid with interest at the yearly rate of 14.99% in consecutive monthly 

installments over a period of fifteen (15) years. 

189. The 14.99% rate charged was a lawful rate permitted in § 408.232.1, but was 

otherwise "unlawful" without regard to the rate permitted in § 408.232.1. 

190. To secure repayment of their note, the RUMANS were required to and did 

execute a deed of trust for the benefit of PREFERRED CREDIT. The deed of trust granted 

PREFERRED CREDIT a security lien in residential real estate as defined at § 408.231 Mo. Rev. 

Stat. and was subject to one or more prior mortgage loans. 

191. In connection with this Second Mortgage Loan, PREFERRED CREDIT charged, 

contracted for and/or received the following fees, each of which was an illegal settlement charge, 

in violation of Missouri's Second Mortgage Loans Act (§ 408.231.1 Mo. Rev. Stat.), including 

but not limited to: 

Mortgage Broker Fee 
Document Preparation Fee to PREFERRED CREDIT 
Loan Processing Fee to PREFERRED CREDIT 
Underwriting Fee to PREFERRED CREDIT 
Sub-Escrow/UPS/Application Fee 
Doc Signing Fee to PREFERRED CREDIT 
Processing Fee to PREFERRED CREDIT 

$5,000.00 
125.00 
395.00 
125.00 
190.00 
175.00 
295.00 

192. The RUMANS incurred these fees when the loan was funded by financing such 

over the life of the loan, as evidenced by the fact that such charges were included in the principal 

balance of the note. 

193. At some point after PREFERRED CREDIT made the above second mortgage loan 

to the RUMANS, the loan was subsequently sold and assigned to and/or serviced by one or more 

of the other ASSIGNEE DEFENDANTS. 

194. Any or all of the above fees that PREFERRED CREDIT and/or any of the 
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ASSIGNEE DEFENDANTS charged, contracted for and/or received from the RUMANS was an 

illegal settlement charge, in violation of Missouri's Second Mortgage Loans Act (§ 408.231.1 

Mo. Rev. Stat.), in that, among other things, PREFERRED CREDIT was prohibited by § 

408.231.3 from charging, contracting for, and/or receiving from the RUMANS any of the stated 

fees. 

195. The RUMANS made monthly payments due under their second mortgage loan, 

paying the same to PREFERRED CREDIT and/or to any one or more ASSIGNEE 

DEFENDANTS that purchased, acquired and/or serviced the loan, including but not limited to 

Credit-Suisse First Boston Mortgage Securities Corp., Preferred Credit Trust 1997-1, and Chase 

Home Finance LLC. 

196. The ASSIGNEE DEFENDANTS that purchased, acquired and/or serviced the 

loan continued to charge and receive the monthly payments. 

197. Upon information and belief, the second mortgage loan that PREFERRED 

CREDIT made to the RUMANS and which any one or more of the ASSIGNEE DEFENDANTS 

purchased and received by assignment from PREFERRED CREDIT or an intervening purchaser- 

assignee was a "high-cost" mortgage within the meaning of 15 U.S.C. § 1602(aa) in that the 

Annual Percentage Rate (APR) for the loan and/or the total points and fees payable by the 

RUMANS at or before closing met the applicable APR and/or Points and Fees Triggers. 

The Worthy Second Mortgage Loan 

198. On or about July 14, 1997, PREFERRED CREDIT loaned WORTHY $45,000.00, 

to be repaid with interest at the yearly rate of 13.99% in consecutive monthly installments over a 

period of twenty (20) years. 

199. The 13.99% rate charged was a lawful rate permitted in § 408.232.1, but was 
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otherwise "unlawful" without regard to the rate permitted in § 408.232.1. 

200. To secure repayment of her note, WORTHY was required to and did execute a 

deed of trust for the benefit of PREFERRED CREDIT. The deed of trust granted PREFERRED 

CREDIT a security lien in residential real estate as defined at § 408.231 Mo. Rev. Stat. and was 

subject to one or more prior mortgage loans. 

201. In connection with this Second Mortgage Loan, PREFERRED CREDIT charged, 

contracted for and/or received the following fees, each of which was an illegal settlement charge, 

in violation of Missouri's Second Mortgage Loans Act (§ 408.231.1 Mo. Rev. Stat.), including 

but not limited to: 

Mortgage Broker Fee 
Document Preparation Fee 
Loan Processing Fee 
Underwriting Fee 
Sub Escrow Fee 

$ 900.00 
$ 125.00 
$ 395.00 
$ 125.00 
$ 375.00 

202. WORTHY incurred these fees when the loan was funded by financing such over 

the life of the loan, as evidenced by the fact that such charges were included in the principal 

balance of the note. 

203. At some point after PREFERRED CREDIT made the above second mortgage loan 

to WORTHY, the loan was subsequently sold and assigned to and/or serviced by one or more of 

the other ASSIGNEE DEFENDANTS. 

204. Any or all of the above fees that PREFERRED CREDIT and/or any of the 

ASSIGNEE DEFENDANTS charged, contracted for and/or received from WORTHY was an 

illegal settlement charge, in violation of Missouri's Second Mortgage Loans Act (§ 408.231.1 

Mo. Rev. Stat.), in that, among other things, PREFERRED CREDIT was prohibited by § 

408.231.3 from charging, contracting for, and/or receiving from WORTHY any of the stated fees. 
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205. WORTHY made monthly payments due under her second mortgage loan, paying 

the same to PREFERRED CREDIT and/or to any one or more ASSIGNEE DEFENDANTS that 

purchased, acquired and/or serviced the loan, including but not limited to IMPAC FUND1NG 

CORPORATION, IMPAC MORTGAGE HOLDINGS, INC., IMPAC MORTGAGE 

HOLDINGS ASSET CORP., iMPAC CMB TRUST SERIES i999-2, AND IMPAC CMB 

TRUST SERIES 2003-5. 

206. The ASSIGNEE DEFENDANTS that purchased, acquired and/or serviced the 

loan continued to charge and receive the monthly payments. 

207. Upon information and belief, the second mortgage loan that PREFERRED 

CREDIT made to WORTHY and which any one or more of the ASSIGNEE DEFENDANTS 

purchased and received by assignment from PREFERRED CREDIT or an intervening purchaser- 

assignee was a "high-cost" mortgage within the meaning of 15 U.S.C. § 1602(aa) in that the 

Annual Percentage Rate (APR) for the loan and/or the total points and fees payable by WORTHY 

at or before closing met the applicable APR and/or Points and Fees Triggers. 

The Rockett Second Mortgage Loan 

208. Upon information and belief, on or about June 25, 1997, PREFERRED CREDIT 

loaned the ROCKETTS $30,000.00, to be repaid with interest at the yearly rate of 12.99% in 

consecutive monthly installments over a period often (10) years. 

209. The 12.99% rate charged was a lawful rate permitted in § 408.232.1, but was 

otherwise "unlawful" without regard to the rate permitted in § 408.232.1. 

210. Upon information and belief, to secure repayment of their note, the ROCKETTS 

were required to and did execute a deed of trust for the benefit of PREFERRED CREDIT. The 

deed of trust granted PREFERRED CREDIT a security lien in residential real estate as defined at 
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§ 408.231 Mo. Rev. Stat. and was subject to one or more prior mortgage loans. 

211. Upon information and belief, and based upon the loan fees that PREFERRED 

CREDIT typically charged, contracted for and/or received in connection with Missouri Second 

Mortgage Loans, in connection with this Second Mortgage Loan, PREFERRED CREDIT 

charged, contracted for and/or received various fees from the ROCKETTS. 

212. The ROCKETTS incurred these fees when the loan was funded by financing such 

over the life of the loan, because upon information and belief, and based upon the typical practice 

of PREFERRED CREDIT, such charges were included in the principal balance of the note. 

213. At some point after PREFERRED CREDIT made the above second mortgage loan 

to the ROCKETTS, the loan was subsequently sold and assigned to and/or serviced by one or 

more of the other ASSIGNEE DEFENDANTS. 

214. Upon information and belief, and based upon the loan fees that PREFERRED 

CREDIT typically charged, contracted for and/or received in connection with Missouri Second 

Mortgage Loans, PREFERRED CREDIT and/or any of the ASSIGNEE DEFENDANTS charged, 

contracted for and/or received fees from the ROCKETTS that were illegal settlement charges, in 

violation of Missouri's Second Mortgage Loans Act (§ 408.231.1 Mo. Rev. Stat.). 

215. The ROCKETTS made monthly payments due under their second mortgage loan, 

paying the same to PREFERRED CREDIT and/or to any one or more ASSIGNEE 

DEFENDANTS that purchased, acquired and/or serviced the loan, including but not limited to 

IMPAC FUNDING CORPORATION, IMPAC MORTGAGE HOLDINGS, INC., IMPAC 

MORTGAGE HOLDINGS ASSET CORP., IMPAC CMB TRUST SERIES 2000-2, AND 

WENDOVER FINANCIAL SERVICES. 

216. The ASSIGNEE DEFENDANTS that purchased, acquired and/or serviced the 
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loan continued to charge and receive the monthly payments. 

217. Upon information and belief, the second mortgage loan that PREFERRED 

CREDIT made to the ROCKETTS and which any one or more of the ASSIGNEE 

DEFENDANTS purchased and received by assignment from PREFERRED CREDIT or an 

intervening purchaser-assignee was a "high-cost" mortgage within the meaning of i5 U.S.C. § 

1602(aa) in that the Annual Percentage Rate (APR) for the loan and/or the total points and fees 

payable by the ROCKETTS at or before closing met the applicable APR and/or Points and Fees 

Triggers. 

The Hudson Second Mortgage Loan 

218. On or about August 29, 1997, PREFERRED CREDIT loaned the HUDSONS 

$44,500.00, to be repaid with interest at the yearly rate of 12.99% in consecutive monthly 

installments over a period of ten (10) years. 

219. The 12.99% rate charged was a lawful rate permitted in § 408.232.1, but was 

otherwise "unlawful" without regard to the rate permitted in § 408.232.1. 

220. To secure repayment of their note, the HUDSONS were required to and did 

execute a deed of trust for the benefit of PREFERRED CREDIT. The deed of trust granted 

PREFERRED CREDIT a security lien in residential real estate as defined at § 408.231 Mo. Rev. 

Star. and was subject to one or more prior mortgage loans. 

221. In connection with this Second Mortgage Loan, PREFERRED CREDIT charged, 

contracted for and/or received the following fees, each of which was an illegal settlement charge, 

in violation of Missouri's Second Mortgage Loans Act (§ 408.231.1 Mo. Rev. Stat.), including 

but not limited to: 

Loan Processing Fee to PREFERRED CREDIT $ 395.00 
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Underwriting Fee to PREFERRED CREDIT 
Administration Fee to PREFERRED CREDIT 
Origination Fee to PREFERRED CREDIT 
Loan Doc Fee to PREFERRED CREDIT 
Signing/Review Fee to PREFERRED CREDIT 

$ 125.00 
$ 375.00 
$3,560.00 
$ 125.00 
$ 210.00 

222. The HUDSONS incurred these fees when the loan was funded by financing such 

over the life of the loan, as evidenced by the fact that such charges were included in the principal 

balance of the note. 

223. At some point after PREFERRED CREDIT made the above second mortgage loan 

to the HUDSONS, the loan was subsequently sold and assigned to and/or serviced by one or 

more of the other ASSIGNEE DEFENDANTS. 

224. Any or all of the above fees that PREFERRED CREDIT and/or any of the 

ASSIGNEE DEFENDANTS charged, contracted for and/or received from the HUDSONS was 

an illegal settlement charge, in violation of Missouri's Second Mortgage Loans Act (§ 408.231.1 

Mo. Rev. Stat.), in that, among other things, PREFERRED CREDIT was prohibited by § 

408.231.3 from charging, contracting for, and/or receiving from the HUDSONS any of the stated 

fees. 

225. The HUDSONS made monthly payments due under their second mortgage loan, 

paying the same to PREFERRED CREDIT and/or to any one or more ASSIGNEE 

DEFENDANTS that purchased, acquired and/or serviced the loan, including but not limited to 

IMPAC FUNDING CORPORATION, IMPAC MORTGAGE HOLDINGS, INC., IMPAC 

MORTGAGE HOLDINGS ASSET CORP., IMPAC CMB TRUST SERIES 1999-1, AND 

IMPAC CMB TRUST SERIES 2001-4. 

226. The ASSIGNEE DEFENDANTS that purchased, acquired and/or serviced the 

loan continued to charge and receive the monthly payments. 
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227. Upon information and belief, the second mortgage loan that PREFERRED 

CREDIT made to the HUDSONS and which any one or more of the ASSIGNEE DEFENDANTS 

purchased and received by assignment from PREFERRED CREDIT or an intervening purchaser- 

assignee was a "high-cost" mortgage within the meaning of 15 U.S.C. § 1602(aa) in that the 

Annual Percentage Rate (APR) for the loan and/or the totai points and fees payable by the 

HUDSONS at or before closing met the applicable APR and/or Points and Fees Triggers. 

The Woodward Second Mortgage Loan 

228. On or about April 23, 1997, PREFERRED CREDIT loaned the WOODWARDS 

$50,000.00, to be repaid with interest at the yearly rate of 14.125% in consecutive monthly 

installments over a period of fifteen (15) years. 

229. The 14.125% rate charged was a lawful rate permitted in § 408.232.1, but was 

otherwise "unlawful" without regard to the rate permitted in § 408.232.1. 

230. To secure repayment of their note, the WOODWARDS were required to and did 

execute a deed of trust for the benefit of PREFERRED CREDIT. The deed of trust granted 

PREFERRED CREDIT a security lien in residential real estate as defined at § 408.231 Mo. Rev. 

Stat. and was subject to one or more prior mortgage loans. 

231. In connection with this Second Mortgage Loan, PREFERRED CREDIT charged, 

contracted for and/or received the following fees, each of which was an illegal settlement charge, 

in violation of Missouri's Second Mortgage Loans Act (§ 408.231.1 Mo. Rev. Stat.), including 

but not limited to: 

Mortgage Broker Fee 
Document Preparation Fee 
Loan Processing Fee to PREFERRED CREDIT 
Underwriting Fee 

$5,000.00 
150.00 
380.00 
175.00 
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232. The WOODWARDS incurred these fees when the loan was funded by financing 

such over the life of the loan, as evidenced by the fact that such charges were included in the 

principal balance of the note. 

233. At some point after PREFERRED CREDIT made the above second mortgage loan 

to the WOODWARDS, the loan was subsequently sold and assigned to and/or serviced by one or 

more of the other ASSIGNEE DEFENDANTS. 

234. Any or all of the above fees that PREFERRED CREDIT and/or any of the 

ASSIGNEE DEFENDANTS charged, contracted for and/or received from the WOODWARDS 

was an illegal settlement charge, in violation of Missouri's Second Mortgage Loans Act (§ 

408.231.1 Mo. Rev. Stat.), in that, among other things, PREFERRED CREDIT was prohibited by 

§ 408.231.3 from charging, contracting for, and/or receiving from the WOODWARDS any of the 

stated fees. 

235. The WOODWARDS made monthly payments due under their second mortgage 

loan, paying the same to PREFERRED CREDIT and/or to any one or more ASSIGNEE 

DEFENDANTS that purchased, acquired and/or serviced the loan, including but not limited to 

IMPAC FUNDING CORPORATION and IMPAC CMB TRUST SERIES 2002-1. 

236. The ASSIGNEE DEFENDANTS that purchased, acquired and/or serviced the 

loan continued to charge and receive the monthly payments. 

237. Upon information and belief, the second mortgage loan that PREFERRED 

CREDIT made to the WOODWARDS and which any one or more of the ASSIGNEE 

DEFENDANTS purchased and received by assignment from PREFERRED CREDIT or an 

intervening purchaser-assignee was a "high-cost" mortgage within the meaning of 15 U.S.C. § 

1602(aa) in that the Annual Percentage Rate (APR) for the loan and/or the total points and fees 
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payable by the WOODWARDS at or before closing met the applicable APR and/or Points and 

Fees Triggers. 

The Weathersby Second Mortgage Loan 

238. Upon information and belief, on or about September 8, 1997, PREFERRED 

CREDIT loaned WEATHERSBY $52,000.00, to be repaid with interest in consecutive monthly 

installments over a period of time. 

239. Upon information and belief, the interest rate charged was a lawful rate permitted 

in § 408.232.1, but was otherwise "unlawful" without regard to the rate permitted in § 408.232.1. 

240. Upon information and belief, to secure repayment of his note, WEATHERSBY 

was required to and did execute a deed of trust for the benefit of PREFERRED CREDIT. The 

deed of trust granted PREFERRED CREDIT a security lien in residential real estate as defined at 

§ 408.231 Mo. Rev. Stat. and was subject to one or more prior mortgage loans. 

241. Upon information and belief, and based upon the loan fees that PREFERRED 

CREDIT typically charged, contracted for and/or received in connection with Missouri Second 

Mortgage Loans, in connection with this Second Mortgage Loan, PREFERRED CREDIT 

charged, contracted for and/or received various loan fees from WEATHERSBY. 

242. WEATHERSBY incurred these fees when the loan was funded by financing such 

over the life of the loan, because upon information and belief, and based upon the typical practice 

of PREFERRED CREDIT, such charges were included in the principal balance of the note. 

243. At some point after PREFERRED CREDIT made the above second mortgage loan 

to WEATHERSBY, the loan was subsequently sold and assigned to and/or serviced by one or 

more of the other ASSIGNEE DEFENDANTS. 

244. Upon information and belief, and based upon the loan fees that PREFERRED 
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CREDIT typically charged, contracted for and/or received in connection with Missouri Second 

Mortgage Loans, PREFERRED CREDIT and/or any of the ASSIGNEE DEFENDANTS charged, 

contracted for and/or received fees fi'om WEATHERSBY that were illegal settlement charges, in 

violation of Missouri's Second Mortgage Loans Act (§ 408.231.1 Mo. Rev. Stat.). 

245. WEATHERSBY made monthly payments due under his second mortgage loan, 

paying the same to PREFERRED CREDIT and/or to any one or more ASSIGNEE 

DEFENDANTS that purchased, acquired and/or serviced the loan, including but not limited to 

IMPAC FUNDING CORPORATION, IMPAC SECURED ASSETS CORP., EMC 

MORTGAGE CORPORATION, and IMPAC REAL ESTATE ASSET TRUST SERIES 2006- 

SD1. 

246. The ASSIGNEE DEFENDANTS that purchased, acquired and/or serviced the 

loan continued to charge and receive the monthly payments. 

247. Upon information and belief, the second mortgage loan that PREFERRED 

CREDIT made to WEATHERSBY and which any one or more of the ASSIGNEE 

DEFENDANTS purchased and received by assignment from PREFERRED CREDIT or an 

intervening purchaser-assignee was a "high-cost" mortgage within the meaning of 15 U.S.C. § 

1602(aa) in that the Annual Percentage Rate (APR) for the loan and/or the total points and fees 

payable by WEATHERSBY at or before closing met the applicable APR and/or Points and Fees 

Triggers. 

The Mooney Second Mortgage Loan 

248. Upon information and belief, on or about August 12, 1997, PREFERRED 

CREDIT loaned MOONEY $23,700.00, to be repaid with interest in consecutive monthly 

installments over a period of time. 
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249. Upon information and belief, the interest rate charged was a lawful rate permitted 

in § 408.232.1, but was otherwise "unlawful" without regard to the rate permitted in § 408.232.1. 

250. Upon information and belief, to secure repayment of her note, MOONEY was 

required to and did execute a deed of trust for the benefit of PREFERRED CREDIT. The deed of 

trust granted PREFERRED Ct•EDIf a security lien in residential real estate as defined at § 

408.231 Mo. Rev. Stat. and was subject to one or more prior mortgage loans. 

251. Upon information and belief, and based upon the loan fees that PREFERRED 

CREDIT typically charged, contracted for and/or received in connection with Missouri Second 

Mortgage Loans, in connection with this Second Mortgage Loan, PREFERRED CREDIT 

charged, contracted for and/or received various loan fees from MOONEY. 

252. MOONEY incurred these fees when the loan was funded by financing such over 

the life of the loan, because, upon information and belief, and based upon the typical practice of 

PREFERRED CREDIT, such charges were included in the principal balance of the note. 

253. At some point after PREFERRED CREDIT made the above second mortgage loan 

to MOONEY, the loan was subsequently sold and assigned to and/or serviced by one or more of 

the other ASSIGNEE DEFENDANTS. 

254. Upon information and belief, and based upon the loan fees that PREFERRED 

CREDIT typically charged, contracted for and/or received in connection with Missouri Second 

Mortgage Loans, PREFERRED CREDIT and/or any of the ASSIGNEE DEFENDANTS charged, 

contracted for and/or received fees from MOONEY that were illegal settlement charges, in 

violation of Missouri's Second Mortgage Loans Act (§ 408.231.1 Mo. Rev. Stat.). 

255. MOONEY made monthly payments due under her second mortgage loan, paying 

the same to PREFERRED CREDIT and/or to any one or more ASSIGNEE DEFENDANTS that 
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purchased, acquired and/or serviced the loan, including but not limited to IMPAC FUNDING 

CORPORATION, IMPAC SECURED ASSET CORP., IMPAC SECURED ASSETS CMN 

TRUST SERIES 1998-1, and WINGSPAN PORTFOLIO ADVISORS LLC. 

256. The ASSIGNEE DEFENDANTS that purchased, acquired and/or serviced the 

loan continued to charge and receive the monthly payments. 

257. Upon information and belief, the second mortgage loan that PREFERRED 

CREDIT made to MOONEY and which any one or more of the ASSIGNEE DEFENDANTS 

purchased and received by assignment from PREFERRED CREDIT or an intervening purchaser- 

assignee was a "high-cost" mortgage within the meaning of 15 U.S.C. § 1602(aa) in that the 

Annual Percentage Rate (APR) for the loan and/or the total points and fees payable by MOONEY 

at or before closing met the applicable APR and/or Points and Fees Triggers. 

The Black Second Mortgage Loan 

258. On or about July 14, 1998, PREFERRED CREDIT loaned the BLACKS 

$37,412.00, to be repaid with interest at the yearly rate of 12.99% in consecutive monthly 

installments over a period of fifteen (15) years. 

259. The 12.99% rate charged was a lawful rate permitted in § 408.232.1, but was 

otherwise "unlawful" without regard to the rate permitted in § 408.232.1. 

260. To secure repayment of their note, the BLACKS were required to and did execute 

a deed of trust for the benefit of PREFERRED CREDIT. The deed of trust granted 

PREFERRED CREDIT a security lien in residential real estate as defined at § 408.231 Mo. Rev. 

Stat. and was subject to one or more prior mortgage loans. 

261. Upon information and belief, and based upon the loan fees that PREFERRED 

CREDIT typically charged, contracted for and/or received in connection with Missouri Second 
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Mortgage Loans, in connection with this Second Mortgage Loan, PREFERRED CREDIT 

charged, contracted for and/or received various loan fees from the BLACKS. 

262. The BLACKS incurred these fees when the loan was funded by financing such 

over the life of the loan, because, upon information and belief, and based upon the typical 

practice of PREFERRED CREDIT, such charges were included in the principal balance of the 

note. 

263. At some point after PREFERRED CREDIT made the above second mortgage loan 

to the BLACKS, the loan was subsequently sold and assigned to and/or serviced by one or more 

of the other ASSIGNEE DEFENDANTS. 

264. Upon information and belief, and based upon the loan fees that PREFERRED 

CREDIT typically charged, contracted for and/or received in connection with Missouri Second 

Mortgage Loans, PREFERRED CREDIT and/or any of the ASSIGNEE DEFENDANTS charged, 

contracted for and/or received fees from the BLACKS that were illegal settlement charges, in 

violation of Missouri's Second Mortgage Loans Act (§ 408.231.1 Mo. Rev. Stat.). 

265. The BLACKS made monthly payments due under their second mortgage loan, 

paying the same to PREFERRED CREDIT and/or to any one or more ASSIGNEE 

DEFENDANTS that purchased, acquired and/or serviced the loan, including but not limited to 

JPMORGAN CHASE BANK (f/k/a THE CHASE MANHATTAN BANK). 

266. The ASSIGNEE DEFENDANTS that purchased, acquired and/or serviced the 

loan continued to charge and receive the monthly payments. 

267. Upon information and belief, the second mortgage loan that PREFERRED 

CREDIT made to the BLACKS and which any one or more of the ASSIGNEE DEFENDANTS 

purchased and received by assignment from PREFERRED CREDIT or an intervening purchaser- 
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assignee was a "high-cost" mortgage within the meaning of 15 U.S.C. § 1602(aa) in that the 

Annual Percentage Rate (APR) for the loan and/or the total points and fees payable by the 

BLACKS at or before closing met the applicable APR and/or Points and Fees Triggers. 

Class Action for Violations of Missouri's Second Loans Act 

Plaintiff Class Action Allegations 

268. This action is properly brought as a plaintiff class action under Mo. Rule 52.08. 

The Class consists of all persons who satisfy the following criteria: 

(a) That obtained Second Mortgage Loans on Residential Real Estate from 

PREFERRED CREDIT within the meaning of Missouri's Second Mortgage 

Loans Act, §§408.231 et seq.; and 

(b) That as part of that Second Mortgage Loan paid either an Origination Fee or paid 

fees that were either not bona fide or were not paid to third parties but were paid 

to the lender PREFERRED CREDIT or were not fees expressly set forth in 

§408.233.1 Mo. Rev. Stat., and all in violation of Missouri's Second Mortgage 

Loans Act. 

269. The Class includes persons who entered into such loans within six years next 

before the original filing of this action ("SECOND MORTGAGE CLASS"). 

270. The particular members of the SECOND MORTGAGE CLASS are capable of 

being described without difficult managerial or administrative problems. The members of the 

SECOND MORTGAGE CLASS are readily identifiable from the information and records in the 

possession or control of PREFERRED CREDIT and/or the ASSIGNEE DEFENDANTS and/or 

the representatives or servicing agents of each. 
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271. The SECOND MORTGAGE CLASS members are so numerous that 

individual joinder of all members is impractical. This allegation is based on the fact that 

PREFERRED CREDIT made extensive Second Mortgage Loans in Missouri throughout this 

period. 

wmcn questions 272. lnere are questions of law and fact common to the Class, ---'-•'-1 

predominate over any questions affecting only individual members of THE SECOND 

MORTGAGE CLASS and, in fact, the wrongs suffered and remedies sought by PLAINTIFFS and 

the other members of THE SECOND MORTGAGE CLASS are identical, the only difference 

being the exact monetary amount to which each member of THE SECOND MORTGAGE CLASS 

is entitled. The principal common issues are: 

(a) Whether PREFERRED CREDIT and the ASSIGNEE DEFENDANTS 

(individually, and as a Defendant class as defined below) violated §408.231 et seq. 

Mo. Rev. Stat. by directly or indirectly charging, contracting for, and/or receiving 

from PLAINTIFFS and the SECOND MORTGAGE CLASS the fees and charges 

and interest described above; 

(b) Whether PREFERRED CREDIT and the ASSIGNEE DEFENDANTS 

(individually, and as a defendant class as defined below) are barred under the 

provisions of §408.236 Mo. Rev. Stat. from the recovery of any interest under 

these Second Mortgage Loans and whether they are liable to return all past interest 

illegally received and should be enjoined from receiving any future interest; 

(c) Whether PREFERRED CREDIT and the ASSIGNEE DEFENDANTS 

(individually, and as a defendant class) are liable, in addition to the other civil 

remedies or penalties, for actual damages, together with punitive damages and 
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attorney's fees pursuant to §408.562 Mo. Rev. Stat. 

273. PLAINTIFFS' claims are typical of those of the members of the SECOND 

MORTGAGE CLASS and are based on the same legal and factual theories. 

274. PLAINTIFFS will fairly and adequately represent and protect the interests of 

the Class. They have suffered substantial economic injury in their own capacity from the 

practices complained of. They have retained counsel experienced in handling class actions and 

actions involving unlawful commercial practices. Neither PLAINTIFFS nor their counsel has any 

interests which might cause them not to vigorously pursue this action. 

275. Certification of a plaintiff class under Mo. Rule 52.08(b)(2) is appropriate as 

to PREFERRED CREDIT and the ASSIGNEE DEFENDANTS (individually, and as a defendant 

class), in that these defendants have (individually or as assignees or the trustees, servicers and/or 

agents of such assignees) illegally charged, contracted for, collected or received fees and interest 

on the Second Mortgage Loans and pursuant to §408.236 Mo. Rev. Stat. those defendants and 

each of them (and especially the holders of these Second Mortgage Notes and their trustees and 

servicers) should be enjoined from collecting any interest from these Second Mortgage Notes, 

and ordered to return any interest previously collected. 

276. Certification of a plaintiff class under Mo. Rule 52.08(b)(3) is also appropriate 

as to PREFERRED CREDIT and the ASSIGNEE DEFENDANTS (individually, and as a 

defendant class), in that common questions predominate over any individual questions and a 

plaintiff class action is superior for the fair and efficient adjudication of this controversy. A 

plaintiff class action will cause an orderly and expeditious administration of THE SECOND 

MORTGAGE CLASS' claims and economies of time, effort and expense will be fostered and 

uniformity of decisions will be insured. Moreover, the individual class members are likely to be 
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unaware of their rights 

commence individual 

DEFENDANTS. 

277. 

and not in a position (either through experience or financially) to 

litigation against PREFERRED CREDIT and the ASSIGNEE 

Defendants' Liability Under Missouri's Second Mortgage Loans Act 

Each of the loans that PREFERRED CREDIT made to PLAYNTiFFS and to 

the members of THE SECOND MORTGAGE CLASS constituted a "'Second Mortgage Loan" 

within the meaning of §408.231 et seq, Mo. Rev. Stat. 

279. 

§408.233 Mo. Rev. Stat. provides in pertinent part as follows: 

No charge other than that permitted by section 408.232 shall be directly or 

indirectly charged, contracted for or received in connection with any 
Second Mortgage Loan, except as provided in this section: 

** 

(3) Bona Fide closing costs paid to third parties, which shall include: 

(a) Fees or premiums for title examination, title insurance, or similar purposes 
including survey; 

(b) Fees for preparation of a deed, settlement statement, or other documents; 

(c) Fees for notarizing deeds and other documents; 

(d) Appraisal fees; and 

(e) Fees for credit reports 
** 

(5) A nonrefundable origination fee not to exceed two percent of the 
principal... [increased to five percent by the 1998 amendment to the 
statute]. 

PREFERRED CREDIT and the ASSIGNEE DEFENDANTS violated 

§408.233 Mo. Rev. Stat. by engaging in the following acts, methods or practices: 

(a) Charging, contracting for, or receiving, either directly or indirectly, fees that were 

disclosed to the members of the SECOND MORTGAGE CLASS as 
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nonrefundable origination fees, which were not allowed by and/or were in excess 

of the amounts allowed for such fees by the SMLA, including without limitation 

§408.233.1(5); 

(b) Charging, contracting for, and/or receiving, either directly or indirectly, fees that 

were (i) not allowed by the SMLA, including without limitation § 408.233.1; (ii) 

fees not paid to third parties, but were instead paid to PREFERRED CREDIT, in 

violation of § 408.233.1(3); and/or (iii) fees in excess of the amounts otherwise 

permitted by the statute. 

280. Mo. Rev. Stat. §408.236 provides as follows: 

Any person violating the provisions of sections 408.231 to 408.237 shall be barred from 

recovery of any interest on the contract, except where such violation occurred either: 

(1) As a result of an accidental and bona fide error of computations; or 

(2) As a result of any acts done or omitted in reliance on a written interpretation of 
the provisions of sections 408.231 to 408.240 by the division of finance. 

281. The conduct of PREFERRED CREDIT and the ASSIGNEE DEFENDANTS 

and the resulting statutory violations described above did not occur as a result of an accidental 

and bona fide error of computation or as a result of any acts done or omitted in reliance on a 

written interpretation of the provisions of § 408.231 to § 408.241 Mo. Rev. Stat. by the division 

of finance; said conduct was, instead, intentional, willful, wanton and malicious, or otherwise 

showed a complete indifference to and/or a conscious disregard of Missouri law and the rights of 

PLAINTIFFS and every other member of THE SECOND MORTGAGE CLASS. 

282. As the purchasers and/or assignees and holders or as the trustees and/or agents 

for the assignees and holders of the notes and deeds of trust given under the Second Mortgage 

Loans by PLAINTIFFS and the members of the SECOND MORTGAGE CLASS, the 
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ASSIGNEE DEFENDANTS (individually, and as a defendant class, as hereinafter defined) are 

liable to PLAINTIFFS and the SECOND MORTGAGE CLASS, just as PREFERRED CREDIT 

is liable to PLAINTIFFS and the SECOND MORTGAGE CLASS in that (a) the ASSIGNEE 

DEFENDANTS are the assignees, directly or indirectly of PREFERRED CREDIT, and "stand 

in the shoes" of PREFERRED CREDIT; (b) the ASSIGNEE DEFENDANTS charged and 

received (and continue to charge and receive) illegal fees on the loans, together with the 

resulting illegal interest charges; and (c) the points and fees and/or Annual Percentage Rates 

(APRs) for the loans is such that the ASSIGNEE DEFENDANTS (individually, and as a 

defendant class) are liable to PLAINTIFFS and the SECOND MORTGAGE CLASS, just as 

PREFERRED CREDIT is liable. 

283. PREFERRED CREDIT and the ASSIGNEE DEFENDANTS (individually, 

and as a defendant class, as hereinafter defined) are derivatively and/or jointly and severally 

liable to PLAINTIFFS and the SECOND MORTGAGE CLASS for all of the unlawful fees and 

interest they have charged and/or received (or hereinafter charge or receive) under the Second 

Mortgage Loans, and any such fees and interest collected after the date of the filing of this action 

shall be additional evidence of the willful and malicious nature of and conscious disregard of the 

acts of PREFERRED CREDIT and the ASSIGNEE DEFENDANTS (individually, and as a 

defendant class, as hereinafter defined). 

284. As partners, joint venturers and/or conspirators of PREFERRED CREDIT 

and/or any one or more of the other entities and/or ASSIGNEE DEFENDANTS mentioned 

above (individually and as a defendant class as hereinafter defined), the ASSIGNEE 

DEFENDANTS are jointly and severally liable to PLAINTIFFS and the SECOND MORTGAGE 

CLASS for all of the unlawful fees and interest that PREFFERED CREDIT charged, contracted 
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for and/or received under the Second Mortgage Loans, and any such fees and interest collected 

after the date of the filing of this action shall be additional evidence of the willful and malicious 

nature of and conscious disregard of the acts of PREFFERED CREDIT and the ASSIGNEE 

DEFENDANTS (individually, and as a defendant class, as hereinafter defined). 

285. PREFERRED CREDIT and the ASSIGNEE DEFENDANTS (individually, 

and as a defendant class, as hereinafter defined) and each of them should be forever barred and 

enjoined, under §408.236 Mo. Rev. Stat. from collecting or recovering any fees and interest on 

the Second Mortgage Loans of PLAINTIFFS and the other members of the SECOND 

MORTGAGE CLASS for the reasons set out above. 

286. Mo. Rev. Stat. §408.562 provides as follows: 

In addition to any other remedies or penalties provided for by law, any person 
who suffers any loss of money or property as a result of any act, method or 

practice in violation of the provisions of sections 408.100 to 408.561 may 
bring an action in the circuit court of the county in which any of the 
defendants reside, in which the plaintiff resides, or in which the transaction 
complained of occurred to recover actual damages. The court may, in its 
discretion, award punitive damages and may award to the prevailing party in 
such action attorney's fees, based on the amount of time reasonably expended, 
and may provide such action attorney's fees, based on the amount of time 
reasonably expended, and may provide such equitable relief as it deems 

necessary and proper. 

287. As a result of the statutory violations described above, PLAINTIFFS and the 

other members of the SECOND MORTGAGE CLASS suffered a loss of money or property in 

that they were charged and paid and/or became obligated to pay loan fees that were not allowed 

by or in amounts greater than those allowed by Missouri law and were charged interest in 

violation of Missouri law. 

288. The conduct of PREFERRED CREDIT (and the ASSIGNEE DEFENDANTS 

by virtue of their status as assignees, trustees and/or servicers for the assignees) and the resulting 
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violations of Missouri law, were intentional, willful, wanton and malicious, or otherwise showed 

a complete indifference to or a conscious disregard of the rights of each PLAINTIFF and the 

other members of the SECOND MORTGAGE CLASS, including, without limitation, the fact 

that defendant, U.S. BANK NATIONAL ASSOCIATION as trustee over certain trusts holding 

loans originated by PREFERRED CREDIT, continued to collect interest after it knew of the 

violations of Missouri law, therefore entitling PLAINTIFFS and the SECOND MORTGAGE 

CLASS to punitive damages against the defendants and each of them in such amount as is fair 

and reasonable to punish defendants and to deter defendants and others from like conduct. 

Defendant Class Action Allegations 

289. This action is properly brought as a defendant class action under Mo. Rule 

52.08. The defendant class ('"THE DEFENDANT SECOND MORTGAGE CLASS") consists of 

all persons who satisfy the following criteria: 

(a) Those persons or entities or their trustees, agents and/or servicers that received 

any interest from the Second Mortgage Loans of PLAINTIFFS or the SECOND 

MORTGAGE CLASS as a result of an assignment or transfer of such Second 

Mortgage Loans to the recipient of such interest or the trustee of such a recipient; 

or 

(b) Those persons or entities or their trustees, agents and/or servicers that have held or 

now hold, by virtue of transfer or assignment or otherwise (including acting as 

trustee of such holder or assignee), the Second Mortgage Loans of PLAINTIFFS 

or the SECOND MORTGAGE CLASS. 

290. The particular members of THE DEFENDANT SECOND MORTGAGE 

CLASS are capable of being described without difficult managerial or administrative problems. 
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The members of THE DEFENDANT SECOND MORTGAGE CLASS are readily identifiable 

from the information and records in the possession or control of PREFERRED CREDIT and/or 

the representatives or servicing agents (or their trustee(s) or servicer(s)) of such Second Mortgage 

Loans or the assignees or holders (or their trustee(s) or servicer(s)) of such Second Mortgage 

Loans. 

291. Upon information and belief, THE DEFENDANT SECOND MORTGAGE 

CLASS members are so numerous that individual joinder of all members is impractical. This 

allegation is based on the fact that PREFERRED CREDIT made extensive Second Mortgage 

Loans in Missouri throughout this period and those loans have since been assigned to a number 

of mortgage trusts or pools and may thereafter have been reassigned. 

292. There are questions of law and fact common to THE DEFENDANT SECOND 

MORTGAGE CLASS which questions predominate over any questions affecting only individual 

members of THE DEFENDANT SECOND MORTGAGE CLASS and, in fact, the wrongs 

alleged against THE DEFENDANT SECOND MORTGAGE CLASS and remedies sought by 

PLAINTIFFS and the other members of the SECOND MORTGAGE CLASS against the 

ASSIGNEE DEFENDANTS are identical, the only difference being the exact monetary amount 

to which each ASSIGNEE DEFENDANT is liable to the respective members of the SECOND 

MORTGAGE CLASS and the amount of interest that should be barred, enjoined and returned. 

The principal common issues are: 

(a) Whether THE DEFENDANT SECOND MORTGAGE CLASS is liable as a result 

of the violations by PREFERRED CREDIT of Missouri's Second Mortgage 

Loans Act and/or whether THE DEFENDANT SECOND MORTGAGE CLASS 

is entitled to assert any defenses to such violations notwithstanding their status as 
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an assignee of these notes; 

(b) Whether THE DEFENDANT SECOND MORTGAGE CLASS is barred under 

the provisions of §408.236 Mo. Rev. Stat. from the recovery of any interest under 

these Second Mortgage Loans and whether they are liable to return all past interest 

illegally received and should be enjoined from receiving any future interest; and 

(c) Whether THE DEFENDANT SECOND MORTGAGE CLASS is liable, in 

addition to the other civil remedies or penalties, for actual damages, together with 

punitive damages and attorney's fees pursuant to §408.562 Mo. Rev. Stat. 

293. The ASSIGNEE DEFENDANTS' defenses of THE SECOND MORTGAGE 

CLASS claims (which defenses are denied) are typical of those of the individual members of the 

DEFENDANT SECOND MORTGAGE CLASS and will be based on the same legal and factual 

theories. 

294. Any one of the ASSIGNEE DEFENDANTS, as the owner/assignee/holder or 

representative trustee and/or servicer (including U.S. BANK as the representative trustee of a 

number of the assignees and holders of these Second Mortgages) of the remaining assignees, 

holders, trustees and/or servicers of the Second Mortgage Loans, will fairly and adequately 

represent and protect the interests of THE DEFENDANT SECOND MORTGAGE CLASS. Each 

of the ASSIGNEE DEFENDANTS will undoubtedly retain counsel experienced in defending 

class actions and actions involving unlawful commercial practices. Said defendants do not, 

based upon information and belief, have any interests which might cause them not to vigorously 

defend this action. 

295. Certification of a defendant class under Mo. Rule 52.08(b)(2) is appropriate as to 

the ASSIGNEE DEFENDANTS, in that these defendants, as assignees and/or holders (or their 
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trustees) of the Second Mortgage Loans from PREFERRED CREDIT have illegally collected 

fees and interest on these Second Mortgage Loans and as holders (or their trustees) of the said 

notes will continue to collect interest, contrary to §408.236 Mo. Rev. Stat., and those defendants 

and each of them (and especially the holders of these Second Mortgage Notes) should be 

enjoined from collecting any interest from those Second Mortgage Notes and ordered to remm 

any interest previously collected. 

296. Certification of a defendant class under Mo. Rule 52.08(b)(3) is also appropriate 

as to the ASSIGNEE DEFENDANTS in that common questions predominate over any individual 

questions and a defendant class action is superior for the fair and efficient adjudication of this 

controversy. A defendant class action will cause an orderly and expeditious administration of 

THE DEFENDANT SECOND MORTGAGE CLASS defenses, if any, and economies of time, 

effort and expenses will be fostered and uniformity of decisions will be insured. 

Prayer for Relief 

WHEREFORE, PLAINTIFFS, individually and on behalf of themselves and all members 

of THE SECOND MORTGAGE CLASS, pray for judgment against defendants PREFERRED 

CREDIT and the ASSIGNEE DEFENDANTS and THE DEFENDANT SECOND MORTGAGE 

CLASS and each of them, as follows: 

(a) For the continued certification allowing that this action may be maintained as 

class action under Mo. Rule 52.08, appointing PLAINTIFFS and their counsel to represent the 

SECOND MORTGAGE CLASS, and directing that reasonable notice of this action be given to 

all other members of the SECOND MORTGAGE CLASS; 

(b) For an order certifying that this action may be maintained as a defendant class 

under Mo. Rule 52.08, appointing US BANK and any other named ASSIGNEE DEFENDANT 
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to represent THE DEFENDANT SECOND MORTGAGE CLASS, and directing that reasonable 

notice of this action be given to all other members of THE DEFENDANT SECOND 

MORTGAGE CLASS; 

(c) For a permanent injunction enjoining defendants PREFERRED CREDIT and the 

ASSIGNEE DEFENDANTS and THE DEFENDANI SECOND MORTGAGE CLASS, 

together with their officers, directors, employees, agents, partners or representatives, successors 

and any and all persons acting in concert, including their loan servicers and loan servicing 

agents, from directly or indirectly engaging in the wrongful acts and practices described above 

for the benefit of PLAINTIFFS and the SECOND MORTGAGE CLASS; 

(d) For an order directing disgorgement or restitution of all improperly collected 

charges and the imposition of an equitable constructive trust over such amounts for the benefit 

of PLAINTIFFS and other members of the SECOND MORTGAGE CLASS; 

(e) For a declaration that PLAINTIFFS and other members of the SECOND 

MORTGAGE CLASS have a right to rescind their loan transactions, and/or a right to offset any 

illegal fees and interest paid against the principal amounts due on the loans if they exercise their 

right to rescind, and an order directing PREFERRED CREDIT and the ASSIGNEE 

DEFENDANTS and THE DEFENDANT SECOND MORTGAGE CLASS to inform 

PLAINTIFFS and other members of the SECOND MORTGAGE CLASS of these rights; 

(f) For actual damages to be proven at the time of trial, including a repayment of all 

interest paid on these Second Mortgage Loans and all illegal fees; 

(g) For punitive damages as are fair and reasonable to punish Defendants and to deter 

Defendants and others from like conduct; 

(h) For reasonable attorneys' fees as provided by law and statute; 
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(i) For pre-and post-judgment interest as provided by law in amount according to 

proof at trial; 

(j) For an award of costs and expenses incurred in this action; and 

(k) For such other and further relief as the Court may deem necessary and proper. 

DEMAND FOR JURY TRIAL 

Plaintiffs hereby demand a trial by jury in the above-captioned civil action on all issues so 

triable. 

Dated: April 25,2011 Respectfully submitted, 

WALTERS BENDER STROHBEHN 
& VAUGHAN, P.C. 

By: /s/Kip D. Richards 
R, Frederick Walters Mo. Bar 25069 
J. Michael Vaughan Mo. Bar 24989 
Kip D. Richards Mo. Bar 39743 
David M. Skeens -Mo. Bar 35728 
Karen W. Renwick Mo. Bar 41271 
Garrett M. Hodes Mo. Bar 50221 
Matthew R. Crimmins Mo. Bar 53138 
Bruce V. Nguyen Mo. Bar 52893 
2500 City Center Square 
1100 Main Street 
P.O. Box 26188 
Kansas City, MO 64196 
(816) 421-6620 
(816) 421-4747 (Facsimile) 
ATTORNEYS FOR PLAINTIFFS 
AND CLASS COUNSEL 

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

The undersigned hereby certifies that on this the 25 t• day of April, 2011, I electronically 
filed the above and foregoing document with the Clerk of Court using the Court's ECF system, 
which will send notification of said filing to all counsel of record who are ECF participants. 

/s/Kip D. Richards 
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MASTER FINANCIAL ASSET 
SECURITIZATtON TRUST 1998- 

a Delaware business trust 
[CURRENT DEFENDANT; DO NOT 
SERVE] 

and 

MASTER FINANCIAL ASSET 
SECURITIZAT!ON TRUST 1998-2 
a Delaware business trust 

[CURRENT DEFENDANT; DO NOT 
SERVE] 

and 

AAMES CAPITAL CORPORATION, 
a California corporation 

Serve: 
Officer or Person in Chdrge 
350 S. Grand Avenue, 43 rd Floor 
Los Angeles, California 90071 

and 

ADVANTA MORTGAGE CONDUIT 
SERVICES, INC. 

a Delaware corporation 
SF, RVE: 
Dennis Alter 
Welch & McKean Road 
Spring House, Pennsvivania i9477 

and 

ADVANTA MORTGAGE CORP. USA 
a Delaware corporation 

SERVE: 
Dermis Alter 
Welch & McKean Road 
Spring House, Pennsylvania 19477 

and 



ADVANTA REVOLVING HOME EQUITY 
LOAN TRUST 1999-A 

a New York common law trust 
SERVE: 
Bakers Trust Company 
William Christoph 
130 Liberty Street 
New York, New York 10006 

and 

AHM SPV I, LLC 
a Delaware limited liability company 

SERVE: 
Officer or Person in Charge 
520 Broadhollow Road 
Melville, New York 11747 

and 

AMAXIMUS LENDING, L.L.P. 

a Delaware corporation 
[CURRENT DEFENDANT; DO NOT 
SERVE] 

and 

BANC ONE FINANCIAL SERVICES, INC. 
ind•n• o,,,poration 

SERVE: 
CT Corporation System 
i20 Central Avenue 
Clayton, Missouri 63105 

and 

BANK OF NEW YORK 

a New York banking corporation 
[CURRENT DEFENDANT; DO NOT 
SERVEI 

and 



BANKERS TRUST COMPANY 

a banking corporation 
[CURRENT DEFENDANT; DO NOT 
SERVE] 

and 

BANKERS TRUST COMPANY OF 
CALIFORNIA, N.A. 

a national bank 
SERVE: 
Ron Bedie, President 
300 S. Grand Avenue 
Los Angeles, CA 90071 

and 

CITIGROUP GLOBAL MARKETS 

a New York corporation 
SERVE: 
Richard Isenberg 
3 

•,, 
Greenwich Street 

New York, New York 10013 
and 

CITY NATIONAL BANK OF WEST 
VIRGINIA 

a nationai 
[CURRENT DEFENDANT; DO NOT 
SERVE] 

and 

CREDIT LYONNAIS NORTH AMERICA, 
INC. 

a Delaware corporation 
SERVE: 
Jean-Marc Moriani 
1301 Avenue of the Americas 
19 th Floor 
New York, New York 10019 

and 



DEUTSCHE BANK TRUST COMPANY 
AMERICAS 

a New York corporation 
SERVE: 
Officer or Person in Charge 
130 Liberty Street 
M/S NYC02-3100 
New York, New York 10006 

and 

DEUTSCHE BANK NATIONAL TRUST 
CORPORATION 

a New York corporation 
SERVE: 
Officer or Person in Charge 
130 Liberty Street 
M/S NYC02-3100 
New York, New York 10006 

and 

a Delaware corporation 
Serve: 
Christian A. Larsen, CEO 
5875 Arnold Road 
Dublin, California 94568 

and 

EMC Mtgt• IGAGE CORPORATION 
a Delaware corporation 

SERVE: 
The Corporation Company 
120 South Central Avenue 
Clayton, Missouri 63105 

and 

EMPIRE FUNDING HOME LOAN OWNER 
TRUST 1997-1 

a Delaware business trust 

[CURRENT DEFENDANT; DO NOT 
SERVEI 



and 

EMPIRE FUNDING HOME LOAN OWNER 
TRUST 1997-2 

a Delaware business trust 

[CURRENT DEFENDANT; DO NOT 
SERVE] 

and 

EMPIRE FUNDING HOME LOAN OWNER 
TRUST 1997-3 

a Delaware business trust 

[CURRENT DEFENDANT; DO NOT 
SERVEI 

and 

EMPIRE FUNDING HOME LOAN OWNER 
TRUST 1997-4 

a Delaware business trust 

[v.URREI'• 
• 
Dr•rENDANT; DO NOT 

SERVE] 

and 

EMPIRE FUNDING HOME LOAN OWNER 
TRUST i997-5 

a Delaware business trust 

[CURRENT DEFENDANT; DO NOT 
S•RVtC! 

and 

EMPIRE FUNDING HOME LOAN OWNER 
TRUST 1998-1 

a Delaware business trust 
[CURRENT D 

•..,•,,•.•,•, •, DO NOT 
SERVEI 

and 



EMPIRE FUNDING HOME LOAN OWNER 
TRUST 1998-2 

a Delaware business trust 
[CURRENT DEFENDANT; DO NOT 
SERVE] 

and 

EMPIRE FUNDING HOME LOAN OWNER 
TRUST 1998-3 

a Delaware business trust 
ICURRENT DEFENDANT; DO NOT 
SERVEI 

and 

EMPIRE FUNDING HOME LOAN OWNER 
TRUST !999-! 

a Delaware business trust 
[CURRENT DEFENDANT; DO NOT 
SERVE] 

and 

EMPIRE FUNDING GRANTOR TRUST 
1998-3 

a Delaware business trust 
SERVE: 

Rodney Square North 
1100 N. Market Street 
Wi!min•on, DE 1980] 

and 

EQUICREDIT CORPORATION OF 
AMERICA 

a Delaware corporation 
[CURRENT DEFENDANT; DO NOT 
SERVE] 

and 

FIRST COLLATERAL SERVICES 
a De!aware co•oration 
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[CURRENT DEFENDANT; DO NOT 
SERVE] 

and 

GOLETA NATIONAL BANK 
a national bank 
SERVE: 
Lynda Nahra, President 
5827 Hollister Avenue 
Goleta, California 93117 

and 

GREENWICH CAPITAL FINANCIAL 
PRODUCTS, INC., 

a business association 
SERVE: 
Officer or Person in Charge 
600 Steamboat Road 
Greenwich, Connecticut 06830 

and 

HOMEQ SERVICING CORPORATION 
a New Jersey corporation 
[CURRENT DEFENDANT; DO NOT 
SERVE] 

and 

THE Mt3•\ • Y 51 OKk,, iNC. 

a N ew Jersey corporation 
[CURRENT DEFENDANT; DO NOT 
SERVE] 

and 

[MH ASSETS COP•. 
a California corporation 

SERVE: 
Ronald Morrison 
1401 Dove Street, Ste. 100 
Newport Beach, CA 92660 



and 

IMPERIAL CREDIT INDUSTRIES, INC. 

a California corporation 
SERVE: 
Irwin L. Gubman 
23550 Hawthorne Blvd., Ste. 210 
Torrance, CA 90505 

and 

IMPAC FUNDING CORPORATION 

a California corporation 
SERVE: 
Ronald Morrison 
1401 Dove Street, Ste. 100 
Newport Beach, CA 92660 

and 

IMPAC MORTGAGE HOLDINGS, 
a Maryland corporation 

SERVE: 
Ronald Morrison 
1401 Dove Street, Ste. 100 
Newport Beach, CA 92660 

and 

IMPAC SECURED ASSETS CORP. 

a California corporation 
S•RVk;: 
Ronald Mon•son 
1401 Dove Street, Ste. 100 
Newport Beach, California 92660 

and 

IMPAC SECURED ^ ee•me 

SERIES 1998-1 

a California trust 

SERVE: 
Wilmington Trust Company 
Rodney Square North 
! !00 N. Market Street 
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Wilmington, DE 1980] 

and 

IMPAC CMB TRUST SERVICES 2000-2 

a California trust 
SERVE: 
Bakers Trust Company 
William Christoph 
130 Liberty Street 
New York, New York 10006 

and 

INDYMAC, INC. 

a Delaware corporation 
SERVE: 
Michael W. Perl3• 
155 N. Lake Avenue 
Pasadena, California 91101-1857 

and 

INGOMAR LIMITED PARTNERSHIP 

a Nevada limited partnership 
Serve: 
The Prentice-Hall Corp. System 
221 Bolivar Street 
•'• City Missouri •1 •1 

and 

INTEGRATED CAPITAL GROUP, INC. 

a California corporation 
[CURRENT DEFENDANT; DO NOT 
SERVEI 

and 

INTERBAY FUNDING, LLC 

a Delaware limited liability company 
SERVE: 
CT Corporation System 
120 South Central Avenue 
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and 

IRWIN UNION BANK AND TRUST CO. 
an Indiana corporation 

SERVE: 
CT Corporation System 
120 South Central Avenue 
Clayton, Missouri 63105 

and 

IRWIN HOME EQUITY CORPORATION 
an Indiana corporation 

SERVE: 
The Corporation Company 
120 South Central Avenue 
Cla.vton, Missouri 63105 

and 

IRWIN HOME EQUITY LOAN TRUST 
1999-3 

a business association 
SERVE: 
Wells Fargo Bank Minnesota, NA 
Bank President 
6 th & Marquette 
Mi_nn_eapolis, ?.,/iN 55480 

and 

IRWIN HOME EQUITY LOAN TRUST 
2001-1 

a business association 
SERVE: 
Wells Fargo Bank Minnesota, NA 
Bank President 
6 th & MarqueKe 
Minneapolis, MN 55480 

and 
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IRWIN HOME EQUITY LOAN TRUST 
2001-2 

a business association 
SERVE: 
Wells Fargo Bank Minnesota, NA 
Bank President 
6 th & Marquette 
Minneapolis, MN 55480 

and 

IRWIN HOME EQUITY LOAN TRUST 
2002-1 

a business association 
SERVE: 
Wells Fargo Bank Minnesota, NA 
Bank President 
6 th & Marquette 
Mim•eapolis, MN 55480 

and 

LIFE BANK (f/k/a LIFE SAVB•!GS BANK, 
F.S.B.) 

a federal bank 
SERVE: 
Ronald Skipper, Chairman 
Or an Officer in Charge 
LiFE Bank 
1598 E. Highland Avenue 
San Bemadino, CA 92404 

and 

NATIONWIDE MORTGAGE PLAN AND 
TRUST 

a business association 
SERVE: 
Person cw•,-.,•.. ;• •, 

7119 E. Shea Blvd., #109-466 
Scottsdale, Arizona 85254 

and 
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NIKKO FINANCIAL SERVICES, INC. 
a Delaware corporation 

SERVE: 
One World Financial Center 
Tower A, 1200 Liberty Street 
New York, New York 10281 

and 

OCWEN FEDEtL•L BANK, FSB 
a federal bank 

[CURRENT DEFENDANT; DO NOT 
SERVEI 

and 

PREFERRED CREDIT CORPORATION 
a California corporation 
[CURRENT DEFENDAdNT; DO NOT 
SERVE] 

and 

CREDIT SUISSE FIRST BOSTON 
MORTGAGE CAPITAL, LLC 

a Delaware company 
SERVE: 

c/o CSC Corporation Service Company 
9"71 Centerviiie Road, •,.,.•+'= •,,,•zmc' 
Wilmington, Delaware 19808 

and 

CREDIT SUISSE FIRST BOSTON 
MORTGAGE SECURITIES CORP. 

a Delaware corporation 
SERVE: 
Prentice-Hall Corporation System, Inc. 
2711 c•;,,,•,•,-,,;11,• r•,,•,• Ste. 400 
Wilmington, DE 19808 

and 
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PREFERRED MORTGAGE TRU ST 1996-2 
("PREFERRED MORTGAGE ASSET- 
BACKED CERTIFICATES, SERIES 1996- 
2"), a trust or fund 
[CURRENT I)EFEN1)ANT; I)O NOT 
SERVEI 

and 

PREFERRED CREDIT TRUST 199%1 
("PREFERRED CREDIT AS SET-BACKED 
CERTIFICATES, SERIES 1997-1"), a trust 

or fund 
[CURRENT DEFENDANT; DO NOT 
SERVE] 

and 

REAL TIME RESOLUTIONS, iNC. 
a Texas Corporation 

SERVE: 
Anthony A. Petrocchi 

•f•fl • .• l,lanKs•;•vlng Tower 
1601 Elm Street 
Dallas, TX 75201 

and 

REPUBLIC BANK dYa/a FLAGSHIP 
FUNDING, a state-chartered bank 
[CURRENT DEFENDANT; DO NOT 

and 

REPUBLIC BANK HOME LOAN OWNER 
TRUST 1997-1 

a Delaware business trust 
SERVE: 
Wachovia Trust Company NA 
Rodney Square 

920 King Street, 1 st Floor 
Wilmington, Delaware 19801 
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REPUBLIC BANK HOME LOAN OWNER 
TRUST 1998-1 

a Delaware business trust 

SERVE: 
Wachovia Trust Company NA 
1 Rodney Square 
920 King Street, st Floor 
Wilmington, Delaware 19801 

and 

REPUBLIC BANK HOME LOAN OWNER 
TRUST 1998-2 

a Delaware business trust 

SERVE: 
Wachovia Trust Company NA 
Rodney Square 

920 King Street, st Floor 
Wilmington, Delaware i 980 i 

and 

RE.,IDa1 • • FU2"qDING COP@ORATION 

a Delaware corporation 
[CURRENT DEFENDANT; DO NOT 
SERVE] 

and 
RESiDENTL4L i•'U ND•G MORTGAGE 
SECURITIES II 

a Minnesota corporation 
•KV•: 

Officer or Person in Charge 
8400 Normandale Lake Blvd, 
Minneapolis, Minnesota 55437 

and 

JPMORGAN CHASE BANK (•Ma 
CHASE MANHATTAN BANK) 

a national bank 
[CURRENT DEFENDANT; DO NOT 
SERVEI 

and 
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HOMECOMINGS FINANCIAL NETWORK, 
INC. 

a Delaware corporation 
[CURRENT DEFENDANT; DO NOT 
SERVEI 

and 

HOME LOAN TRUST 1997-HI3 

a Delaware business trust 

[CURRENT DEFENDANT; DO NOT 
SERVE] 

and 

HOME LOAN TRUST 1999-HI1, 
a Delaware business 
SERVE: 
Wilmington Trust Company 
Rodney Square North 
1100 North Market Street 
Wilmington, DE 19890 

and 

HOME LOAN TRUST 1999-HI6, 
a Delaware business 

Wihnington Trust Company 
Rodney Square North 
11 •,0 No• 

•l 
Marke• Street 

Wilmington, DE 19890 

and 

HOME LOAN TRUST 1999-HI8, 
a Delaware business 

SERVE: 
Wilmington Trust Company 
Rodney Square North 
1100 North Market Street 
Wilmington, DE 19890 

and 
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HOME LOAN TRUST 2000-HI1, 
a Delaware business 

SERVE: 
Wilmington Trust Company 
Rodney Square North 
1100 North Market Street 
Wilmington, DE 19890 

and 

HOME LOAN TRUST 2000-HI2, 
a Delaware business 

SERVE: 
Wilmington Trust Company 
Rodney Square North 
1100 North Market Street 
Wilmington, DE 19890 

emd 

HOME LOAN TRUST 2000-HI3, 
a Delaware business 

SERVE: 
Wilmington Trust Company 
Rodney Square North 
1100 North Marke• Street 
Wilmington, DE 19890 

and 

HOME LOAN TRUST 2000-HI4, 
a Delaware business 

SERVE: 
Wilmington Trust Company 
Rodney Square North 
1100 North Market Street 
Wilmington, DE 19890 

and 

HOME LOAN TRUST 2001-HI1, 
a Delaware business 

SERVE: 
Wilmington Trust Company 
Rodney Square NoAh 
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1100 North Market Street 
Wilmington, DE 19890 

and 

HOME LOAN TRUST 2001-HI2, 
a Delaware business 

SERVE: 
Wilmington Trust Company 
Rodney Square North 
1100 North Market Street 
Wilmington, DE 19890 

and 

SOVEREIGN BANK, FSB 

a federal bank 
[CURRENT DEFENDANT; DO NOT 
SER•] 

and 

UBS REAL ESTATE SECURITIES, INC. 
(f/k/a PAINE WEB BER REAL ESTATE 
SECURITIES, INC.) 

a Delaware corporation 
SERVE: 
Ramesh Singh 
1285 Average of tlhe .•m•ericas 
New York, New York 10019 

and 

PAINE WEBBER MORTGAGE 
ACCEPTANCE CORPORATION IV 

a Delaware corporation 
SERVE: 
Joseph Piscina 
1285 Avenue of the Ame•cas 
New York, New York 10019 

and 
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UCFC LOAN TRUST 1997-C 
a business trust 

SERVE: 
Bankers Trust Company 
William Chri stoph 
130 Liberty Street 
New York, New York 10006 

and 

UMLIC VP LLC 

a North American limited liability company 
SERVE: 
Renee S. Alexander 
6701 Carmel Road, Ste. 400 
Charlotte, North Carolina 28226 

and 

UNITED COMPANIES FUNDING, INC. 
a Louisiana corporation 

SERVE: 
Person or Officer in Charge 
8549 United Plaza Blvd. 
Baton Rouge, Louisiana 70809 

and 

[• N,• .,• COMP,aFN!ES T 

CORPORATION 

a Louisiana corporation 

Person or Officer in Charge 
8549 United Plaza Blvd. 
Baton Rouge, Louisiana 70809 

and 

U.S. BANK, xT ^ xJva 

a national bank 
[CURRENT DEFENDANT; DO NOT 
SERVEI 

and 
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U.S. BANK, NATIONAL ASSOCIATION 
a national bank 
ICURRENT DEFENDANT; DO NOT 
SERVE] 

and 

WACHOVIA TRUST COMPANY 
NATIONAL AS S OCIATION 

a business association 
SERVE: 
Rodney Square 

920 King Street, 1 • Floor 
Wilmington, Delaware 19801 

and 

WELLS FARGO BANK MINNESOTA 
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION, 

a national bank 
SERVE: 
Bank President 
6 th 3: Malqu•ac 
Minneapolis, MN 55480 

and 

WILMINGTON TRUST COMPANY 

[CURRENT DEFENDANT; DO NOT 
SERVE] 

and 

DOES 1 THROUGH 25, 

Defendants. 

FOURTH AMENDED PETITION 

Plaintiffs James C. and Jill S. Baker, Jeffrey A. and Michelle A. Cox, and William L. and 

Linda A. Springer individually and on behalf of all other persons similarly situated 

("PLAINTKrFS"), state the following for •,•," Fou•h •mended D,•÷;,;,...,•,• against D•,.ndm•"•'• •n 

2O 



this cause: 

Introduction 

1. This action is brought as a plaintiffs' class action against CENTURY 

FINANCIAL GROUP, INC. ("CENTURY FINANCIAL") and the above-named defendants (and 

the defendant class as hereinafter defined) as (a) the holders or previous holders of the Second 

Mortgage Loans made in Missouri by CENTURY FINANCIAL (b) the trustees and/or agents of 

those persons or entities that have purchased or have been assigned and now hold or previously 

held said Second Mortgage Loans and/or (c) the trustees, agents and/or holders of the Second 

Mortgage Loans. 

2. This action seeks redress on behalf of the plaintiffs and the plaintiff class against 

CENTURY FINANCIAL and the other Defendants (including a defendant class) for violations of 

Missouri's Second Mortgage Loans Act (§408.231 et seq. Mo. Rev. Stat.), including claims for 

injunctive relief. 

The Plaintiffs 

3. Plaintiffs James C. and Jiii S. Baker (the "BAKERS") are lawfully married 

individuals who reside at 6813 North Hardesty, Kansas City, Clay County, Missouri. The 

BAKERS bring this action individually and as representatives on behalf of the class of plaintiff- 

borrowers described below. 

4. Plaintiffs Jeffrey A. and Michelle A. Cox (the "COXES") are lawfully married 

individuals who reside at 203 NE 65 **• Street, Gladstone, Clay County, Missouri. The COXES 

bring this action individually and as representatives on behalf of the class of plaintiff-borrowers 

described below. 

rlammls wm•am L and Linda A. Springer (the "brI•tIxGERS") are lawfully 
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married individuals who reside at 302 SW 25 th Street, Oak Grove, Jackson County, Missouri. 

The SPRINGERS bring this action individually and as representatives on behalf of the class of 

plaintiff-borrowers described below. 

Defendant Century Financial 

6. Defendant CENTURY FINANCIAL is a California corporation that has been 

served with (or waived service of) process in this action. 

7. CENTURY FINANCIAL is a "moneyed corporation" within the meaning of § 

516.420 Mo. Rev. Stat. At all relevant times, CENTURY FINANCIAL was engaged principally 

if not exclusively in the business of originating, funding and selling residential mortgage loans in 

a number of different states, including Missouri, and was subject to regulation by the Missouri 

Division of Finance with regard to its lending activities within Missouri. In particular, 

r•lA CENTURY FD•AN,•,•L, as a "mo•gage banker" as defined by the Missouri Division of 

Finance, lent money secured by residential real estate to Missouri consumers and then sold the 

residential mortgage loans it made for money to entities like the "Investor Defendants" identified 

belc•w-_ UbNi i?RY FVNANCIAI, upon inFnrrnnt•nn nnri hoi•of th 

for the loans to make and fund still other loans. 

8. As a lender of money secured by people's homes, CENTURY FINANCIAL 

exercised "banking powers" and was at all relevant times subject to regulation by the Missouri 

Division of Finance. In addition, Plaintiffs allege upon information and belief that CENTURY 

FINANCIAL was also • • and •o• (or was ,..,emvt,•,• from "•;• 

requirements) at all relevant times by the banking and/or finance divisions/departments of a 

number of different states, including the Missouri Division of Finance, as a "mortgage banker," 

"mortgage lender•" a•d/or "mov_ey broker." 
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The Investor Defendants 

9. Defendant MASTER FINANCIAL, INC. is a California corporation that has 

previously been served with (or waived service of) process in this action. 

10. Defendant MASTER FINANCIAL ASSET SECURITIZATION TRUST 1997-1 

is a Delaware business trust that has previously been served with (or waived service of) process 

in thi s action. 

11. Defendant MASTER FINANCIAL ASSET SECURITIZATtON TRUST 1998-1 

is a Delaware business trust that has previously been served with (or waived service of) process 

in this action. 

12. Defendant MASTER FINANCIAL ASSET SECURITIZATiON TRUST 1998-2 

is a Delaware business trust tha• has previously been served with (or waived service of) process 

;•1 this action. 

13. Defendant AAMES CAPITAL CORPORATION is a California corporation and 

can be served with legal process by serving its officer or person in charge, 350 S. Grand Avenue, 

4• f!o•, Los •_ngeies, CA 90071. 

14. Defendant ADVANTA MORTGAGE CONDUIT SERVICES, INC. is a 

Delaware corporation and can be served with legal process by serving Dennis Alter, Welch & 

McKean Road, Spring House, PA 19477. 

15. Defendant ADVANTA MORTGAGE CORP. USA is a Delaware corporation and 

•,e served ,•,•*•- •o,,o• v•e•c• & Road, •pnng ,-s• process by serving r•:• Alter, •- •v•cr•ean 

House, PA 19477. 
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16. Defendant ADVANTA REVOLVING HOME EQUITY LOAN TRUST 1999-A 

is a New York co•mnon law trust and can be served with legal process by serwng Bakers Trust 

Company, Trustee, William Christoph, 130 Liberty Street, New York, New York 10006. 

17. Defendant AHM SPV I, LLC is a Delaware limited liability company and can be 

served with legal process by serving its officer or person in charge, 520 Broadhollow Road, 

Melville, New York 11747. 

18. Defendant AMAXIMUS LENDING is a Delaware corporation that has previously 

been served with (or waived service of) process in this action. 

19. Defendant BANC ONE FINANCIAL SERVICES, INC. is an Indiana corporation 

and can be served with iegai process by serving CT Corporation System, i20 Central Avenue, 

Clayton, MO 63105. 

20. Defendant BANK OF NEW YORK is a New York banking corporation that has 

previously been served with (or waived service of) process in this action. 

21. Defendant BANKERS TRUST COMPANY is a banking corporation that has 

previously been served with (or waived service of) process in this action. 

22. Defendant BANKERS TRUST COMPANY OF CALIFORNIA, N.A. is a national 

bank and can be served with legal process by serving Ron Bedie, President, 300 S. Grand 

Avenue, Los Angeles, CA 90071. 

23. Defendant CITIGROUP GLOBAL MARKETS REALTY CORP. is a New York 

corporation and can be se•;ed with legal 
• ss by serving Pdchard •s•m,•l•,' •-•" 390 Gr•nwlcn: 

Street, New York, New York 10013. 

24. Defendant CITY NATIONAL BANK OF WEST VIRGINIA is a national bank 

that has previously been served wit_h_ (or waived se•:ice of) process in this action. 
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25. Defendant CREDIT LYONNAIS NORTH AMERICA, INC. is a Delaware 

corporation and can be served with legal process by serving Jean-Marc Moriani, 1301 Avenue of 

the Americas, 19 th Floor, New York, New York 10019. 

26. Defendant DEUTSCHE BANK NATIONAL TRUST COMPANY AMERICAS 

is a New York corporation and can be served with legal process by serving its officer or person in 

charge, 130 Liberty Street, M/S NYC02-3100, New York, New York 10006. 

27. Defendant DEUTSCHE BANK NATIONAL TRUST CORPORATION is a New 

York corporation and can be served with legal process by serving its officer or person in charge, 

130 Liberty Street, M/S NYC02-3100, New York, New York 10006. 

28. Defendant E-LOAN, INC., is a Delaware corporation and can be served with legal 

process by serving Christian A. Larsen, CEO, 5875 Arnold Road, Dublin, CA 94568. 

29. De da•i EMC )•I,_,RIGA,•E •RPORA•ON is a Delaware corporation and 

can be served with legal process by serving The Corporation Company, 120 South Central 

Avenue, Clayton, MO 63105. 

.•. tAe•enfunt •M•'i• vUND•q,• •4c'•,• LOAN cm•-•,,• TR• is a 

Delaware business trust that has previously been served with (or waived service of) process in 

this acti on. 

31. Defendant EMPIRE FUNDING HOME LOAN OV•ER TRUST 1997-2 is a 

Delaware business trust that has previously been served with (or waived service of) process in 

th•s actio_n_. 

32. Defendant EMPIRE FUNDING HOME LOAN OWNER TRUST 1997-3 is a 

Delaware business trust that has previously been served with (or waived service of) process •n 

this action. 
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33. 

Delaware business trust that has previously 

this action. 

34. 

Delaware business trust that has previously 

this action. 

35. 

Delaware business trust that has previously 

this action. 

36. 

Delaware business trust that has previously 

this action. 

37. 

Delaware business trust that has previously 

this •: 
,CL•LIUII. 

38. 

Delaware business trust that has previously 

this action. 

39. Defendant EMPIRE FUNDING 

Defendant EMPIRE FUNDING HOME LOAN OWNER TRUST 1997-4 is a 

been served with (or waived service of) process in 

Defendant EMPIRE FUNDING HOME LOAN OWNER TRUST 1997-5 is a 

been served with (or waived service of) process in 

Defendant EMPIRE FUNDING HOME LOAN OWNER TRUST 1998-1 is a 

been served with (or waived service of) process in 

.•,•endanL 
czvxr•r,,_, FUx'•L•IN• HOME LOAN OWNER TRUST 1998-2 is a 

been served with (or waived service of) process in 

Defendant EMPIRE FUNDING HOME LOAN OWNER TRUST t998-3 is a 

been served with (or waived service of) process in 

Defendant EMPIRE FUNDING HOME LOAN OWNER TRUST 1999-1 is a 

been served with (or waived service of) process in 

GRANTOR TRUST 1998-3 is a Delaware 

business trust and can be served with legal process by serving Wilmington Trust Company, 

Rodney Square North, 1100 N. Market Street, Wilmington, DE 19801. 

40. Defendant EQUICREDIT CORPORATION OF AMERICA is a Delaware 

corporation that has previously been served with (or waived service oO process in this action. 
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41. Defendant FIRST COLLATERAL SERVICES is a Delaware corporation that has 

previously been served with (or waived service of) process in this action. 

42. Defendant GOLETA NATIONAL BANK is a national bank and can be served 

with legal process by serving Lynda Nahra, President, 5827 Hollister Avenue, Goleta, CA 93117. 

43. Defendant GREENWICH CAPITAL FINANCIAL PRODUCTS, INC. is a 

business association and can be served with legal process by serving its officer or person in 

charge, 600 Steamboat Road, Greenwich, CT 06830. 

44. Defendant HOMEQ SERVICING CORPORATION f/k/a TMS MORTGAGE, 

INC. d/b/a THE MONEY STORE is a New Jersey corporation that has previously been served 

with (or waived service of) process in this action. 

45. Defendant THE MONEY STORE, INC. is a New Jersey corporation that has 

previously been served with (or waived service of) process in this •+:• 

46. Defendant IMH ASSETS CORP. is a California corporation and can be served 

with legal process by serving Ronald Momson, 1401 Dove Street, Ste. 100, Newport Beach. CA 

47. Defendant IMPERIAL CREDIT INDUSTRIES, INC. is a California corporation 

and can be selwed with legal process by serving Irwin L. Gubman, 23550 Hawthorne Blvd., Ste. 

210, Torrance, CA 90505. 

48. Defendant IMPAC FUNDING CORPORATION is a California corporation and 

can be served with legal._ process by serving Rona!d Morf, son, !401 Dove •,•÷'-•*•,•,•, •+•o•,. I00, 

Newport Beach, CA 92660. 
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49. Defendant IMPAC MORTGAGE HOLDINGS, INC. is a Maryland corporation 

and can be served with legal process by serving Ronald Morrison, 1401 Dove Street, Ste. 100, 

Newport Beach, CA 92660. 

50. Defendant IMPAC SECURED ASSETS CORP. is a California corporation and 

can be served with legal process by serving Ronald Morrison, 1401 Dove Street, Ste. 100, 

Newport Beach, CA 92660. 

51. Defendant IMPAC SECURED ASSETS CMN TRUST SERIES 1998-1 is a 

California •rust and can be served with legal process by serving Wilmington Trust Company, 

Rodney Square North, 1100 N. Market Street, Wihnington, DE 19801. 

52. c,•,l•ndant txvlr• CMB TRUST SERVICES 2000-2 is a California trust and can 

be served with legal process by serving Bakers Trust Company, William Christoph, 130 Liberty 

Street, New York, New York 10006. 

53. Defendant INDYMAC, INC. is a Delaware corporation and can be served with 

legal process by serving Michael W. Perry, 155 N. Lake Avenue, Pasadena, California 91101- 

10o.2"1. 

54. Defendant IGOMAR LIMITED PARTNERSHIP is a Nevada limited partnership 

and can be served with legal process by serving The Prentice-Hall Corp. System, 221 Bolivar 

Street, Jefferson City, MO 65101. 

55. Defendant INTEGRATED CAPITAL GROUP, INC. is a California corporation 

that has previously been served with (or waived service o• process in this action. 

56. Defendant INTERBAY FUNDING, LLC is a Delaware limited liability company 

and can be served with legal process by serving CT Corporation System, 120 South Central 

Avenue° Clavton. MO 63105. 
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57. Defendant IRWIN UNION BANK AND TRUST COMPANY is an Indiana 

corporation and can be served with legal process by serving CT Corporation System, 120 South 

Central Avenue, Clayton, MO 63105. 

58. Defendant IRWIN HOME EQUITY CORPORATION is an Indiana corporation 

and can be served with legal process by serving CT Corporation System, 120 South Central 

Avenue, Clayton, MO 63105. 

59. Defendant IRWIN HOME EQUITY LOAN TRUST 1999-3 is a business 

association and can be served with legal process by serving Wells Fargo Bank Minnesota, NA, 

Bank President, 6 th & Marquette, Minneapolis, MN 55480. 

60. Defendant IRW• HOME EQUITY LOAN TRUST 2001-1 is a business 

association and can be served with legal process by serving Wells Fargo Bank Minnesota, NA, 

Bank President, 6 th & Marquette, Mirmeapolis, MI'• 55480. 

61. Defendant IRWIN HOME EQUITY LOAN TRUST 2001-2 is a business 

association and can be served with legal process by serving Wells Fargo Bank Minnesota, NA, 

BarN: President, 6 tl• & Marquette, Min_n_eapoiis, l.M_2• 55480. 

62. Defendant IRWIN HOME EQUITY LOAN TRUST 2002-1 is a business 

association and can be served with legN process by serving Wells Fargo Bank Minnesota, NA, 

Bank President, 6 ± & Marquette, Minneapolis, MN 55480. 

63. Defendant LIFE BANK (f/k/a LIFE SAVINGS BANK, F.S.B.) is a federal bank 

and can be served wit• legal process by se•;ing Rona!d Skipper, Chainv•an, or an officer or 

person in charge, LIFE Bank, 1598 E. Highland Avenue, San Bemadino, CA 92404. 
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64. Defendant NATIONWIDE MORTGAGE PLAN AND TRUST is a business 

association and can be served with legal process by serving its officer or person in charge, 7119 

Shea Blvd., #109-466, Scottsdale, AZ 85254. 

65. Defendant NIKKO FINANCIAL SERVICES, INC. is a Delaware corporation and 

can be served with legal process by serving One World Financial Center, Tower A, 1200 Liberty 

Street, New York, New York 10281. 

66. Defendant OCWEN FEDERAL BANK, FSB is a federal bank that has previously 

been served with (or waived service of) process in this action. 

67. Defendant PREFERRED CREDIT CORPORATION (f/k/a T.A.R. Preferred 

Mortgage Corporation) is a Ca!ifomia •; ,•l•,ora•lon that has previously been served with (or 

waived service of) process in this action. 

68. Defendant CREDIT SU!SSE •IRST BOSTON MORTGAGE r-,.•APi•l A,_,,T ,_•L,.•T • is 

a Delaware company and can be served with legal process by serving CSC Corporation Service 

Company, 2711 Centerville Road, Ste. 400, Wilmington, DE 19808. 

u•. •,•:•r, nu•n[ •r, nL•tT b•bb•. FIRST BOSTON -_'.-•-'YtT___ SECURITIES 

CORP. is a Delaware corporation and can be served with legal process by serving Prentice-Hall 

Corporation System, Inc., 2711 Centerville Road, Ste. 400, Wilmington, DE 19808. 

70. Defendant PREFERRED MORTGAGE TRUST 1996-2 (•'PREFERRED 

MORTGAGE ASSET-BACKED CERTIFICATES, SERIES 1996-2") is a trust or trust fund that 

has previously been served with (or waived service of) process in this action. 

71. Defendant PREFERRED CREDIT TRUST 1997-1 ("PREFERRED CREDIT 

ASSET-BACKED CERTIFICATES, SERIES 1997-1") is a trust or trust fund that has previously 

been served with (or waived service of). process in this action. 
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72. Defendant REAL TIME RESOLUTIONS, INC. is a Texas corporation and can be 

served with legal process by serving Anthony A. Petrocchi, 1900 Thanks•ving Tower, 1601 Elm 

Street, Dallas, TX 75201. 

73. Defendant REPUBLIC BANK d/b/a FLAGSHIP FUNDING is a banking 

corporation that has previously been served with (or waived service of) process in this action. 

74. Defendant REPUBLIC BANK HOME LOAN OWNER TRUST 1997-1 is a 

Delaware business trust and can be served with legal process by serving Wachovia Trust 

Company, NA, Rodney Square, 920 King Street, 1 '•T Floor, Wilmington, DE 19801. 

75. Defendant REPUBLIC BANK HOME LOAN OWNER TRUST 1998-1 is a 

Delaware business trust and can be served w-ith legal process by serving Wachovia Trust 

Company, NA, Rodney Square, 920 King Street, 1 st Floor, Wilmington, DE 19801. 

76. Defendant • •,T T•T •t• BANK u¢,•,• LOAN uv•Nizv, TRUST i998-2 is a 1.1. 

Delaware business trust and can be served with legal process by serving Wachovia Trust 

Company, NA, 1 Rodney Square, 920 King Street, 1 s• Floor, Wilmington, DE 19801. 

77. De•%ndam FL•DING 

RESIDENTIAL FUNDING CORPORATION) is a Delaware corporation that has previously 

been served with (or waived service of) process in this action. 

78. Defendant RESIDENTIAL FUNDING MORTGAGE SECURITIES II is a 

Minnesota corporation and can be served with legal process by serving its oNcer or person in 

charge, 8400 Normanda!e l .•ko Blvd., •/• • MN 

79. Defendant JPMORGAN CHASE BANK ("CHASE") is a national bank that has 

previously been served with (or waived service of) process in this action. CHASE is named both 

individuallv as the successor m interest to ADVANTA MORTGAGE COP•OP•,TION USA. 
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80. Defendant HOMECOMINGS FINANCIAL NETWORK, INC. is a Delaware 

corporation that has previously been served with (or waived service of) process in this action. 

81. Defendant HOME LOAN TRUST 1997-HI3 is a Delaware business trust that has 

previously been served with (or waived service of) process in this action. 

82. Defendant HOME LOAN TRUST 1999-HI1 is a Delaware business and can be 

served with legal process by serving Wilmington Trust Company, Rodney Square North, 1100 

North Market Street, 8400 Normandale Lake Blvd., Minneapolis, MN 55437. 

83. Defendant HOME LOAN TRUST 1999-HI6 is a Delaware business and can be 

served with legal process by serving Wilmington Trust Company, Rodney Square North, 1100 

North Market Street, 8400 Nonnandale Lake Blvd., Minneapolis, MN 55437. 

84. Defendant HOME LOAN TRUST 1999-HI8 is a Delaware business and can be 

served with legal process by serving Wilmington Trust Company, Rodney Square North, 1100 

North Market Street, 8400 Nonnandale Lake Blvd., Minneapolis, MN 55437. 

85. Defendant HOME LOAN TRUST 2000-HI1 is a Delaware business and can be 

served with legal process by serving wilmington • u• 
Company, _•_oaney Square No•h, i 100 

North Market Street, 8400 Normandale Lake Blvd., Minneapolis, MN 55437. 

86. Defendant HOME LOAN TRUST 2000-HI2 is a Delaware business and can be 

served with legal process by serving Wilmington Trust Company, Rodney Square North, 1100 

North Market Street, 8400 Normandale Lake Blvd., Minneapolis, MN 55437. 

87. Defendant HOME LOAN TRUST 2000-H!3 is a Delaware business and can be 

served with legal process by serving Wilmington Trust Company, Rodney Square North, 1100 

North Market Street, 8400 Normandale Lake Blvd., Minneapolis, MN 55437. 
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88. Defendant HOME LOAN TRUST 2000-HI4 is a Delaware business and can be 

served with legal process by serving Wilmington Trust Company, Rodney Square North, 1100 

North Market Street, 8400 Nonnandale Lake Blvd., Minneapolis, MN 55437. 

89. Defendant HOME LOAN TRUST 2001-HI1 is a Delaware business and can be 

served with legal process by serving Wilmington Trust Company, Rodney Square North, 1100 

North Market Street, 8400 Normandale Lake Blvd., Minneapolis,/vlN 55437. 

90. Defendant HOME LOAN TRUST 2001-HI2 is a Delaware business and can be 

served with legal process by serving Wilmington TruSt Company, Rodney Square North, 1100 

North Market Street, 8400 Normandale Lake Blvd., Minneapolis, MN 55437. 

91. Defendant SOVEREIGN BANK, FSB is a federal bank that has previously been 

served with (or waived service of) process in this action. 

92. Defendant UBS REAL ESTATE SECURITIES, INC. (•/a PAINE •BBER 

REAL ESTATE SECURITIES, INC.) is a Delaware corporation and can be served with legal 

process by serving Ramesh Singh, 1285 Avenue of the Americas, New York, New York 10019. 

Defendant i"•ll',JE WEBBER •vlOR ,•AtJc. A•_X.I•r- tAN•.• (2CIRP•R •TiON 

IV is a Delaware corporation and can be served with legal process by serving Joseph Piscina, 

1285 Avenue of the Americas, New York, New York 10019. 

94. Defendant UCFC LOAN TRUST 1997-C is a business trust and can be served 

with legal process by serving Bankers Trust Company, William Christoph, 130 Liberty Street, 

New York. New York 10006. 

95. Defendant UMLIC VP LLC is a North American limited liability company and 

can be served with legal process by serving Renee S. Alexander, 6701 Carmel Road, Ste. 400, 

Charlotte, NC 28226. 
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96. Defendant L•'ITED COMPANIES FUNDING, INC. is Louisiana corporation and 

can be served with legal process by serving its officer or person in charge, 8549 United Plaza 

Blvd., Baton Rouge, LA 70809. 

97. Defendant UNITED COMPANIES LENDING CORPORATION is a Delaware 

business and can be served with legal process by serving its officer or person in charge, 8549 

United Plaza Blvd., Baton Rouge, LA 70809. 

98. Defendant U.S. BANK, NA ND is a national bank that has previously been served 

with (or waived service of) process in this action. 

99. Defendant U.S. BANK, NA is a national bank that has previously been served 

with (or waived service of) process in this action. 

100. Defendant WACHOVIA TRUST COMPANY NATIONAL ASSOCIATION is a 

business association__ and can be served with !ega! process by serving •Ls;* officer or person m" 

charge, Rodney Square, 920 King Street, 1 st Floor, Wilmington, DE 19801. 

101. Defendant WELLS FARGO BANK MINNESOTA NATIONAL ASSOCIATION 

a naL•u•m bank and can be served w•m •e•a• process by serving___ its bank president, O •-• & 

Marquette, Minneapolis, MN 55480. 

102. Defendant WILMINGTON TRUST COMPANY is a Delaware bank that 

previously has been served with (or waived service of) process in this action. 

103. Each of the business associations named in paragraphs 9 through 102 above (the 

"INVESTOR DEFENDANTS") purchased and/or is 
ar wa< an owner, assignee (ho!der) 

and/or the trustee and/or agent of an entity, trust, fund or pool owning and/or holding the Second 

Mortgage Loans made to PLAINTIFFS and the members of the Plaintiff Class, which Second 

Mortgage Loans were oriNnated and/or made bv CENTURY FINANCIAL (or a finder or broker 
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on its behalf), all as is more particularly set forth below. 

The Doe Defendants 

104. Defendants DOE through 25 ("DOES 1-25") are the remaining owners, 

assignees (holders) and trusts, funds and/or pools, and the trustees and/or agents thereof, 

organized under various state laws, if any, that are yet to be named and whose identity will 

become known through discovery and/or by requests made by Plaintiffs or the members of the 

plaintiff class of their second mortgage servicers, after which such remaining assignees (holders) 

and trusts, funds and pools, and the trustees and/or agents thereof, to the extent that they can be 

identified, will be added as individual defendants. 

The Assignee Defendants 

105. Each of the INVESTOR DEFENDANTS and DOES 1 through 25 (collectively, 

the "ASSIGNEE DEFENDANTS") is named as a Defendant both individually, in its capaciD" as 

an owner and/or assignee (holder) of, and/or the trustee and/or agent (including agent servicer) of 

an entity, trust, fund or pool owning or holding, the Second Mortgage Loans, and as a member 

• re-- •+•,,• ,-,,•--•, 
mlu pleo,•ma w•y other member oi the Defendant Class (as hereinafter defined), which 

includes the remaining owners and assignees (holders) of, and trustees and/or agents (including 

agent servicers) of the entities, trusts, funds and pools owning and/or holding, said Second 

Mortgage Loans. 

106. The ASSIGNEE DEFENDANTS, individually and/or through their bank trustees 

or other trustees and/or agents, purchased the Second Mortgago T that CENTURY 

FINANCIAL made to PLAINTIFFS and the Plaintiff Class pursuant to one or more standing 

agreements and/or a course of business dealing with CENTURY FINANCIAL and/or on a 

"secondary market" comprised of businesses like said ASSIGNEE DEFENDANTS and used the 
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Second Mortgage Loans and the money streams they generated as for purposes of investment, 

including use of the loans and money streams as collateral for notes that certain ASSIGNEE 

DEFENDANTS and their trustees and agents sold to the public. 

107. The existence of these agreements, course of dealing and "secondary market," and 

the capital that the ASSIGNEE DEFENDANTS provided to CENTURY FINANCIAL by 

agreeing to repurchase the loans that it originated and made, enabled CENTURY FINANCIAL to 

make the second mortgage home loans it was making in the first place, including the Missouri 

Second Mortgage Loans at issue. 

108. Each of the ASSIGNEE DEFENDANTS is a "moneyed corporation" within the 

meaning of § 516.420 Mo. Rev. Stat. in that the ASSIGNEE DEFENDANTS, and each of them, 

at all relevant times: (a) purchased and/or acquired the subject Second Mortgage Loans made by 

CENTUI•Y FINANCIAL, which originated and funded the loans in violation of Missouri law; 

(b) was so closely-connected to CENTURY FINANCIAE, directly or through an affiliated entity, 

by virtue of certain business arrangements, that they should be deemed "moneyed corporations" 

Luu, tc• were ,mgagec• princi•)allv if not excl-•siveiy m me business •+" •,,•,-oh•,,• and/or 

acquiring residential mortgage loans and the money streams such loans generated in competition 

with banks, and used the loans to collateralize evidences of indebtedness that the ASSIGNEE 

DEFENDANTS sold to the public; and/or (d) are business enterprises engaged in the business of 

using money to make money, as is shown by the above. 

Jurisdiction and Venue 

109. Tiff s Court has jurisdiction over CENTURY FINANCIAL, MASTER 

FINANCIAL and each of the other ASSIGNEE DEFENDANTS, since each transacted business, 

made a contract, committed a tort and/or are or were assigmees, trustees and/or agents of such 
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entities and/or of the Second Mortgage Loans, and/or used or possessed an interest in real estate 

located within the state of Missouri, all as is herein alleged. 

110. CENTURY FINANCIAL is subject to the jurisdicti on of this Court, either having 

a re•stered agent in and/or a continuous systematic presence in or contacts within the State of 

Missouri, and/or pursuant to §506.500 Mo. Rev. Stat. having further: 

(a) Transacted business within this state by virtue of its making numerous Second 

Mortgage Loans (as hereinafter defined) in this state; 

(b) Made contracts within this state by virtue of its making numerous Second 

Mortgage Loans in this state and the contracts made in conjunction with such Second Mortgage 

Lomns; 

(c) Colrnnitted tortious acts within this state by virtue of its violations of Missouri's 

Second Mortgage Loan Act •.**•,•*,• •',•o •,**,,v,1 ,•,,•'1 collection and conversion of monies in violation of 

such Act (including without limitation, continuing to collect illegal interest from the class 

members as more specifically set forth below); and 

(d) Used reai estate situated in this state t• •iloc•nilve,•.•a secure t'o•n•. < • •,a•.•+ 

Loans that are the subject of this action. 

111. Each of the ASSIGNEE DEFENDANTS is subject to the jurisdiction of this 

Court, either having a registered agent in and/or a continuous and systematic presence in or 

contacts with the state of Missouri, and/or pursuant to the provisions of §506.500 Mo. Rev. Stat., 

having further, individually and/or through one or more •astees and/or agents: 

(a) Transacted business within this state individually and/or by virtue of being an 

assignee (holder) or the trustee and/or agem of an assignee of the Second Mortgage Loans (as 

hereinafter defined) of CENTURY FINANCIAl.0 and/or by vitae of it being a holder of and/or a 
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trustee and/or agent of a holder of said Second Mortgage Loans and collecting and/or attempting 

to collect the benefits of and amounts due under said Second Mortgage Loans from and/or within 

this state; 

(b) Made contracts within this state individually and/or by virtue of being an assignee 

(holder) or the trustee and/or agent of an assignee of CENTURY FINANCIAL and/or said 

Second Mortgage Loans; 

(c) Committed tortious acts within this state individually and/or by virtue of being an 

assignee (holder) or the trustee and/or agent of an assignee of CENTURY FINANCIAL and/or 

the Second Mortgage Loans, and/or by virtue of its continuing to charge and receive illegal costs 

and fees in violation of Missouri law and in their receipt of illegal interest from PLAINTIFFS 

and the Plaintiff Class, all as is more specifically set forth below; and 

•w• Used real estate siVaated in this state •o secure the Second Mortgage Loans 

individually and/or by virtue of being an assignee (holder) or the trustee and/or agent of an 

assignee of CENTURY FINANCIAL and/or the Second Mortgage Loans, and/or by virtue of its 

contim].ir_•g capacity as the beneficiary of •he deeds of trust and mortgages, or the trustee and/or 

agent for such beneficiaries, that secure the Second Mortgage Loans. 

112. Venue is proper in this Court pursuant to the terms of §408.562 Mo. Rev. Stat. 

because plaintiffs reside in this county and because the transactions complained of occurred in 

this county and pursuant to §407.025 Mo. Rev. Stat. and because plaintiffs reside in this county 

and pursuant to §508.0!n Mo. •o,, •,• • the subject causes of 0÷; "• ;• •;'•o 

county. 

113. 

General AlleRations 

PLA _INTIFFS bring this action individually and as a class action on behalf of the 
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statewide class of Missouri residential real estate owners or borrowers who obtained Second 

Mortgage Loans from CENTURY FINANCIAL. "Second Mortgage Loans" are defined at 

§408.231.et seq. Mo. Rev. Stat. to mean •... a loan secured in whole or in part by a lien upon any 

interest in residential real estate created by a security instrument, including a mortgage, trust 

deed, or other similar instrument or document which residential real estate is subject to one or 

more prior mortgage loans." 

114. "Residential real estate" is defined at §408.231.3 Mo. Rev. Stat., to mean •... any 

real estate used or intended to be used as a residence by not more than four families Finally, 

§408.234.2 Mo. Rev. Stat. makes it illegal for a lender to take a security interest in any collateral 

other than residential real estate in connection with a Second Mortgage Loan. 

115. From and after six years prior to the original filing of this action and through the 

present time, CENTURY FINANCIAL made Second Mortgage Loans to PLAINTIFFS and the 

members of the Plaintiff Class. 

116. In each of the of the Second Mortgage Loans at issue, CENTURY FINANCIAL 

received a promissor.y note from PLAiN•b rand from the var•o-•s piai_n_tiff classes (as 

hereinafter defined) and was named as the "Beneficiary" in a second mortgage deed of trust to 

secure the sNd Second Mortgage Loans. 

117. In connection with these Second Mortgage Loans, the rate of interest was 

unlawful, except for the lawful rate of interes• permitted by Missouri's Second Mortgage Loans 

Act. and in particular § 408.233.1 Moo Rev. Stat. 

118. In connection with these Second Mortgage Loans CENTURY FINANCIAL 

contracted for, charged and received, and the INVESTOR and ASSIGNEE DEFENDANTS 

charged and received fees and costs that violated Missouri's Second Mortgage Loans Act. In 
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particular, CENTURY FINANCIAL contracted for, and CENTURY FINANCIAL and the 

INVESTOR and ASSIGNEE DEFENDANTS charged and received, Origination Fees (or 

finder's fees or broker's fees) that were either wholly prohibited by or in excess of that allowed 

by Missouri's Second Mortgage Loans Act, § 408.233.1(5) Mo. Rev. Stat. In addition, 

CENTURY FINANCIAL contracted for and CENTURY FINANCIAL and INVESTOR and 

ASSIGNEE DEFENDANTS charged and received other closing costs that were either not paid to 

third parties of the lender or were not permitted by or were in excess of those permitted by 

Missouri's Second Mortgage Loans Act, § 408.233.1(3) Mo. Rev. Stat. 

119. These unlawful closing costs and other fees were payable at the time that the loans 

were funded and were added to the principal balance of the Second Mortgage Loan notes and on 

which amounts interest was charged, as it was charged on the entire principal balance of the 

notes. 

120. Since acquiring the loans, the ASSIGNEE DEFENDANTS, individually and/or 

through their bank trustees or other trustees and/or agents, have and "charged" and/or "received" 

(and cantinue m collect, L•chargo" • •"receive") p•j,•,• •'+',• interest on the •,•,•, •o• well- as a 

portion of the pre-paid origination fees and closing costs that were financed as a part of the loan 

amounts. 

The Baker Second Mortgage Loan 

121. On or about November 24, 1997, CENTURY FINANCIAL loaned the BAKERS 

$33,500.00 to be repaid ,•;•',,• interest at •'•,, yearly rate of I •.•na°//o in consecutive mummy- 

installments over a period of 15 years. 

122. The 13.99% rate charged was a lawful rate permitted in § 408.232.1, but it was 

otherwise "unlawfifl" withnnt r•cr•rct ta the rnto om'niftoct {n N A(]9 9"1')1 Th• A• 
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Percentage Rate (APR) for the loan was 16.568%. 

123. To secure repayment of their note, the BAKERS were required to and did execute 

a deed of trust for the benefit of CENTURY FINANCIAL. The deed of trust granted CENTURY 

FINANCIAL a security lien in residential real estate as defined at §408.231 et seq. Mo. Rev. Star. 

and was subject to one or more prior mortgage loans. 

124. In connection with this Second Mortgage Loan, CENTURY FINANCIAL charged 

the following fees and costs payable at closing and each of which was an illegal settlement 

charge, in violation of Missouri's Second Mortgage Loans Act (§408.231.et seq. Mo. Rev. Stat.): 

Origination Fee to CENTURY FINANCIAL $2,500.00 
Loan Discount to CENTURY FINANCIAL 335.00 
Underwriting Fee to t•EN 

• 
t•RY FINANCIAL 495.00 

Document Signing Fee to CENTURY FINANCIAL 150.00 
Check and Wire Fee to CENTURY FINANCIAL 155.00 
Document Preparation Fee to CENTURY FINANCIAL 150.00 

125. The BAKERS incurred these Origination Fees and closing costs and fees when 

the loan was funded by financing such over the life of the loan, as evidenced by the fact that such 

charges were included in the principal balance of the note. 

126. Any or all of the above fees and costs that CENTURY FINANCIAL and/or any of 

the ASSIGNF_E DEFENDANTS charged, contracted for and/or received from the Bakers was an 

illegal settlement charge, in violation of Missouri's Second Mortgage Loans Act (§ 408.233.1 

Mo. Rev. Stat. et seq.), in that, among other things, (a) the loan origination fee exceeded that 

which CENTURY FINANCIAL could lawfully contract for, charge, and/or receive; and/or (b) 

CENTURY FINANCIAL was prohibited by § 408.233.1 from charging, contracting for, and/or 

receiving from the Bakers any loan discount, underwriting, document signing, check and wire, 

and/or document preparation fees. 
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127. Since November 1997, the Bakers made all of the monthly payments due under 

their second mortgage loan, paying the same to CENTURY FINANCIAL and/or to any one or 

more AS SIGNEE DEFENDANTS that purchased and/or acquired the loan, and/or that serviced 

and handled the loan as an agent on behalf of others, including DEFENDANTS MASTER 

FINANCIAL, INC., MASTER FINANCIAL ASSET SECURITIZATION TRUST 1998-1, and 

DEFENDANTS WTC and BANK OF NEW YORK, its co-trustees. 

128. The Bakers continued to make monthly payments on their loan until February 

2001, when they paid it off, and the ASSIGNEE DEFENDANTS that purchased and/or acquired 

the loan, and/or that serviced and handled the loan as an agent on behalf of others, continued to 

-•-ar•,• and receive the monthly pa•,rnents .+.,-,, 
e, 

ugh •ha• date. 

The Cox Second MortRage Loan 

129. Or• or about September 30, 1997, CENTURY FINANCLa•L loaned the COXES 

$48,000.00 to be repaid with interest at the yearly rate of 15.99% in consecutive monthly 

installments over a period of 20 years. 

1• The •,•o/ t•ennm• i• § ,+•_)•.z32.!, but it was •_,,,. •a.• •o rate charged was a lawful rate 

otherwise "unlawful" without regard to the rate permitted in § 408.232.1. The Annual 

Percentage Rate (APR) for the loan was 17.941%. 

131. To secure repayment of their note, the COXES were required to and did execute a 

deed of trust for the benefit of CENTURY FINANCIAL. The deed of trust granted CENTURY 

FINANCIAL a security lien in residential real estate as defined at §408.231 et seq. Mo. Rev. Stat. 

and was subject to one or more prior mortgage loans. 

132. In connection with this Second Mortgage Loan, CENTURY FINANCIAL charged 

the following fees and costs payable at closing and each of which was an illegal settlement 
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charge, in violation of Missouri's Second Mortgage Loans Act (§408.231 .et seq. Mo. Rev. Stat.): 

Origination Fee to CENTURY FINANCIAL 
Underwriting Fee to CENTURY FINANCIAL 
Wire Fee to CENTURY FINANCIAL 
Document Signing Fee to CENTURY FINANCIAL 
Document Preparation Fee to CENTURY FINANCIAL 

$3,500.00 
495.00 
50.00 

150.00 
150.00 

133. The COXES incurred these Origination Fees and dosing costs and fees when the 

loan was funded by financing such over the life of the loan, as evidenced by the fact that such 

charges were included in the principal balance of the note. 

134. Any or all of the above fees and costs that CENTURY FINANCIAL and/or any of 

the ASSIGNEE DEFENDANTS charged, contracted for and/or received from the Coxes was an 

illegal settiement charge, in violation of Missouri's Second Mortgage Loans Act (§ 408.233.1 

Mo. Rev. Stat. et seq.), in that, among other things, (a) the loan origination fee exceeded that 

,•,l,;ov, c'•xt•pt tov FINANCIAL 1,• uumu lawf•ally contract •or, charge, and/or receive; and/or (b) 

CENTURY FINANCIAL was prohibited by § 408.233.1 from charging, contracting for, and/or 

receiving from the Coxes any underwriting, wire, document signing and/or document preparation 

fees. 

135. Since September 1997, the Coxes have made all of the monthly payments due 

under their second mortgage loan, paying the same to CENTURY FINANCIAL and/or to any 

one or more ASSIGNEE DEFENDANTS that purchased and/or acquired the loan, and/or that 

serviced and handled the loan as an agent on behalf of others, including DEFENDANTS 

MASTER FINANCIAL, rXTC• •^c•o r:r•^•,•^• •E 

1998-I, and DEFENDANTS WTC and BANK OF NEW YORK, its co-trustees. 

136. The Coxes continue to ma•e monthly payments on their loan to this dan and the 

ASSIGNEE DEFENDANTS that purchased •,,d/or ;,'•,• +•,• ,•/•- +• :•.• ^-J 
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handled the loan as an agent on behalf of others, continue to charge and receive the monthly 

payments. 

The Sprin•er Second Mort•oa•oe Loan 

137. On or about October 8, 1997, CENTURY FINANCIAL loaned the SPRINGERS 

$29,200.00 to be repaid with interest at the yearly rate of 13.99% in consecutive monthly 

installments over a period of 20 years. 

138. The 13.99% rate charged was a lawful rate permitted in § 408.232.1, but it was 

otherwise "unlawful" without regard to the rate permitted in § 408.232.1. The Annual 

Percentage Rate (APR) for the loan was 16.648%. 

139. To secure repa},•-nent of their note, the SPRINGERS were required to and did 

execute a deed of trust for the benefit of CENTURY FINANCIAL. The deed of trust granted 

CENTURY FINANCIAL a security lien in residential real estate as defined at §408.231 et seq. 

Me. Rev. Stat. and was subject to one or more prior mortgage loans. 

140. In connection with this Second Mortgage Loan, CENTURY FINANCIAL charged 

•p•e fOllOWing fees_ and_ c•sts_ r-•n•whl° at closing and ,•,•'•°'•" •,•"+• which was an mcgm b•ttlel-n•m 

charge, in violation of Missouri's Second Mortgage Loans Act (§408.231.et seq. Me. Rev. Stat.): 

Origination Fee to CENTURY FINANCIAL 
Underwriting Fee to CENTURY FINANCIAL 
Wire Fee to CENTURY FINANCIAL 
Document Signing Fee to CENTURY FINANCIAL 
Document Preparation Fee to CENTURY FINANCIAL 

$2,900.00 
495.00 
50.00 

150.00 
150.00 

141 The •qPRIN,•r•o • '• ÷•'• On•,,•,• Fees closing costs and fees when 

the loan was •nded by financing such over the l•fe of the loan, as evidenced by the fact that such 

charges were included in the p•ncipal bal•ce of the note. 

142 •v or all of the above fee• nnd e,•rc the* O•NTUR Y •T A •70• • T • 

44 



the ASSIGNEE DEFENDANTS charged, contracted for and/or received from the Springers was 

an illegal settlement charge, in violation of Missouri's Second Mortgage Loans Act (§ 408.233.1 

Mo. Rev. Stat. et seq.), in that, among other things, (a) the loan origination fee exceeded that 

which CENTURY FINANCIAL could lawfully contract for, charge, and/or receive; and/or (b) 

CENTURY FINANCIAL was prohibited by § 408.233.1 from charging, contracting for, and/or 

receiving from the Springers any underwriting, wire, document signing and/or document 

preparation fees. 

143. Since October 1997, the Springers have made all of the monthly payments due 

under their second mortgage loan, paying the same to CENTURY FINANCIAL and/or to any 

one or more ASSIGNEE DEFENDANTS that purchased and/or acquired the loan, and/or that 

serviced and handled the loan as an agent on behalf of others, including DEFENDANTS 

MASTER F1NA•wIAL, E'•w., IVLASTER FI•,•ANt•LAL ASSET SECURiTIZATiON TRUST 

1998-1, and DEFENDANTS WTC and BANK OF NEW YORK. its co-trustees. 

144. The Springers continue to make monthly pa3qnents on their loan to this day and 

the ASSIGNEE __•rm•NDANmS• ,•,• •,•,•o,•'•°•'• and/or acquired the •,,o•,•o• and/or •-•-•*•**•,• serviced 

and handled the loan as an agent on behalf of others, continue to charge and receive the monthly 

payments. 

Class Action for Violations of Missouri's Second Loans Act 

Plaintiff Class Action Allegations 

.4 action is proper •,,,•.t as a •310•itlt,IJi GleNN i•l.•SLIOn unucr iv, O. Rule 

The Class ("SECOND MORTGAGE CLASS") consists of all persons who satisfy the following 

criteria: 
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CENTURY FINANCIAL within the meaning of Missouri's Second Mortgage Loans Act, 

§§408.231 et seq.; and 

(b) That as part of that Second Mortgage Loan paid either an Origination Fee 

(sometimes called a finder's fee or a mortgage broker or broker fee) or paid closing costs that 

were either not bona fide or were not paid to third parties but were paid to the lender CENTURY 

FINANCIAL or were not closing costs expressly set forth in § 408.233.1(3) Mo. Rev. Stat., and 

all in violation of Missouri's Second Mortgage Loans Act. 

146. The SECOND MORTGAGE CLASS includes persons who entered into such 

loans within six years next before the original filing of this action. 

147. The particular members of the SECOND MORTGAGE CLASS are capalole of 

being described without difficult managerial or administrative problems. The members of the 

SECOND MORTGAGE CLASS are readi!y idepXifiab!e •om the information and records in the 

possession or control of CENTURY FINANCIAL and/or the ASSIGNEE DEFENDANTS and/or 

the representatives or servicing agents of each. 

individual joinder of all members is impractical. 

wLAS• members are so numerous that 

This allegation is based on the fact that 

CENTURY FINANCIAL made extensive Second Mortgage Loans in Missouri throughout this 

period. 

149. There are questions of law and fact common to the Class, which questions 

predominate over any questions affecting only individua! members of THE SECOND 

MORTGAGE CLASS and, in fact, the wrongs suffered and remedies sought by PLAINTIFFS and 

the other members of THE SECOND MORTGAGE CLASS are identical, the only difference 

being the exact monetary, amount to which each member of THE SECOND MORTGAC,• (21 a, RR 
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is entitled. The principal common issues are: 

(a) Whether CENTURY FINANCIAL and the ASSIGNEE DEFENDANTS 

(individually, and as a Defendant class as defined below) violated §408.231 et seq. Mo. Rev. 

Stat. by charging and/or receiving from PLAINTIFFS and the SECOND MORTGAGE CLASS 

the fees and charges described above; 

(b) Whether CENTURY FINANCIAL and the ASSIGNEE DEFENDANTS 

(individually, and as a defendant class as defined below) are barred under the provisions of 

§408.236 Mol Rev. Stat. from the recovery of any interest under these Second Mortgage Loans 

and whether they are liable to remm all past interest illegally received and should be enjoined 

from receiving any future interest; 

(c) Whether CENTURY FINANCIAL and the ASSIGNEE DEFENDANTS 

(individually, and as a defendant class) are liable, in addition to the other civil remedies or 

penalties, for actual damages, together with punitive damages and attorneys fees pursuant to 

§408.562 Mo. Rev. Stat. 

MORTGAGE CLASS and are based on the same legal and factual theories. 

151. PLAINTIFFS will fairly and adequately represent and protect the interests of 

the Class. They have suffered substantial economic injury in their own capacity from the 

practices complained of. They have retained counsel experienced in handling class actions and 

actions -•vol ¢•s practices. •'•;+•'• 

any conflicting interests which might cause them not to vigorously pursue this action. 

152. Certification of a plaintiff class under Mo. Rule 52.08(b)(2) is appropriate as 
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defendant class), in that these defendants have (directly or as assignees or the trustees of such 

assignees) illegally collected closing costs, fees and interest on these Second Mortgage Loans and 

pursuant to §408.236 Mo. Rev. Stat. those defendants and each of them (and especially the 

holders of these Second Mortgage Notes and their trustees) should be enjoined from continuing 

to collect any interest from these Second Mortgage Notes, and ordered to return any interest 

previously collected. 

153. Certification of a plaintiff class under Mo. Rule 52.08(b)(3) is also appropriate 

as to CENTURY FINANCIAL and the ASSIGNEE DEFENDANTS (individually, and as a 

defendant class), in that common questions predominate over any questions pertaining to 

individual member of the SECOND MORTGAGE CLASS and a plaintiff class action is superior 

to other available methods for the fair and efficient adjudication of this controversy. A plaintiff 

class •'•; a,•,ol, will cause an orderly and expeditious administration of THE SECOND 

MORTGAGE CLASS claims and economies of time, effort and expense will be fostered and 

uniformity of decisions will be insured. Moreover, the individual class members are likely to be 

nnaware af their rights and 
nnT • a position (e•fno• *•, "• ,•,o•,, • ;•,m,• 

commence individual litigation against CENTURY FINANCIAL and the ASSIGNEE 

DEFENDANTS. 

Defendants' Liability Under Missouri's Second Mortgage Loans Act 

154. Each of the loans that CENTURY FINANCIAL made to PLAINTIFFS and to the 

members of TN• SECOND •,•,•,•,••'xc•c"• c•^cc,•oo constituted a "Second Mortgage •um•" 

within the meaning of §408.231 et seq. Mo. Rev. Stat. 

155. § 408.233 Mo. Rev. Stat. provides in pertinent part as follows: 

Na charge other than that penmitted by •o•-t•n,, aa• oav •h,u be •;•oo,•,, 
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indirectly charged, contracted for or received in connection with any 
Second Mortgage Loan, except as provided in this section: 

(3) Bona Fide closing costs paid to third parties, which shall include: 

(a) Fees or premiums for title examination, title insurance, or similar purposes 
including survey; 

(b) Fees for preparation of a deed, settlement statement, or other documents; 

(c) Fees for notarizing deeds and other documents; 

(d) Appraisal fees; and 

(e) Fees for credit reports 

(5) A nom-efundable origination fee not to exceed two percem of the 
principal... (increased to five percent by the 1998 amendment to the 
statute). 

156. CENTURY FINANCIAL and the ASSIGNEE DEFENDANTS violated §408.233 

Mo. Rev. Star. by engaging in the following acts, methods or practices: 

(a) Charging, contracting for, and/or receiving, either directly or indirectly, 

nonrefundable origination fees not allowed by and in excess of what fees were allowed by 

408.233.i(5); 

(b) Charging, contracting for, and/or receiving, either directly or 
indirectly, c!osing 

fees and costs that were (i) not allowed by the statute; or (ii) in excess of those allowed by the 

statute, including costs and fees not paid to third parties or costs and fees in excess of those 

otherwise permitted by the statute. 

•7 Mo. Rev. •* § zt08 236 ;•o 
e as follows: 

Any person violating the provisions of sections 408.231 to 408.237 shall be barred from 
recovery of any interest on the contract, except where such violation occurred either: 

(1) As a result of an acci dental and bona fide error of computations; or 
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(2) As a result of any acts done or omitted in reliance on a written interpretation of 
the provisions of sections 408.231 to 408.240 by the division of finance. 

158. The conduct of CENTURY FINANCIAL and the ASSIGNEE DEFENDANTS 

and the resulting statutory violations described above did not occur as a result of an accidental 

and bona fide error of computation or as a result of any acts done or omitted in reliance on any 

governmental interpretation; said conduct was. instead, intentional, willfu!, waaaton and 

malicious, or otherwise showed a complete indifference to and/or a conscious disregard of 

Missouri law and the rights of PLAINTIFFS and each member of THE SECOND MORTGAGE 

CLASS. 

159. As the purchasers and/or assignees and holders or as the trustees and/or agents for 

the assignees and holders of the notes and deeds of trust given under the Second Mortgage Loans 

by PLAINTIFFS and the members of the SECOND MORTGAGE CLASS, the ASSIGNEE 

DEFENDANTS (individually, and as a defendant class, as hereinafter defined) are liable to 

PLAINTIFFS and the SECOND MORTGAGE CLASS, just as CENTURY FINANCIAL is 

liable to PLAINTIFFS and the SECOND MORTGAGE CLASS in that (a) the ASSIGNEE 

DEFENDANTS are the assignees, directly or indirectly of CENTURY FINANCIAI_, and stand 

;" the •'• .• T•'•T ...... (b) s of C•N 
• 
•RY F•,•IAL, the ASSIcilNP_,P_, DEFENDANTS charged and 

received (and continue to charge and receive) illegal fees and costs on the loans, together with 

the resulting i11egal interest charges; and (c) the points and fees and/or Annual Percentage Rates 

(APRs) for the loans is such that the ASSIGNEE DEFENDANTS (individually, and as a 

defendant class) are liable to PLAINTIFFS and the SECOND MORTGAGE CLASS, ,just as 

CENTURY FINANCIAL is liable. 

160. CENTURY FINANCIAL and the ASSIGNEE DEFENDANTS (individually, and 
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as a defendant class, as hereinafter defined) are derivatively and/or jointly and severally liable to 

PLAINTIFFS and the SECOND MORTGAGE CLASS for all of the unlawful closing costs and 

fees and interest they have charged and/or received (or hereinafter charge or receive) under the 

Second Mortgage Loans, and any such costs, fees and interest collected after the date of the filing 

of this action shall be additional evidence of the willful and malicious nature of and conscious 

disregard of the acts of CENTURY FINANCIAL and the ASSIGNEE DEFENDANTS 

(individually, and as a defendant class, as hereinafter defined). 

161. CENTURY FINANCIAL and the ASSIGNEE DEFENDANTS (individually, and 

as a defendant class, as hereinafter defined) and each of them should be forever barred and 

enjoined, under §408.236 Mo. Rev. Star. from collecting or recovering any costs, fees and 

interest on the Second Mortgage Loans of PLAINTIFFS and the other members of the SECOND 

MORTGAGE CLASS for the reasons set out above. 

162. Mo. Rev. Stat. § 408.562 provides as follows: 

In addition to any other remedies or penalties provided for by law, any person who 
suffers any loss of money or property as a result of any act, method or practice in 
vlolaLlon of me provisions of sections 408.100 to 408.56i may onng an action in 
the circuit court of the county in which any of the defendants reside, in which the 
plaintiff resides, or in which the transaction complained of occurred to recover 

actual ui:tllli:tgub. The coati may, in its mscretlon, award punitive damages and 
may award to the prevailing party in such action attorney's fees, based on the 
amount of time reasonably expended, and may provide such action attorney's fees, 
based on the amount of time reasonably expended, and may provide such 
equitable relief as it deems necessary and proper. 

163. As a result of the statutory violations described above, PLAIN'TIFFS and other 

members of the SECOND MORTGAGE CLASS suffered a loss of money or property in that 

they were charged and paid and/or becane obligated to pay loan closing costs and fees in 

amounts greater than those allowed by Missouri law and were charged interest in violation of 
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Missouri law. 

164. The conduct of CENTURY FINANCIAL (and the ASSIGNEE DEFENDANTS 

by virtue of their status as assignees or trustees for the assignees) and the resulting violations of 

Missouri law, were intentional, willful, wanton and malicious, or otherwise showed a complete 

indifference to or a conscious disregard of the rights of each PLAINTIFF and the other members 

of the SECOND MORTGAGE CLASS, including, without limitation, the fact that defendant, 

U.S. BANK as trustee over certain trusts holding loans originated by CENTURY FINANCIAL, 

continued to collect interest after it knew of the violations of Missouri law, therefore entitling 

PLAINTIFFS and the SECOND MORTGAGE CLASS to punitive damages against the 

•ac•l of them in such amount as is fair and reasonable to punish defendants and to 

deter defendants and others from like conduct. 

Defendant Class Action Allegations 

165. This action is properly brought as a defendant class action under Mo. Rule 52.08. 

The defendant class ("THE DEFENDANT SECOND MORTGAGE CLASS") consists of all 

persons who oaub,v the fo,lowln• criteria: 

(a) Those persons or entities or their trustees that received any interest from the 

Second Mortgage Loans of PLAINTIFFS or the SECOND MORTGAGE CLASS as a result of 

an assigmment or transfer of such Second Mortgage Loans to the recipient of such interest or the 

trustee of such a recipient; or 

(b) Those persons or entities or their :rustees tha• have held or now ho!d, by vitae of 

transfer or assigrmaent or otherwise (including acting as trustee of such holder or assignee), the 

Second Mortgage Loans of PLAINTIFFS or the SECOND MORTGAGE CLASS. 

166. The particular members of THE DEFENDANT SECOND MORTGAGF CI&SS 
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are capable of being described without difficult managerial or administrative problems. The 

members of THE DEFENDANT SECOND MORTGAGE CLASS are readily identifiable from 

the infolTnation and records in the possession or control of CENTURY FINANCIAL and/or the 

representatives or servicing agents of the Second Mortgage Loans or the assignees or holders (or 

their trustee(s)) of such Second Mortgage Loans. 

167. Upon information and belief, THE DEFENDANT SECOND MORTGAGE 

CLASS members are so numerous that individual joinder of all members is impractical. This 

allegation is based on the fact that CENTURY FINANCIAL made extensive Second Mortgage 

Loans in Missouri throughout this period and those loans have since been assigned to a number 

of mortgage trusts or pools and may thereafter have been reassigned. 

168. There are questions of law and fact common to THE DEFENDANT SECOND 

MORTGAGE CLASS which t•,,•,o • •1,, qu,,s predom.inate over any questions alfectm• 
,,1,• 

individual 

members of THE DEFENDANT SECOND MORTGAGE CLASS and, in fact, the wrongs 

alleged against THE DEFENDANT SECOND MORTGAGE CLASS and remedies sought by 

•'•12"q•,•, and the other members of the xt•x;•NT3 MOR•.•,JAtJtz C•T •,• •,•r the 

ASSIGNEE DEFENDANTS are identical, the only difference being the exact monetary amount 

to which each ASSIGNEE DEFENDANT is liable to the respective members of the SECOND 

MORTGAGE CLASS and the amount of interest that should be barred, enjoined and returned. 

The principal common issues are: 

(a) WSether THE DEFENDANT SECOND MORTGAGE CLASS is liable as a result 

of the violations by CENTURY FINANCIAL of Missouri's Second Mortgage Loans Acl and/or 

whether THE DEFENDANT SECOND MORTGAGE CLASS is entitled to assert any defenses 

to such violations notwithstanding their status as an assignee afthese _n_otes; 
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(b) Whether THE DEFENDANT SECOND MORTGAGE CLASS is barred under 

the provisions of §408.236 Mo. Rev. Stat. from the recovery of any interest under these Second 

Mortgage Loans and whether they are liable to return all past interest illegally received and 

should be enjoined from receiving any future interest; and 

(c) Whether THE DEFENDANT SECOND MORTGAGE CLASS is liable, in 

addition to the other civil remedies or penalties, for actual damages, together with punitive 

damages and attorney's fees pursuant to §408.562 Mo. Rev. Stat. 

169. The ASSIGNEE DEFENDANTS' defenses of THE SECOND MORTGAGE 

CLASS claims (which defenses are denied) are typical of those of the individual members of the 

DEFENDANT SECOND MORTGAGE CLASS and will be based on the same iegal and factual 

theories. 

170, The AgSIGNFF DEFENDANTS (including U.S. BANK as L,,e representative 

trustee of a number of the assignees and holders of these Second Mortgages) will fairly and 

adequately represent and protect the interests of THE DEFENDANT SECOND MORTGAGE 

C•o•, who 
wm 

undoubtedly retain counsel experienced in defending class actions and ae 

involving unlawful commercial practices. Said defendants do not, based upon information and 

belief, have any interests which might cause them not to vigorously defend this action. 

171. Certification of a defendant class under Mo. Rule 52.08(b)(2) is appropriate as to 

the ASSIGNEE DEFENDANTS, in that these defendants, as assignees and/or holders (or their 

trustees) of the Second Mortgage Loans from CENTURY FINANCL4L have i!!egally collected 

closing costs, fees and interest on these Second Mortgage Loans and as holders (or their trustees) 

of the said notes will continue to collect interest, contrary to §408.236 Mo. Rev. Stat., and those 

defendants and each of them (and especially the holders of these Second Mortgage Notes) should 
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be enjoined from collecting any interest from those Second Mortgage Notes and ordered to return 

any interest previously collected. 

172. Certification c•f a defendant class under Mo. Rule 52.08(b)(3) is also appropriate 

as to the ASSIGNEE DEFENDANTS in that common questions predominate over any questions 

pertaining to individual members of the DEFENDANT SECOND MORTGAGE CLASS and a 

defendan• class action is superior to other available methods for the fair and efficient 

adjudication of this controversy. A defendant class action will cause an orderly and expeditious 

administration of THE DEFENDANT SECOND MO•RTGAGE CLASS defenses, if any, and 

economies of time, effort and expenses will be fostered and uniformity of decisions will be 

insured. 

Prayer for Relief 

• •/HEREFORE, LAIN individually and on behalf of themselves and a• members 

of THE SECOND MORTGAGE CLASS, pray for judg•nent against defendants CENTURY 

FINANCIAL and the ASSIGNEE DEFENDANTS and THE DEFENDANT SECOND 

MORTGAGE CLASS and each of them, as foiiows: 

(a) For the continued order of certification allowing that this action may be 

maintained as class action under Mo. Rule 52.08, appointing PLAINTIFFS and their counsel to 

represent the SECOND MORTGAGE CLASS, and directing that reasonable notice of this action 

be given_ to all other members of the SECOND MORTGAGE CLASS; 

(b) For •,• •-•t•- certifying •,• •,•o oo,•,,, may be :•+• ma•o•,• as a defendant • 

under Mo. Rule 52.08, appointing US BANK and any other named ASSIGNEE DEFENDANTS 

to represent THE DEFENDANT SECOND MORTGAGE CLASS, and directing that reasonable 

notice of this action be •ve• to all other members of THE DEFENDANT SECOND 
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MORTGAGE CLASS; 

(c) For a permanent injunction enjoining defendants CENTURY FINANCIAL and 

the ASSIGNEE DEFENDANTS and THE DEFENDANT SECOND MORTGAGE CLASS, 

together with their officers, directors, employees, agents, partners or representatives, successors 

and any and all persons acting in concert from directly or indirectly engaging in the wrongful 

acts and practices described above for the benefit of PLAINTIFFS and the SECOND 

MORTGAGE CLASS; 

(d) For an order directing disgorgement or restitution of all improperly collected 

charges and the imposition of an equitable constructive trust over such amounts for the benefit 

of PLAINTIFFS and other members of the c 
•,•,•,•, 

MORTGAGE CLASS; 

(e) For a declaration that PLAINTIFFS and other members of the SECOND 

MORTGAGE CLA S S have a right to rescind their loan transactions, and/or a right to offset any 

illegal closing costs and interest paid against the principal amounts due on the loans, and an 

order directing CENTURY FINANCIAL and the ASSIGNEE DEFENDANTS and THE 

•.•-• • •,•'•L• r,•tcTtJA•J•, iZbAb• {O !nform PLAINTIFFS and other members of 

the SECOND MORTGAGE CLASS of these rights; 

(f) For actual damages to be proven at the time of trial, including a repayment of all 

interest paid on these Second Mortgage Loans and all unlawful closing costs and fees; 

(g) 

(h) 

(i) 

@) 

(k) 

For punitive dm•qages in a sum that is fair and reasonable; 

For reasonable attorneys' fees as provided by law and statute; 

For pre-and post-judgment interest as provided by law; 

For an award of costs and expenses incurred in this action; and 

For such other and further relief as the Court _m__av deem necessa•z and proper. 
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Respectfully submitted, 

WALTERS BENDER STROHBEHN 
&.VAUGHAN, P.C. 

By 
L/c  

J. Michael Vaughan Mo. Bar 24989 
Kip D. Richards Mo. Bar 39743 
David M. Skeens -Mo. Bar 35728 
2500 City Center Square 
1100 Main Street 
P.O. Box 26188 
Kansas City, MO 64196 
(816) 421-6620 
(816) 421-4747 (Facsimile) 

and 

LAWSON FIELDS McCUE LEE 
& CAMPBELL, P.C. 
Gary Lawson 
Eric Calhoun 
14135 Midway, Ste. 250 
Addison, Texas 75001 
(972) 490-0808 
(972) 490-9545 (Facsimile) 

ATTORNEYS FOR PLAINTIFFS 
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

It is hereby certified that a copy of the above and foregoing was sent by United States 
mail; first-class postage paid this 3 rd day of February 2004 to: 

Scott Martin 
Kara Dorssom 
Husch & Eppenberger, L.L.C. 
1200 Main Street, Suite 1700 
Kansas City, Missouri 64105 
Attorneys for Defendants Master Financial, Inc. and Master Financial Asset Securitization Trust 
1997-1, 1998-1, 1998-2, Integrated Capital Group, Inc., HomeEq Servicing Corporation, The 
Money Store, Inc., and the Bank of New York 

Mark A. Olthoff 
Shughart Thompson & Kilroy, P.C. 
Twelve Wyandotte Plaza 
120 W. 12 th Street, Suite 1700 
Kansas City, Missouri 64105 
Attorneys for U.S. Bank, N.A., U.S. Bank N.A, ND, Republic Bank, Ocwen Federal Bank. FSB, 
Empire Funding Home Loan Trusts 1997-1, 1997-2, 1997-3, 1997-4, 1997-5, 1998-1, 1998-2, 
1999-1, and Wilmington Trust Company 

Scott Brinkman 
Thomas Martin 
Lewis, Rice, Fingersh, L.C. 
One Petticoat Land 
1010 Walnut Street, Suite 500 

*•.•llb•S •ltV. •'•; •,,un 64106 
Attorneys for Aanaximus Lending, L.L.P. and Equicredit Corporation of America 

Lymn S. McCreary 
Jennifer A. Donnelli 
Rebecca S. Jelinek 
Bryan Cave, LLP 
i200 Main, Suite 3500 
Kansas City, Missouri 64105-2130 

Louis F. Bonacorsi 
211 North Broadway, Suite 3600 
St. Louis, Missouri 63102 
Attorneys for First Collateral Services 
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Leslie Greathouse 
Gregory Hancks 
Kutak Rock, L.L.P. 
444 W. 47 th Street, Suite 200 
Valencia Place 
Kansas City, Missouri 64112-1957 
Attorneys for Empire Funding Home Loan Owner Trust 1998-3, Preferred Mortgage Trust 1996- 
2. Preferred Credit Trust 1997-1, and Deutsche Bank Trust Co. Americas f/k/a Bankers Trust 
Company 

Daniel McClain 
Randolph Willis 
Rasmussen, Willis, Dickey, & Moore, L.L.C. 
9200 Ward Parkway, Suite 310 
Kansas City, Missouri 64114 
Attorneys for GMAC-Residential Funding Corporation, Sovereign Bank, Home Loan Trust 
1997-HI3, JPMorgan Chase Bank, Wilmington Trust Company, City National Bank of West 
Virginia 
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THIRD AMENDED PETITION FOR DAMAGES 

The above-named plaintiffs state and allege the following for their Third Amended 

Petition in this cause: 

NATURE OF THE CLAIMS 

1. This action is brought by the plaintiffs on behalf of themselves and as a plaintiffs' 

class action for violations of Missouri's Second Mortgage Loan Act with respect to Missouri 

second mortgage !oans that were originated by MORTGAGE CAPITAL RESOURCES 

CORPORATION (hereinafter "MCR"), a California corporation that has since filed bankruptcy, 

but which second mortgage loans were sold and assigned to the following defendants a•ad which 

defendants are liable for the violations of Missouri's Second Mortgage Loans Act as committed 

by MCR, their assignor and loan originator, and also for the violations committed by the 

following defendants in connection with such loans: RESIDENTIAL FU-NDFNG COMPANY, 

LLC. (sometimes referred to as "GMAC-RFC"), RESIDENTIAL FU-NDING MORTGAGE 

SECURITIES II, INC. ("RFMS"), HOMECOMINGS FINANCIAL NETWORK, LLC 

c"xx• •/r_m• N TRUST") C:'HO•,J•COM•rNGS"a and WT• •r•J•TC•Xj T>.T .•T .c'•r,,X• A•,.TV 
k 

and JP MORG.a2q CHASE BANK, N.A., as Trustee and BANK OF NEW YORK TRUST 

COMPANY, N.A., as Successor Trustee (together "BNY") as the Owner Trustee and ]indenture 

Trustee, respectively, and as representatives and agents of securitized trusts formed by GMAC- 

RFC and RFMS to hold the loans of the putative class members and that hold the loans of the 

named plaintif*%, and HOUSEHOLD FINANCE CORPORATION ItI ("HOUSEHOLD"), and 

WACHOVIA EQUITY SERVICING, LLC. f/kJa HomEq Servicing Corporation ("HOMEQ"), 

MORTGAGE ELECTRONIC REGISTRATION SYSTEMS, INC. ("MERS") and JP MORGAN 

CHASE BANK, N.A., as successor by merger to Bank One, N.A. ("BANK ONE"), all of which 
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defendants purchased or had assigned to them or their controlled subsidiaries or the trusts which 

they caused to be formed and/or for which they are trustees for the said Missouri second 

mortgage loans and which defendants also "charged" and/or "received" monthly payments from 

the borrowers of the second mortgage loans that are the subject of this action, all in violation of 

the Missouri Second Mortgage Loans Act. This case also includes the wrongful and 

conspiratorial efforts of GMAC-RFC and Homecomings to procure second mortgage loans from 

hundreds of Missom:i homeowners because of the extreme profitabilit37 of such loans regardless 

of the legaIity of such loans and ai1 in violation of Missouri's Second Mortgage Loans Act (§ 

408.231 et seq. RSMo) ("SMLA"). 

2. Defendants Giv•C-RFC, RFMS, and their Securitized Trusts, WILMINGTON 

TRUST, BNY, HOMECOMINGS, HOUSEHOLD, MERS, HOMEQ and BANK ONE 

individually, and as representatives of a defendant class, all purchased loans made or originated 

by MCR or had assigned to them loans made or originated by MCR and now hold or previously 

held the hereinafter described second mortgage loans and/or have charged and/or received or 

now charge and/or receive the monthly payments from the borrowers, which illegal fees together 

with the other closing costs were payable at the closing of such second mortgage loans and were 

included in the principal of such loans, and which iIlegal fees and charges were ihereafter 

charged and/or received by the defendants as part of the monthly payments of such second 

mortgage loans. 

3. Plaintiffs are individual Missouri bolTowers that seek redress on behalf of themselves 

and on behalf of a plaintiff class ("PLAINTIFF CLASS") against GMAC-RFC, PdVMS, and their 

Securitized Trusts, WILMINGTON TRUST, BNY, HOMECOMINGS, HOUSEHOLD, MERS, 

HOMEQ and BANK ONE and the other defendants (including a defendant class) consisting of 



those entities that now hold or have held and/or now charge and/or receive or have charged 

and/or received the illegal fees and charges and the resulting illegaI interest from the Missouri 

second mo•gage loans that are the subject of this action for violations of Missouri's SMLA, 

including claims for monetary damages and injunctive relief. 

FACTUAL BACKGROUND 

The Predatory and Fraudulent Lendin• Scheme In General 

4. Plaintiffs and the Plaintiff Class, all as more particularly alleged below, were the 

victims of a predatory lending scheme that charged them bogus and illegal fees and charges, 

together with charging high interest rates all as part of a scheme to make high-cost loans to 

Missouri borrowers, as well as borrowers across the country. Such bogus and illegal fees were 

unlawful under Missouri's SMLA and included illegal origination fees, loan discount fees, 

underwriting fees, processing fees, document preparation fees, attorneys' fees and other fees and 

charges contracted for by MCR and were payable to MCR and were thereafter charged by and 

received by the defendants, together with the illegal interest that were charged by and received 

by these defendants and all of which fees, charges and interest violate Missouri's SMLA. 

5. With respect to the loan origination fees, the loan discount charges, the underwriting 

fees, tt•e processir•g fees and the document fees, such were paid to the originating lender, MCR 

and were not in fac• paid to a third party. Further, the attorneys' fees, regardless of to whom 

such were paid, were not permitted by Missouri's SMLA. 

6. The Missouri second mortgage loans at issue were and are "high-cost" loans under 

the Home Ownership and Equity Protection Act, 15 U.S.C. §§ 1602 and 1641 (hereinafter 

"HOEPA"). 
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7. GMACoRFC and RFMS, individually, and in connection with the securitized trusts 

that were created and formed by them, and through the securitized trusts' Owner Trustee, 

Wilmington Trust, and •ndenmre Trustee, BNY, purchased a substantial number of the'. loans at 

issue from MCR, thereby "stepping into the shoes of" MCR with respect to any tiabiIity, claims 

or defenses arising from the Ioan transactions pursuant to 15 U.S.C. § 1641(d)(1) and also 

pursuant to having "charged" and/or "received" such illegal fees and the resulting illegal interest, 

all in violation of § 408.233 RSMo Supp. 1998. 

8. HOUSEHOLD, HOMEQ and BANK ONE also purchased a number of the loans at 

issue from MCR, thereby "stepping into the shoes of" MCR with respect to any liability, claims 

or defenses arising from the loan transactions pursuant to i5 U.S.C. § i64i(d)(i) and aiso 

pursuant to 
having "charged" and/or "received" such illegal fees and the resulting illegal interest, 

all in violation of § 408.233 RSMo Supp. 1998. Plaintiffs have standing to include 

HOUSEHOLD and HOMEQ in this action on behalf of the members of the Plaintiff Class whose 

loans were purchased, directly or indirectly, from MCR, and which clakrns are juridica1!y linked 

to those of the Representative Plaintiffs in that all of the loans were made by MCR to Missouri 

borrowers and the joinder of HOUSEHOLD, and HOMEQ as parties is. permitted in order to 

afford all members of the class the same relief. 

9. MERS is named in its capacity as a "nominee" for Defendant HOUSEHOLD. As 

nominee for Defendant HOUSEHOLD, MERS has been assigned certain rights and liabilities of 

Household and stands ir• the shoes of HOUSEHOLD. 

i 0. GMAC-RFC and RFMS, to the extent that they individually purchased such loans, 

thereafter sold and assigned the loans, in whole or in substantial part, to securitized trusts that 

they formed for tha• purpose. WILMINGTON" TRUST is the Owner Trustee and BNY is the 



Indenture Trustee of these securitized trusts that continue to hold the subject Missouri second 

mortgage loans. 

".• of• o.M• • second 11. Defendants (as well -• any other holder or ,sslen e o,•j 

mo•gage loans or their respective trustees) have "chaged" to •or "received" from the 

plaintiffs •d the members of the Plaintiff Class those aforementioned illegal fees •d chages 

•d the resulting illegal interest, all in violation of •e SMLA •d in p•icular } 408.233 RSMo 

Supp. 1998. 

t2. Defendants were aware of the fraudulent conduct at issue and they individually •d 

jointly pa•icipated in and acted in •herance of said scheme •d •ded the said scheme by 

providing fne fin•cing necess• to continue •e iilegai scheme, aii in its effo• to feed an 

insatiable appetite for these high cost loans. 

13. MCR aggressively solicited residential home equi• mo•gages across the c0•, 

including Misso•i, all t•ough a massive nationN direct mail marketing campaign. 

The Role Of Defendant GMAC-Residential Fundin• Corporation and Residential Funding 
Mortgage Securities IL Inc. in this Scheme 

although not Ne exclusive p•chaser, was a substantiN p•chaser of the Misso•i second 

mortgage toans made or originated by MCR. 

15. ResidentiaI Funding Co•oration was originally a subsidi• of Banco Mo•gage 

Comply, • affiliate of No•hwestem National B•, the predecessor ofNo•est B•. 

l& InitiNly, Residential Funding Co•oration focused on buying •d securitizing 

"j•bo" mo•gages. "Sec•itization" as used herein and as meant in general temas re•ers to the 

process of consolidating loans (including bm not iimited to residential mo•gage lo•s) and/or 

packaging lo•s (not only mo•gage lo•s) for sNe as securities. 



17. Residential Funding Corporation, like many purchasers of mortgage loans, profited 

by not only purchasing and holding mortgage loans in its own inventory, but also generated 

significant profits by acting directly or through an affi!iate, such as P•MS, to consolidate such 

mortgage loans into securitized pools and sell, as securities, interests in the pools. 

18. Several years ago, Residential Funding Corporation was acquired by General Motors 

Acceptance Corporation and became known as GMAC-RFC. 

19. Some of the most profitable loans that GMAC-RFC could either hold or securitize 

through its affiliates, such as RFMS, or their securitized trusts, were high cost home equity 

mortgage loans, including those commonly referred to as High Loan To Value ("HLTV") loans. 

20. Thus G•vL•C',-RFC and RFMS turned to a number of originators of these high cost 

and often HLTV toans in order to generate substantial profits that were generated from either 

holding such loans in inventory or by securitizing such loans in securitization pools/trusts. 

21. MCR became a substantial source for GMAC-RFC's appetite for these high cost 

loans and in particular became a substantial source of high cost Missomd second mortgage toans 

for GMAC-RFC. 

22. GMAC-RFC, individually, and through its affiliates, including RFMS, and the O-vxmer 

Trustee, WILMINGTON TRUST, and Indenture Trustee, BN2", of the securitized •'•asts, and 

HOMECOMINGS, as the servicer, directly participated in mad conspired with MCR or its 

affiIiated entities to participate in the fraudulent and predatory lending practices of MCR. Said 

defendants' scheme was made possible by said defendants' provision of the necessary funding 

and comrnitment to purchase substantially all of the loans generated by the MCR's lending 

activities and to expemd the same so that GM•a•C-RFC could, in tuna, expand its substantial 

profits from acquiring and/or securitizing these high cost loans through said defendants, 



including a substantial number of the Missouri second mortgage loans that are the subject of this 

action. 

TI-1F,, PARTIES 

The Plaintiffs 

231 Plaintiffs Steven and Ruth Mitchell (the "MITCHELLS") are lawfully married 

individuals who reside at 2109 NW Harbor Place, Blue Springs, Jackson County, Missouri 

64105. 

24. Plaintiff Judith L. Pickerill resides at 712 Edwin Avenue, St. Louis, Missouri 63122. 

The Defendants 

Holder and Char•in•o/Defendants 

25. Defendant RESIDENTIAL FUNDrNG COMPANY, LLC (sometimes referred to 

above and below as "GMAC-RFC") has previously been served with (or waived service of) 

process in this action. 

26. Defendant RESIDENTIAL FUNDING MORTGAGE SECURITIES II, INC. 

("RFMS") has previously been selwed with (or waived service of) process in this action... 

27. Defendant WILMINGTON TRUST COMPANY ("WILMINGTON TRUST") is 

named in its capacity as Trustee for the GMAC-.RFC •_nd RFMS-formed securitization trusts that 

owned and held the named plaintiffs' loans and that own and hold or held the loans of the 

members of the Plaintiff Class. WILMINGTON TRUST is (he Trustee for the 2000-HI1 

securitization trust the MITCHELLS' loan. Wilmington Trust has previously been served with 

(or waived service of) process in this action.. 

28. Defendant JP MORGAN CHASE BANK, N.A., as Trustee, and BANK OF NEW 

YORK TRUST COMPANY, N.A., as Successor Trustee (together "BNY") are named in their 



capacities as the Indenture Trustee and as the Successor Indenture Trustee for the GMAC-RFC 

and RFMS securitization trusts that ovum and hold the named plaintiffs' loans and that own and 

hold the loans of the members of the P!aintiff Class. BNY is the Successor !_ndenture Trustee for 

the 2000-HI1 securitization trust holding the MITCHELLS' loan. BNY has previously been 

served with (or waived service of) process in this action. 

29. Defendant HOMECOMINGS FINANCIAL NETWORK, LLC ("Homecomings") is a 

Delaware corporation (and was known as "a GMAC Company") has previously been se•5'ed with 

(or waived service of) process in this action. HOMECOMINGS is named as a defendant for 

having charged mad received from the named plaintiffs and from the members of the Plaintiff 

Class the iliegai charges and fees and the resulting iiiegai interest from the Missouri second 

mortgage loans that are the subject of this action, and which actions of charging and receiving 

and continuing to charge and receive such illegal charges and fees and the resulting .illegal 

interest, all in violation of the SMLA and in particular, in violation of § 408.233 RSMo. 

30. Defendant HOUSEHOLD FINANCE CORPORATION III ("Household") has 

previously been served with (or waived service of) process in this action. Household is named 

as a defendant for having purchased and held the loans of members of the Plaintiff Class and for 

having cb•arged and received from the named plaintiffs and from the members of the Plaintiff 

Class the illegal charges and fees and the resulting illegal interest from the Missouri second 

mortgage loans that are the subject of this action, and which actions 0f charging and receiving 

and continuing to charge and receive such illegal charges and fees mad the resulting illegal 

interest, all in violation of the SMLA and in particular, in violation of § 408.233 RSMo. 

31. Defendant Mortgage Electronic Registration Systems, Inc. ("MERS") has previously 

been served with (or waived service of) process in this action. MERS is named in its capacity as 



nominee for HOUSEHOLD, having received an assignment of certain rights and liabilities of 

HOUSEHOLD. 

32. Defendant WACHOV!A EQUITY SERVICING, LLC. f/k/a HomEq Servicing 

Corporation has previously been served with (or waived service of) process in this action. 

HOMEQ is named as a defendant for having purchased and held the loans of members of the 

Plaintiff Class and for having charged and received from the named plaintiffs and t¥om the 

members of the Plaintiff Class the illegal charges and fees and the resulting illegal interest from 

the Missouri second mortgage loans that are the subject of this action, and which actions of 

charging and receiving and continuing to charge and receive such illegal charges and fees and 

the resulting iilegai interest, aii in vioiation of the SMLA and in par•icuiar, in vioiation of § 

408.233 RSMo. 

33. JP MORGAN CHASE BANK, N.A., as successor by merger to Bank One, N.A. 

("BANK ONE") is also named as a defendant, since BANK ONE purchased and held the loans 

of named Plaintiff Judith Pickerill and other members of the Plaintiff Class, and fcJ,r having 

charged and received from the named plaintiffs and from the members of the Plaintiff Class the 

illegal charges and fees and the resulting illegal interest from the Missouri second mortgage 

loans that are the subject of this action, and which actions of charging and receiving and 

continuing to charge and receive such illegal charges and fees and the resulting illegal interest, 

all in violation of the SMLA and in particular, in violation of § 408.233 RSMo. 

The Doe Defendants 

34. Defendants DOE 1 tl•'ough 25 ("DOES 1-25") are the remaining owner, assignees 

(holders) and trusts, fur•ds and/or pools, and the trustees thereof, organized under various state 

laws, that are yet to be identified and named, and whose identity wilI become •knownL through 
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discovery and/or by requests made by plaintiffs or the members of the Plaintiff Class of their 

second mortgage servicers, after which such remaining assignees (holders) and trusts, funds and 

pools, and the trustees thereof, to the extent that they can be identified, will be added as 

individual and class representative defendants. 

The Holder•ecipient Defendants 

35. Each of the HOLDER AND CHARGING/RECIPIENT DEFENDANTS and DOES t 

through 25 (collectively, the "HOLDER/RECIPIENT DEFENDANTS"), together with the 

lender, MCR, are "n-loneyed corporations" as that term is defined in § 516.420 RSMo because 

each of said defendants are assignees of the second mortgage loans; entities or association in 

form and in substance engaged in the business of buying loans (streams of money) that are used 

to collateralize certain n•otes or evidences of indebtedness that they sell to the public; as well as 

enterprises that are engaged in the business of using money to make money and each is •amed as 

a defendant both individually and in their capacity as an owner and/or assignee (holder) of, 

and/or the trustee of a trust, fund or pool owning or holding, and/or the servicer of the Missouri 

second mortgage loans that were made by MCR, and as named defendants and representatives of 

every other member of the Defendant Class (as hereinafter defined), which includes the 

remai•n_ing owners and assignees (holders) of, and trustees of the trusts, funds and pools owning 

and/or holding, and servicers of the said Missouri second mortgage loans that were made by 

MCR. 

36. The Holder/Recipients Defendants, even if not holder recipient defendants of the 

Representative Plaintiffs, are juridically lirA•ed by virtue of the fact that each are derivative 

holders and/or recipients of Missouri second mortgage loans made by MCR and are holders 

and/or recipients of the ]oans of either the Representative Plaintiffs or of members of the Plaintiff 
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Class and are joined herein necessarily and permissibly under Mo. Rule 52.04(a) so as to give 

full and complete relief to members of the Plaintiff Class as described, just as such relief is 

sought for the Representative Plaintiffs. 

JURISDICTION AND VENUE 

37. This Court has jurisdiction over each of the HOLDER/RECIPIENT DEFENDANTS 

since each violated Missouri's Second Mortgage Loans Act. In doing so, each of the 

HOLDER/RECIPIENT DEFENDANTS transacted business, made contracts, cormnitted torts 

and unlawful actions in Missouri, and/or are assi•ees or norninees of such entities and/or used 

or possessed an interest in real estate all located within the state of Missouri, and/or are subj ect to 

the service of process in this state, all as is more particuiariy aiieged in this Petition. The 

HOLDER/RECIPIENT DEFENDANTS all have sufficient minimum contacts, and in fact, 

substantial contacts, with Missouri such that the maintenance of the suit does not offend 

traditional notions of fair play and substantial justice. The HOLDER/R_ECIPIENT 

DEFENDANTS have purposefully obtained Missouri second mortgage loans through MCR and 

its other loan originators, brokers and correspondents, and have purposefully charged and/or 

recelve• unlawfhl 5•es and charges *•- •- e m•cuy violating '•: -"• 
•vilbbOUal • 

Second Mu•ga•,• Loans Act 

such that said defendants should reasonably anticipate being haled into court in Missouri to 

answer for the unla,agul acts of MCR and their own unlav•ful acts. Defendants' scheme, built 

around the assignment and. securitization of the second mortgage loans into pools, securitized 

trusts and the secondary market, is designed in substantial part to insulate the 

HOLDER/RECIPIENT DEFENDANTS from being haled into Missouri coups to account for 

their loan originator' and loan correspondents' violations of Missouri's consumer protection 
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laws, including the SMLA. Missouri has a strong interest in providing a forum for its residents 

aggrieved by such schemes to violate its consumer protection acts. 

0o Additionally, defendants GMAC-RFC and RFMS are subject to the jurisdiction of 

this Court, each having a registered agent in and/or a continuous and systematic presence in or 

contacts with the state of Missouri, and, additionally, pursuant to § 506.500 RSMo having 

engaged individually, and by virtue of being an assignee of the high-cost second mortgage loans 

and/or having also engaged in the following actions through its agents, subsidiaries or affiliates: 

(a) Transacted business within this state by virtue of making and purchasing 

numerous high cost Missouri second mortgage loans, by acting as a substantial 

source of the f-rending for such second mortgage loans, and having charged and 

received illegal fees and charges and the resulting illegal interest, all in violation 

of Missouri law; 

(b) Made contracts within this state by virtue of its promoting and making through 

their assignor, MCR, numerous high cost second mortgage loans in this state; 

(c) Committed tortious acts within this state by virtue of their violations of Missouri's 

SMLA and their malawful contracting for, charging and receiving of such illegal 

fees and the resulting illegal interests and the continuing collection of illegal fees 

and charges and the resulting illegal interest from the plaintiffs and members of 

the Plaintiff Class, as more specifically set forth below; and 

(d) Used real estate situated in this state to secure the Missouri second mortgage 

loans individually and/or by virtue of being assignees (holders) or the trustees of 

an assignee of MCR and/or the second mortgage loans, and/or by virtue of its 

continuing capacity as the beneficiary of the deeds of trust and mortgages, or the 
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trustee for such beneficiaries, that secure the second mortgage loans that are the 

subject of this action. 

0. Additionally, defendant HOMECOMINGS is subject to the jurisdiction of this Court 

having a registered agent in and/or a continuous and systematic presence in or contacts with the 

state of Missouri, and, additionally, pursuant to § 506.500 RSMo having engaged in the 

following actions: 

(a) Transacted business within this state by virtue of having charged and received 

illegal fees and charges and the resulting illegal interest, all in violation of 

Missouri law; 

w 
Cormmi•ed tortious acts wlttam tins state by virtue of its violations of Missouri's 

SMLA and its unlaw•l charging and receiving such illegal fees and the resulting 

illegal interests and the continuing collection of illegal fees and charges and the 

resulting illegal interest from the plaintiffs and members of the Piaintiff Class, as 

more specifically set forth below; 

(c) Committed tortious acts within this state by virtue of its violations of Missouri's 

SMLA and its unlawful contracting for, charging and receiving of such illegal 

fees and the resulting illegal interests and the continuing collection of illegal fees 

and charges and the resulting illegal interest from the plaintiffs and members of 

the Piaintiff Ciass, as more 
specificaiiy set forth below 

(d) Used real estate situated in this state to secure the Missouri second mortgage 

loans individually and/or by virtue of being an assignee (holder) or the trustee of 

an assignee of MCR and/or the second mortgage loans, and/or by virtue of its 

continuin:g capacity as the beneficiary of the deeds of trust and mortgages, or the 
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trustee for such beneficiaries, that secure the second mortgage loans that are the 

subject of this action. 

0. Additionally, defendants WILMINGTON TRUST and BNY, as the trustees of the 

GMAC-RFC and RFMS-formed securitized trusts, are subject to the jurisdiction by virtue of 

their own actions and the actions of MCR, GMAC-RFC, and RFMS as more pa•Xicularly 

described above and for which \V]ILMINGTON TRUST and BNY stands in the shoes of each of 

these said defendants. 

0. Additionally, defendants HOUSEHOLD, MERS, HOMEQ, BANK ONE are subject 

to the jurisdiction of this Court, having a registered agent in and/or a continuous and systematic 

presence in or contacts with the state of Missouri, and, additionaiiy, pursuant to § 506.500 RSMo 

having engaged in the following actions individually or through its agents, subsidiaries, affiliates 

and/or nominees: 

•a• Tr•,•ct•.• business •a•thin •h•s state by virtue of purchasing m•rna.rou• high cost 

Missouri second mortgage loans, by acting as a substantial source of the funding 

for such second mortgage loans, and having charged and received illegal fees and 

charges and the resulting illegal interest, all in violation of Missouri taw; 

(b) Made co:.•tracts within this state by virtue of its promoting and making; through 

their assignor, MCR, numerous high cost second mortgage loans in this state; 

(c) Committed tortious acts witl•.in this state by virtue of their violations of Missouri's 

SMLA and its unlawful comracting for, charging and receiving of such illegal 

fees and the resulting illegai interests and the continuing collection of illegal fees 

and charges and the resulting illegal interest from the plaintiffs and members of 

the Plaintiff Class, as more specifically set forth below 
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(d) Used real estate situated in this state to secure the Missouri second mortgage 

loans individually and/or by virtue of being assignees (holders) or the trustees of 

an assignee of MCR and/or the second mortgage loans, and/or by virtue of their 

continuing capacity as the beneficiary of the deeds of trust and mortgages, or the 

trustee for such beneficiaries, that secure the second mortgage loans that are the 

subject of this action. 

0. Each of the HOLDER/RECIPIENT DEFENDANTS is subject to the jurisdiction of 

this Court, either having a registered agent in and/or a continuous and systematic presence in or 

contacts with the state of Missouri, and/or pursuant to the provisions of §506.500 RSMo, having 

further: 

(a) Transacted business within this state individually and/or by virtue of being an 

assignee (holder) or the trustee of an assignee of the Missouri second mortgage 

!oans that are the subject of this action from MCR, by acting as a substantial 

source of the #m,•ding for such second mortgage loans, and/or by vi•ue of it being 

a holder of and/or a trustee of a holder of said second mortgage loans and 

collecting the benefits of said second mortgage loarzs from residents of this state; 

(b) Made contracts within this state individually and/or by virtue of being an assignee 

(holder) or the trustee of an assignee of MCR and/or said second mortgage loans; 

(c) Committed tortious acts withi•n_ this state individually and/or by virtue of being an 

assignee (holder) or the trustee of an assignee of MCR and/or the Second 

Mortgage.' Loans, and/or by virtue of its continuing to charge and receive the 

illegal charges and fees and the resulting illegal interests from the second 

mortgage loans that are the subject of this action; and 
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(d) Used reM estate situated in this state to secure the Missouri second mortgage 

loans individually and/or by virtue of being an assignee (holder) or the trustee of 

an assignee of MCR and/or the second mortgage loans, and/or by virtue of its 

continuing capacity as the beneficiary of the deeds of trust and mortgages, or the 

trustee for such beneficiaries, that secure the second mortgage loans that are the 

subject of this action. 

43. Venue is proper in this. Court pursuant to the terms of § 408.562 RSMo because the 

nanaed plaintiffs reside in this county and the transactions of the named plaintiffs complained of 

in this action occurred in this county and pursuant to § 508.0t0 RSMo because the causes of 

action accrued in this county. 

GENERAL ALLEGATIONS 

44. As noted above, plaintiffs (sometimes coliectivety, the "REPRESENTATIVE 

PLAINTIFFS") bring this action individually, and as a cIass action on behalf of the statewide 

class of Missouri residential real estate owners or borrowers who obtained second mortgage 

loans from MCR. 

45. The "Second Mortgage Loans" that are the subject of this action are defined at 

§408.231 et seq. RSMo to mean "...a loan secured in whole or in part by a Iien upon any interest 

in residential real estate., created by a security instrument, including a mortgage, trust deed, or 

other simiiar instrument or document, whici• residential real estate is subject to one or more 

prior mortgage loans." 

46. "Residential real estate" is defined at § 408.231.3 RSMo, to mean "... any real 

estate used or intended to be used as a residence by not more than four families 
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47. Finally, § 408._•4.2 RSMo makes it illegal for a lender to take a security interest in 

any collateral other than residential real estate in connection with a Second Mortgage Loan. 

48. From and after six years prior to the filing of this action and through the present time, 

MCR "made" Second Ivlortgage Loans to the REPRESENTATIVE PLAINTIFFS and the other 

members of the Plaintiff Class, defined below. 

49. In each of the of the Second Mortgage Loans at issue, MCR received a promissory 

note from the REPIKESENTATIVE PLAINTIFFS and from the various members of the Plaintiff 

Class (as hereinafter defined) and was named as the "Beneficiary" in a second mortgage deed of 

trust to secure the said Second Mortgage Loans. 

50. in coanect•on ",•,•th ÷" me•,, Second Mortgage Loans, MCR contracted for and/or 

fees which were payable at charged and/or received the above referenced illegal costs and 

closing of the second mortgage loans, all in violation of Missouri's Second Mortgage Loans Act, 

which costs and fees included illegal loan origination fees, loan discount charges, underv•a-iting 

fees, processing fees and document fees that were paid to the originating lender, MCR and were 

not in fact paid to a third party. Further, the attorneys' fees, regardless of to whom such were 

paid, were not permitted by Missouri's SMLAI 

51. These unlawful fees and closing charges were payable by the borrower at closing and 

were contracted for and thereafter charged and received by the said defendants by virtue of the 

fact that the said uniav•fui fees and closing charges were added to the principal balance of the 

second mortgage loan notes (§ 408.231.2 RSMo), and the resulting unlawful interest was 

charged on the entire principal balance of the notes, although no such interest is due under such 

notes pursuant to § 408.236 RSMo. 

THE MITCHELLS' SECOND MORTGAGE LOAN 
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52. On or about November 24, 1999 and in connection with the above atleged predatory 

lending scheme, MCR loaned the MITCHELLS a total loan of $21,000.00, to be repaid with 

interest at the yearly rate of 10.85% in consecutive monthly installments over a period of 15 

0. To secure repayment of their note, the MITCHELLS were required to and did execute 

O a deed of trust for the benefit of MCR. The deed of trust •,rantea MCR a security lien in 

Residential real estate as defined at § 408.231 RSMo and was subject to one or more prior 

mortgage loans. 

0. In connection with this Second Mortgage Loan, MCR contracted for and charged 

and;or received (and the HOLDER/RE•C!PiENT DEFENDANTS GMAC-RFC, R_FMS and 

Homecomings and Wilmington Trust and Chase Manhattan, as Ov•aer Trustee and Indenture 

Trustee, later charged mad/or received) the foliowing iliegat fees and costs, none of wl•Lich were 

interest, and some of wi•..ich were in fact finder's fees: 

Loan Discount Fee to MCR 

Credit Report Fee to MCR 

Custodial Fee to Republic Bank 

Underwriting Fee to MCR 

Processing Fee to MCR 

Federal Express Fee 

Docmnent Preparation Review Fee to MCR 

Attorney's Fees to Johnson & Payne 

Wire Transfer Fee to Johnson & Payne 

735.00 

50.00 

35.00 

525.00 

525.00 

80.00 

420.00 

450.00 

3O.0O 
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MS. PICKERILL'S SECOND MORTGAGE LOAN 

0. On or about December 29, 1999 and in cormection with the above alleged predatory 

lending scheme, MCR loaned Judith Pickerii1 a total loan of $29,600.00, to be repaid with 

interest at the yearly rate of 11.6% in consecutive monthly installments over a period of 15 years. 

0. To secure repayment of their note, Ms. Pickerill was required to and did execute a 

• ,1^*" trust for •'Ll.•e benefit of MCR. The •,•,•'• of trust •,•.•,• MCR a security" lien •n" 

Residential real estate as defined at § 408.231 RSMo and was subject to one or more prior 

mortgage loans. 

0. In connection with this Second Mortgage Loan, MCR contracted for and charged 

and/or received (and Banc One Financial Services, Inc. and one or more DOES 1 through 25 

later charged and/or received) the following illegal fees and costs, none of which were interest, 

and some of which were in fact finder's fees: 

Loan Discount Fee to MCR 

Custodial Fee to D 

Unde'_ .rx•._iting Fee to MCR 

Processing Fee to MCR 

Federal Express Fee 

Document Preparation Review Fee to MCR 

Attorneys' Fees to Johnson & Payne, PLC 

Wire Transfer Fees to Johnson & Payne LLC 

1,036.00 

35.00 

592.00 

592.00 

80.00 

296.00 

450.00 

30.00 
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CLASS ACTION FOR VIOLATIONS OF 
MISSOURI'S SECOND MORTGAGE LOANS ACT 

Plaintiff Class Action Allegations 

58. This action is properly brought as a plaintiff ctass action under Mo. Rule 52.08(b)(3). 

The Class consists of all persons who satisfy the following criteria: 

® 
Those borrowers that obtained Second Mortgage Loans on Residential Real Estate 
from MCR, all within the meaning of Missouri's Second Mortgage Loans Act (§ 
408.231 et seq. RSMo); and 

• 
That as par/: of that Second Mortgage Loans, MCR and the defendants herein, 
contracted for, charged and/or received or Plaintiffs ,sTere charged, contracted for or 

paid, and an entity received, the following types of fees: 

• A Loan Discount Fee contracted for and payable to MCR and which was 

thereafter charged by and paid to the HOLDEtURECIPIENT DEFEN.•ANTS; 

- An Underwriting Fee conh•acted for and payable to MCR and which was 

thereafter charged by and paid to the HOLDER/RECIPIENT DEFENDANTS; 

® A Processing Fee contracted for and payable to MCR and which was thereafter 
charged by and paid to the HOLI)ER/R_ECIPIENT DEFENDANTS; 

® A Document Preparation Fee contracted for and payable to MCR and which was 

thereafter charged by and paid to the HOLDE1Eq•;CIPIENT DEFENDANTS. 

• 
Other charges or fees that were in excess of those that were permitted or -were not 

perrnitted under § 408.233 RSMo and were contracted for, charged and/or 

59. The Plaintiff Class includes persons who took such Missouri Second Mortgage Loans 

within six years next before the filing of this action or those persons who originally took a MCR 

Missouri second mortgage loan and who were charged or who paid such fees and interest on 

such loans within the six years next before fiiing of this action. ("THE SECOND MORTGAGE 

CLASS"). 
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60. The Plaintiff Class also includes persons who were "charged" or who paid those 

above fees or interest on the said loans within six years next before filing of this action. 

0. The particular members of THE SECOND MORTGAGE CLASS are capable of 

being described without difficult managerial or administrative problems. The members of THE 

SECOND MORTGAGE CLASS m'e readily identifiable from the information and records in the 

possession or control of 

representatives or se•icing agents of each. 

0. THE SECOND MORTGAGE CLASS members •e so numerous that individual 

joinder of N1 members is impracticN. This allegation is based on the fact that MCR made 

extensive Second Mortgage Lomns in Missouri £•oughout this period. 

0. There •e questions of law •d fact co,non to the Class, which questions 

predominate over •y questions affecting only individual members 0f THE SECOND 

mc w•:ongs •m•e•ed and remedies sought by the M•iuAG• •uA•S a•d, in faun, *• •" 

•P•SENTATIVE PLA•TIFFS and the other members of THE SECOND MORTGAGE 

CLASS are identical, the only difference being the exact monetav amount to which each 

member of THE SECOND MORTGAGE CLASS is entitled. The principal common issues •e: 

• 
V•ether MCR violated • 408.231 et seq. RSMo by charging the 

•P•SENTATIVE PLA•TIFFS and THE SECOND MORTGAGE CLASS the 

fees •d charges described above; 

• 
•Nether MCR and the HOLDE•CIPIENT DEFENDANTS (individually, •d as 

a defend•t class as defined below) are b•red •der the provisions of • 408.236 

RSMo from recovery of any interest •der these Second Mortgage Loans, and 
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whether they' are liable to return all past interest illegally received and should be 

enjoined from receiving any future interest; and 

• 
Whether MCR and the HOLDER/RECIPIENT DEFENDANTS (individually, and as 

a defendant class) are liable, in addition to the other civil remedies or penalties, for 

actual damages, together with punitive damages and attorneys fees pursuant to 

§408.562 RSMo. 

64. The REPRESENTATIVE PLAINTIFFS' claims are typical of those of the members 

of the Ciass and are based on the same iegai and factuai theories. 

65. The REPRESENTATIVE PLAINTIFFS will fairly and adequately represent and 

protect the interests of the SECOND MORTGAGE CLASS. 2•ney have suffered s•2estantial 

economic injury in their own capacity from the practices complained of. They have retained 

comnset experienced in handiing class actions, and actions involving unla•..vful commercial 

practices. Neither R_EP•SENTATIVE PLAINTIFFS nor their counsel have any conflicting 

interests which might cause them not to vigorously pursue this action. 

66. Certification of a plaii•tiff class render Mo. Rule 52.08(b)(3) is appropriate as to the 

HOLDER/RECiPIENT DEFENDANTS (individually, and as a defendant class), in that the 

common questions predominate over any individual questions pertaining to individual members 

of the Class, and a piaintiff class action is superior to any other available methods for the fair and 

efficient adjudication of this controversy. A plaintiff class action will cause an orderly. and 

expeditious administration of THE SECOND MORTGAGE CLASS' claims and economies of 

time, effort and expense will be fostered, and unifom•ity of decisions will be insured. Moreover, 

the individual class members are likely to be unaware of their rights and not in a position (either 

through experience or financially) to commence individual litigation against the likes of GMAC- 
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RFC, RFMS, HOMECOMINGS, HOUSEHOLD, MERS, HOMEQ and BANK ONE and the 

other HOLDER/RECIPIENT DEFENDANTS. 

Defendants' Liability Under Missouri's Second Mortgage Loans Act 

67. Each of the loans that MCR made to the REPRESENTATIVE PLAINTIFFS and 

members of THE SECOND MORTGAGE CLASS constituted a "Second Mortgage Loan" 

•'s 
408.231 

68. § 408.233 RSMo provides in pertinent part as follows: 

1. No charge other than that permitted by section 408.232 shall be directly or 

indirectly charged, contracted :for or received in connection with any 
Second Mortgage Loan, except as provided in this section: 

*** 

(3) Bona Fide closing costs paid to third parties, which shall include: 

(a) Fees or premiums for title examination, title insurance or similar 

purposes including survey; 

,,b) rces for preparation of a deed, settlement statement, or other 

(c) Fees for notarizing deeds and other documents; 

(d) Appraisal fees; and 

(e) Fees for credit reports 

*** 

(5) A nom'efundable origination fee not to exceed five percent of tI•e 
principal... (two percent prior to August 28, 1998). 

69. MCR, GMAC-P•C, I•MS, •;X,•LMINGTON TRUST and BNY, as Owner Tpastee 

and Indenture Trustee of the GMAC-RFC and RFMS-formed securitized trusts, 

HOMECOMINGS, and BANK ONE violated § 408.233 RSMo as such relates to the 

REPRESENTATIVE PLAINTIFFS' Ioan and together with HOUSEHOLD, MERS, HOMEQ 

24 



and the other HOLDER/RECIPIENT DEFENDANTS as it relates to the members of the 

SECOND MORTGAGE CLASS by engaging in the following acts, methods or practices: 

• 
Charging and/or receiving, either directly or indirectly, nonrefundable origination 

fees not allowed by and/or in excess of what fees were allowed by § 408.233.1 (5); 

• 
Charging and/or receiving, either directly or indirectly, Discount Fees not allowed by 

§ 408.233.t RSMo; and 

• 
Charging and/or receiving, either directly or indirectly, other closing fees amd costs 

that were not allowed by the statute. 

70. As a result of such violations, § 408.236 RSMo provides as follows: 

.Any person violating the provisions of sections 408.231 to 408.237 shall be barred from 

recovery of any interest on the contract, except v,;t•ere such violation occurred either: 

(1) As a result of an accidental and bona fide error of computation; or 

(2) As a result of any acts done or omitted in reliance on a written interpretation of 

the provisions of sections 408.231 to 408.240 by the division of finance. 

71. The conduct of MCR and the resulting statutory violations described above as such 

relates to all of the defendants, and each of them, did not occur as a result of an accidental and 

rc•al•.• on any bona •--' '• of any done or omitted in •: 
•me error of COnqju•tdon or as a •u• 

govermmental ime•retation; but said conduct was, instead, intentional, wi!!lsa!, wanton and 

malicious, or otherwise showed a complete indifference to and a conscious disregard of the 

rights of the REPRESENTATIVE PLAIN'TIFFS and every other member of THE SECOND 

MORTGAGE CLASS. 

72. As the purchasers and/or assignees and holders or as trustee for the assignees and 

holders of the notes and deeds of trust given under the Second Mortgage Loans by the 

REPRESENTATIVE PLAINTIFFS and every other member of THE SECOND MORTGAGE 
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CLASS, the HOLDERgRECIPIENT DEFENDANTS (individualiy, and as a defendant class, as 

hereinafter defined) are liable to the REPRESENTATIVE PLAINTIFFS and THE SECOND 

MORTAGE CLASS, just as MCR is liable to the REPRESENTATIVE PLAINTIFFS ,and THE 

SECOND MORTGAGE CLASS. 

73. The HOLDER/RECIPIENT DEFENDANTS (individually, and as a defen&mt class, 

as hereinafter defined) are liable to the REPRESENTATIVE PLAIN• l•b and THE SECOND 

MORTGAGE CLASS fbr all interest that they have collected or hereinafter will collect from the 

Second Mortgage Loans, and any such interest collected after the date of the filing of this action 

shall be additional evidence of the willful and malicious natm'e of and conscious disregard of the 

and as a defendant class, as hereinafter defined). 

74. The HOLDER/RECIPIENT DEFENDANTS (individually, and as a defendant class, 

as hereinafter defined) and each of them shouid be forever barred and enjoined under § 408.236 

RSMo from collecting or recovering any interest on the Second Mortgage Loans of the 

REPRESENTATIVE PLAINTIFFS and the other members of THE SECOND MORTGAGE 

CLASS for the reasons set out above. 

75. § 408.. 62 R•:Mo provides as follows: 

In addition to any other remedies or penalties provided for by law, any person 
who suffers any loss of money or property as a result of any act, method or 

practice in violation of the provisions of" sections 408.100 to 408.561 may bring 
an action in the circuit court of the county in which may of the defendants reside, 
in which the plaintiff resides, or in which the transaction complained of occurred 
to recover actual damages. The court may, in its discretion, award punitive 
damages and may award to the prevailing party in such action attorney's fees, 
based on the amount of time reasonably expended, and may provide such action 
attorney's fees, based on the amount of time reasonably expended, and may 
provide such equitable relief as it deems necessary and proper. 
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76. As a result of the statutory violations described above, each of the 

REPRESENTATIVE PLAINTIFFS and other members of THE SECOND MORTGA@E 

CLASS suffered a loss of money or property in that they were charged and paid and/or became 

obligated to pay fees, charges and costs in amounts greater than those allowed by Missouri law 

and were charged interest in violation of Missouri law. 

77. The conduct of MCR (and the HOLDER/RECIPIENT DEFENDANTS by virtue of 

their status as assignees or trustees for the assignees) and the resulting vioIations of Missouri 

law, were mtermunm, -willful, -wanton and malicious, or other'•se showed a complete 

indifference to or a conscious disregard of the rights of each of the REPRESENTATIVE 

PLAINTIFFS and the other members of THE SECOND MORTGAGE CLASS, inciuding, 

without limitation, the fact that defendant GMAC-RFC and RFMS, individually, and 

WILMINGTON TRUST and BNY, as trustees over certain trusts holding loans originated by 

MCR and consolidated by GMAC-RFC, RFMS, HOMECOMINGS and BANK ONE, all as such 

relates to the REPRESENTATIVE PLAINTIFFS and other members of the SECOND 

MORTGAGE CLASS and HOUSEHOLD, MERS, and HOMEQ, as to members of the 

COlltlll U•(i to MI•VV CUll•C[ iil•ereb• of the •r•bOl'•u ivi•JRTG-,•-•i• bLAS•, haw 
after •ey 

violations of Missouri law, therefore for that and the other reasons set forth herein the 

REPRESENTATIVE PLAIN'TIFFS and THE SECOND MORTGAGE CLASS are entitled to 

punitive damages against the defendants and each of them in such amount as is fair and 

reasonable to punish defhndants and to deter dei%ndants and others from like conduct. 
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Defendant Class Action Allegations 

78. This action is also properly brought as a defendant class action under Mo. Rule 

z_.08(b)(•). The defendant class ("THE DEFENDANT SECOND MORTGAGE CLASS ) 

consists of all persons who satisfy the following criteria: 

* 
Those persons or entities or their trastees that have held or now hold, by virtue of 

transfer or assigrm•__ent or otherwise (including acting as nominee or trustee of such 

holder or assignee), the Second Mortgage Loans of the REPRESENTATIVE 

PLAINTIFFS or THE SECOND MORTGAGE CLASS; or 

, 
Those persons or entities that have "charged" or "received" the monthly payments 

E from the REPRESENTATIVE PLAINTIFFS or THE SECOND MOKTGAG 

CLASS, which monthly fees include the illegal charges and resulting illegal interest 

by viKue that such fees were financed as pan of the principal of the Second Mortgage 

Loans (collectively "THE DEFENDANT SECOND MORTGAGE CLASS"). 

79. The specifica!!y nan,•ed HOLDEPJ•C!P!ENT DEFEND,a•NTS and each of them. are 

the REPRESENTATIVE DEFENDANTS of THE DEFENDANT SECOND MORTGAGE 

CLASS. 

80. The pa•icu!ar members of THE DEFENDANT SECOND MORTGAGE CLASS are 

capable of being described without difficult manageriai or administrative problems. The 

members of THE DEFENI3ANT SECOND MORTGAGE CLASS are readily identifiable from 

the information and records in the possession or control of MCR and/or the representatives or 

servicing agents of the Second Mortgage Loans or the assignees or holders (or their trustee(s)) of 

such Second Mortgage Loans. 
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81. Upon information and belief, THE DEFENDANT SECOND MORTGAGE CLASS 

members are so nurnerous that individual joinder of all members is impractical. This allegation 

is based on the fact that MCR made extensive Second Mortgage Loans in Missouri tlnroughout 

this period and those loans have since been assigned to a number of mortgage trusts or pools and 

may thereafter have been reassigned. 

0. T•.. uestions of and fact ,.•,mm •,eie are q *•" THE DEFENDANT SECOND 

MORTGAGE CLASS which questions predominate over any questions affecting only individual 

members of THE DEFENDANT SECOND MORTGAGE CLASS and, in fact, the wrongs 

alleged against THE DEFENDANT SECOND MORTGAGE CLASS and remedies sought by 

RF• E"E V fne r•h.Jl'• t A l I • PLA1N I tee b and the other members of THE SECOND MORTGAGE 

CLASS against the HOLDER/RECIPIENT DEFENDANTS are identical, the only difference 

being the exact monetary amount to which each HOLDERJRECIP!ENT DEFENDANT is !iab!e 

to the respective •" •-T• e•c•x•r• MC-,RTC'.AG • CLASS •"• *•'• an•ount ,•,•" imerest 

that should be ba•ed, enjoined and returned. The principal co•m•'non issues are: 

,, Whether THE DEFENDANT SECOND MORTGAGE CLASS is liable as a result of 

MCR's vio!ations of Missouri's Second Mortgage Loans Act and/or whether THE 

DEFENDANT SECOND MORTGAGE CLASS is entitled to assert any defenses to 

such violations. 

, 
ff•nnethe• D•FEN•T SECOND MORTGAGE CLASS is b•ed 

provisions of § •0•.%6 RSMo fl'om the •ecovery of any interest u•der these Second 

Mortgage Loans and whether they are iiable to return all past interest iIlegaily 

received and should be enjoined from receiving any future interest; and 
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Whether THE DEFENDANT SECOND MORTGAGE CLASS is liable, in addition 

to the other civil remedies or penalties, for actual damages, together with punitive 

damages and attorneys fees pursuant to § 408.562 RSMo. 

0. The HOLDEP•,•CIPIENT DEFENDANTS' defenses of THE DEFENDANT 

SECOND MORTGAGE CLASS', (which defenses are denied) are typical of those of the 

individual HOLDER/PdECIPIENT DEFENDANTS and will be based on the same legal and 

factual theories. 

u. 
The HOLDER/RECIPIENT DEFENDANTS will •li.r+'•l"' and adequately represent and 

protect the interests of THE DEFENDANT SECOND MORTGAGE CLASS. They have in the 

past and will undoubtedly in this action retain counsel experienced in defending class actions and 

actions involving unlawful corm'nercial practices. Said defendants do not, based upon 

information and belief, have any interests wl•ch might cause them not to vigorously defend this 

action. 

0. Certification of a defendant class under Mo. Rule 52.08(b)(3) is appropriate as to 

THE DEFENDANT SECOND MORTGAGE ,gLASS in thai common questions predominate 

iileiil S llltll V I•I ti•tl over vary questions pertairdng to individual of the Defendant Class and a 

defendant class action is superior to any other available methods for the fair and efficient 

adjudication of this controversy. A defendant class action will cause an orderly and expeditious 

administration of THE DEFENDANT SECOND MORTGAGE CLASS defenses, if any, and 

economies of time, effort and expenses will be fostered and uniformity of decisions will be 

insured. 
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Prayer flar Relief 

WHEREFORE, the REPRESENTATIVE PLAINTIFFS, individually, on behalf of 

themselves and all members of THE SECOND MORTGAGE CLASS, pray for judgment against 

the HOLDEtb'RECIPIENT DEFENDANTS (including GMAC-RFC, RFMS, WILMINGTON 

TRUST and BNY, as Owner Trustee and Indenture Trustee of the GMAC-RFC and RFMS- 

lvrm•u securitized trusts, ,nra•'/r•c"•n•'amT•<,,.,•.•,-.,-,•,**,,-• 
•, 

HOUSEHOLD, MERS, .>I(3MF.Q, and BANK 

ONE) and THE DEFENDANT SECOND MORTGAGE CLASS, jointly and severally, as 

follows: 

• For an order certifying that this action may be maintained as a plaintiff class action 

•md• Mo. Rule 52.08(b)(3), appointing the REPRESENTATIVE PLAIN • •r S and 

their cotmsel to represent THE SECOND MORTGAGE CLASS, and directing that 

reasonable notice of this action be given to all other members of THE SECOND 

• For an order cem•wn•, that this action may be maintained as a defendant class under 

Mo. Rule b.•.08(b)(.•), appointing the HOLDER/RECIPIENT DEFENDANTS to 

represent THE DEFENDANT SECOND MORTGAGE CLASS, and directing that 

reasonabIe notice of this action be given to all other members of THE DEFENDANT 

SECOND MORTGAGE CLASS; 

•PTDT• 
® For a permanent injunction enjoining the HOLDE•RE,_.., .•NT DEFENDANTS 

and THE DEFENDANT SECOND MORTGAGE CLASS, together with their 

officers, directors, employees, agents, partners or representatives, successors and any 

and all persons acting in concert from directly or indirectly engaging in the WTongful 

acts and practices described above (including the charging or receipt of any future 
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interest in connection with the Second Mortgage Loans that are the subject of this 

action), all for the benefit of the REPRESENTTATIVE PLAINTIFFS and THE 

SECOND MORTGAGE CLASS; 

For an order directing disgorgement or restitution against each defendant, jointIy and 

severaliy, as to each REPRESENTATIVE PLAIN'TIFF and each member of THE 

SECOND MORTGAGE CLASS, that contracf•d for, charged or received the 

aforesaid illegal charges and fees and the imposition of an equitable constructive trust 

over such amounts for the benefit of the •PRESENTATIVE PLAIN I tFFS and 

other members of THE SECOND MORTGAGE CLASS" 

A judgment of monetary damages against each defendant, jointly and severally, as to 

each REPRESENTATIVE PLAINTTIFF and each member of THE SECOND 

+.- ,•,• d aforesaid •'•v•t_,r,.•'•'• 
,•,• 

• '•-E CLASS, that •om•a,•d for, chargo• •,•-• ,-•o•,•o the illegal 

'• • •- including not •'-•'• o,o•, prohibited 
• •¢• 

fees, but also jointly 

and severally for •°'• interest that has been ••o•*•o'o• for, ch•ged or received by each 

of the defend•ts individually •d as members of THE DEFENDANT SECOND 

MORTGAGE CLASS as to each 

•PR•SENTAT!VE PLAINTIFFS •d 

MORTGAGE CLASS. 

of the plaintiffs, including THE 

as members of THE SECOND 

For a j uu•e•t of punitive damages against each of the defendants in a sum that is 

fair and reasonable; 

For reasonable attorneys' fees as provided by law and statute; 

For pre-and-post judgment interest as provided by Iaw in amount according to proof 

at trial; 



For an award of costs and expenses incm'red in this action; and 

For such other and further relief as the Court may deem necessary and proper. 

Respectfully submi•ed, 

WALTERS BENDER STROHBEHN & 
VAUGHAN, P.C. 

By 
t•. F/r•I'•rick Walter• Mo. Bar 25069 
j. •chael Vaughan Mo. Bar 24989 
D•vid M. Skeens -Mo. Bar 35728 
Kip D. Richards Mo. Bar 39743. 
Garrett M. Hodes Mo. Bar 50221 
2500 City Center Square 
12th & Baltimore 
P.O. Box 26188 
Kansas City, MO 64196 
(8i6)42i-6620 
(816) 421-4747 (Facsimile) 

Ax •' 
ORNE •Te fuR PL,•K, ITI• FS AND CLASS 

COUNSEL 
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

It is hereby certified that a copy of the above and foregoing doc•ent was mailed this 
day of July 2007, to: 

Daniel McClain 
Randolph Willis 
Rassmussen Willis Dickey & Moore, LLC 
9200 Ward Parkway, Ste. 310 
Kansas City, MO 64114 
(816) 960-1669 
Attorneys for Defendants Residential Funding Corporation n/k/a Residential Funding Company, 
LLC, Residential Funding Mortgage Securities II, Inc., JP Morgan Chase Bank, N.A. as Trustee 

and Bank of New York Trust Company, N.A., as Successor Trustee, Witmin•on Trust Co., 
Homecomings Financial Network, inc. n/k/a Homecomings Financial Network, LLC and 

Defendant JP Morgan Chase Bank:, N.A. as successor by Merger to Bank One, N.A. 

Todd W. Ruskamp 
Shook, Hardy & Bacon LLP 
2555 Grand 
Kansas City, Missouri 64108 
(8i6) 474-6550 
Attorneys for Defendant HousehoId Finance 
Registration Systems, Ir•c. 

Corporatior• III and Mortgage Electronic 

Scott W. Martin 
Husch & Eppenberger, LLC 
1200 Main, Suite 2300 
Kansas •1Ly, Missouri (54105 
(816) 421-4800 
Attorneys for Defendant Wachovia Equity Servicing LLC f/k•a HomEq Servicing Corporation 
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Addresses 
Bryan Cave LLP 
221 Bolivar Street 
Jefferson City, MO 65101-1574 

Mayer Brown LLP 
1909 K. Street, N.W. 
Washington, DC 20006-1101 
Telephone 
(57S) 556-6620 
(202) 263-3000 

Fax 
(573) 556-6630 
(202) 263-3300 

Appellants' Names 
Residential Funding Company, LLC 
and Homecomings Financial, LLC 
Address 
8400 Normandale Lake Blvd., Suite 600 
Minneapolis, Minnesota 55431 

Telephone 
(612) 832-7000 

Address 
2500 City Center Square 
1100 Main Street 
PO Box 26188 
Kansas City, MO 64196 

Telephone 
(816) 421-6620 

Respondents' •'+ 

Steven and Ruth Mitchell 

Address 
2109 NW Harbor Place 
Blue Springs, Missouri 64015 

Telephone 

Fax 
(816) 421-4747 

Brief Description of Case 
In this putative class action lawsuit, Plaintiffs alleged that ce•ain subordinate lien loans made by non-party Mortgage Capital 
Resource '-" +;• •,,•a•,,• ,,;'-•+•d the Missouri Second Mortgage Loan • ["•MI .A"• • • Mo• •08•231, et seq. by 
charging, contracting for or receiving various challenged fees. Plaintiffs claimed that RFC and two co-defendants, Household 

Finance Co•oration !!! and Wachovia Equky Servicing, LLC, were liable as purchasers/assi•ees for MCR's alleged 
violations under the Home Ownership and EquiW Protection Act ("MOFPA"), 15 U.S.C. } 1641 (d)(1). Plaintifl• also claimed 

that the purchaser/assignee defendants violated the SMLA by indirectly charging, contacting for or receiving the challenged 
tees and that these defendants and Homecomings violated the SMLA by collecting interest on the MCR loans. The trial cou• 

•aSe-,n-•,,e b•,•r• Defendants •t me certified the case as a class action, and it was tried before ajuw. close of Plaintiffs' •u; ¢..x •f• 

were pertained to introduce any evidence, the trial cou• granted Plaintiffs' motion for directed verdict based upon its finding 
that MCR charged, contracted for and received the challenged fees and ruled that •C, as a subsequent purchaser/assignee of 

the closed MCR loans, was liable for MCR's violation of the SMLA under HOEPA, 15 U.S.C. } 1641(d)(1). At the conclusion 
of all of the evidence, the trial court directed a verdict in Nvor of Defendants on Plaintiffs' claims alleging the existence of a 

conspiracy, joint venture or pa•ership between Defendants and MCR, The trial cou• precluded De/?ndants •om presenting 
vu•ua*•aay payna•n• .u•u•,-,n-uu•-c•ulse defenses. 

..•,•..•,, 

the •ial cou• reihsed to instruct the jury on punitive damages in accordance with U.S. Supreme Cou• and Missonri appellate 
case law. The ju W returned a verdict against RFC for challenged fees in the amount of $798,832.00, past and future interest 

forfeiture/penalty of $3,530,2 6.00 and punitive damages of $92,000,000.00. The jury also returned a verdict against 
Homecomings for past and future interest forfeiture/penalty of $706,042.00. By Order dated March 13, 2008, the trial cou• 
awarded Plaintiffs pre-judgment interest against all Defendants in the amount of $753,868. By Order dated June 24, 2008, the 

aud•t!u• to granting ¢• an 
•tendunts in the amount nfv•,165,23!, in .a 

Plaintiffs' request for a contingency fee in the amount of 35% of the common Nnd recove• (i.e., in excess of $35 million). On 

October •a, .•..,vnn• •ho..• trial cou• denied all post-Fiai motions filed by Defendants, including Defendants' motions for new trial, 
m n to set aside class-wide iudament and to ju•,,,ent ,,o•,,•,,•,,,d•,,g the verdicts and remi•itur, denied n•f•.•..+o, •,;• 

dece•i• the plaintiff class, and granted in pa• and denied in pa• Plaintiffs' motion to amend judgment and entered a nunc pro 
tunc judgment dated as of June 24, 2008. in its nunc pro tunc judgment, the trial cou• allocated the prejudgment interest and 
a•omey's fees awards against the assignee defendants such that RFC was assessed pre-judgment interest in the amount of 
$642,066.00 and statuto W a•omey's fees in the amount of $2,680,001.09. In addition, on October 6, 2008, the trial cou• 

plus three years of annual interest at 9%) as to •C, and $896,674.00 as to Homecomings, thereby denying •C's motion 
insoNr as it requested that the Cou• apply the statuto• bond cap set fo•h in R.S. Mo. •512.099, and N•her denying RFC's 
motion insoNr as it requested application of the limitation of damages set fo•h in HOEPA, 15 U.S.C. } 1641(d)(2). 

Date of Appeal Bond Amount of Bond [] Bond Attached 
To be filed. 
Signa•tfP• of Attd•ney or Appellant Date 

October i4, 2008 



Notice to Appellants' Attorney 

Local rules may require supplemental documents to be filed. Please refer to the applicable rule for the district in which 

the appeal is being filed and forward supplements as required. 

Certificate of Service 

certify that on October 14, 2008, served a copy of the notice of appeal on the following parties, at the fbiiowing 
addresses, via UoS. Mail0 postage prepaid. 

R. Frederick Walters, Kip D. Richards, David M. Skeens, J. Michael Vaughan, Garrett M. Hodes, Walters Bender Strohbehn & 

Vaughan, P.Co, 2500 City Center Square, 1100 Main Street, PO Box 26188, Kansas City, Missouri 64196, Attorneys for Steven 

and Ruth Mitchell; Scott Martin, Michael Hargens, Kara S. Bemboom, Husch Blackwell Sanders LLP, 1200 Main Street, Suite 

2300, Kansas City, Missouri 64105, Attorneys for Wachovia Equity Servicing LLC f/k/a Homeq Servicing Corporation; Todd 

W. Ruskamp, Danielle Mau, Sarah Lepak, Shook, Hardy & Bacon LLP, 2555 Grand Boulevard, Kansas City, Missouri 64108, 

Attorneys for Household Finance Corporation III. 

Appellants or 
•ttorney for Appellants 

Directions 

Serve a copy of the notice of appeal in a manner as •rescribed by Rule 43.01 on the attorneys of record of all parties to 

the judgment other than those taking the appeal and on all other parties who do not have an attorney. (A copy of the notice 
of appeal is to be sent to the Attorney General when the appeal involves a f•iony0 Transmit a copy of the notice of appeal 
to the clerk of the Supreme Court/Court of Appeals. ifa party does not have an attorney, mail the notice to the party at 

his/her last known address. 
,.•r, 

•ha• then fill in •hc •c•u•um below. (See •,•,eo•"• • .,,op•a•ra• and 30.01 (h) and •i•, •.• 
Forward the docket fee to the Department of Revenue as required by statute. 

Memorandum of the Clerk 

have this day served a copy of this notice by I•_j regular mail [] registered mail [-] certified mail [] facsimile 
transmlsslon" •. •,•.o ;• •,• oaa,o• stated •,•'.',,,•, lf•orx•oA h,• ua•e 

of transmission and the telephone number to which the document was transmi•ed. 

have also transmitted a copy of the notice of appeal to the clerk of the 

[] Supreme Court [] Court of Appeals, District 

[]Docketfee in the amount of $ 
statute. 

has been received by this clerk which will be disbursed as required by 

[] A copy of an order granting leave to appeal as indigent. 

Date Clerk 

























































































interest of 13.5% per year. In addition, Preferred Credit charged the Gilmors a $3,200.00 "loan 

origination fee," some 8% of the total loan amount, as well as a "Loan Processing Fee" fee of 

$335.00, a $125.00 "underwriting fee," a $500.00 "administration/document fee," a $60.00 

"appraisal review fee," and a $150.00 "signing fee." Plaintiffs allege that, in doing so, Preferred 

Creditviolated the MSMLA, particularly § 408.231, because: (1) the toan origination fee was 

greater than the $800.00 (2%) amount allowed at the time by § 408.231.1(5) RSMo. and/or (2) § 

408.231.1(3) RSMo. prohibited Preferred Credit from charging or receiving the Ioan processing 

fee, underwriting fee, administration/document fee, appraisal review fee, and signing fee and/or 

other fees described above. 

B. Michael and Lois Harris 

In August of 1997, P!aintiffs Michael and Lois Harris obtained a $45,000.00 mortgage 

loan from Preferred Credit. They claim that the loan was a °'Second Mortgage Loan" within the 

meaning of the MSMLA. For the loan, Preferred Credit charged Mr. and Mrs. Harris interest at a 

)ate of 13.99 % per year. In addition, Preferred Credit charged Mr. and Mrs. Harris a $900.00 

mortgage broker fee" and 
a $3,275.00 "processing/administration fee," together with a $395.00 

"loan processing fee," a $125.00 "underwriting fee," a $500.00 "administration/document fee," 

and a $210.00 "application review/signing fee." Plaintiffs allege that, in doing so, Preferred 

Credit violated the MSMLA, particularly § 408.231, because § 408.231.1(3) RSMo. prohibited 

Pret%rred Credit from_ chargir•g or receiving the mortgage broker fee, processing/administration 

fee, loan processing fee, underwriting fee and/or administratio.n2document fee described above. 

Co Ted and Raye Ann Varns 

In August 1997, Plaintiffs Ted and Raye Ann Varns obtained a $34,000.00 mortgage loan 

from Preferred Credit. The Vams claim that the loan was a "Second Mortgage Loan" within the 



meaning of the MSMLA. For the loan, Preferred Credit charged the Varns interest at a rate of 

12.5% per year. In addition, Preferred Credit charged the Varns a $2600.00 "loan origination 

fee," approximately 7.6% of the total loan amount, as well as a $395.00 "loan processing fee," a 

$125.00 "underwriting fee," a $500.00 "administration/document fee," a $60.00 "appraisal 

review fee," and a $200.00 "signing fee." PIaintiffs allege that, in doing so, Preferred Credit 

violated the MSMLA, particularly § 408.231, because: (1) the loan origination fee was greater 

than the $680.00 (2%) amount allowed at the time by § 408.231.1(5) RSMo. and/or (2) § 

408.231.1(3) RSMo. prohibited Preferred Credit from charging or receiving the loan processing 

fee, underwriting fee, administration/document fee, appraisal review fee and/or signing fee 

described above. 

r• Leo Parvin 

In June t997, PIaintiff Leo Parvin obtained a $20,000.00 mortgage loan from Prefe•ed 

Credit. Mr. Parvin claims that the Ioan was a "Second Mortgage Loan" within the meaning of the 

MSMLA. For the loan, Preferred Credit charged Mr. Parvin interest at a rate of 13.99 % per 

year. In addition, Preferred Credit charged Mr. Parvin a $400.00 "mortgage broker fee" and a 

$1,488.42 "processing/administration fee," together with a $125.00 "document preparation fee," 

a $395.00 "loan processing fee," a $125.00 "underwriting fee," a $190.00 "sub- 

escrow/UPS/app!ication fee," and a $t50.00 "signing fee" that the records show Preferred Credit 

kept for itseif. Plaintiffs aiIege that, in doing so, Preferred Credit violated the MSMLA, 

particularly § 408.231, because § 408.231. I(3) RSMo. proNbited Preferred Credit from charging 

or receiving the mortgage broker fee, processing/administration fee, document preparation fee, 

loan processing fee, underwriting fee, sub-escrow/UPS/application fee, and/or signing fee 

described above. 



E. The Petition and Plaintiffs' Claims 

Plaintiffs Michael and Shellie Gilmor originally filed this action on June 27, 1994. The 

Court joined the Leo Parvin, Ted and Raye Ann Varns and Michael and Lois Harris as piaintiffs 

on March 6, 2002. In their Fourth Amended Petition, Plaintiffs assert claims both individually 

and on behalf of all other Missouri homeowners alleged to have been similarly aggrieved by 

Preferred Credit's acts (i.e., those Missouri borrowers charged the same type of allegedly 

unauthorized and/or excessive "Ioan origination" and other costs and fees in violation of the 

MSMLA and Missouri law). Among other things, Plaintiffs seek to recover the uniawful fees 

and costs that they were charged, as well as all of the interest they have paid on their respective 

second mortgage loan, and a forfeiture of any interest not yet due, a remedy that Plaintiffs claim 

is expressly made 
•v 

•,•,•:•-• +•,• them by •';•,• of the MSMLA, § 408.236 •.qMn Plaintiffs •eek 

the same relief and remedies for the proposed plaintiff class, under both the MSMLA and § 

408.562. 

F. The Applicable Statute of Limitations 

In opposing Plaintiffs' motion to certify, Defendants have urged the Court to find that 

Plaintiffs' claims are governed by § 51 d. 130(2) RSMo., a 3-year statute of limitations. Plaintiffs, 

on the other hand, contend that the 5-year statute of limitations contained in § 515.420 RSMo 

applies. The Court agrees with P!aintiffs. 

The 6-year statute of limitations contained in § 5i6.420 RSMo. applies to "all" lawsuits 

where the cIaimant seeks relief (i.e., "to recover any penalty or forfeiture imposed, o__.Er to enforce 

any liability created bY_ law") from and/or against a "moneyed corporation." The statute 

provides: 

None of the provisions of sections 516.380 to 516.420 shalt apply to suits against 
__moneyed corD_orations or against the directors or stockholders thereof, to recover • 



penattv or forfeiture imposed, o_lr to enforce any liability created b,v the act of 
incorporation or any other taw; but all such suits shall be brought "":•':-,• 

•11•1• 
six years after 

the discovery by the a¢_•cieved party of the facts upon which such penalty or forfeiture 
attached, or bv which such iiabiiitv was created. 

§ 516.420 RSMo. 2000 (emphasis added). 

The named Plaintiffs seek to "enforce a liability'' and/or to recover a "penalty or 

forfeiture" imposed by Missouri law" against and from Preferred Credit, a second mortgage 

lender, and its various assignees. SpecificaIly, the named Plaintiffs seek to recover the unlawN1 

fees and costs that they and the members of the putative plaintiff c!ass were charged for their 

second mortgage loans, as well as (1),a, ll of the interest that they and any class member paid on 

their loans, (2) a forfeiture of any interest not yet due, and (3) statutory penalties, punitive 

damages, and attorneys' fees. Plaintiffs seek this relief both for themselves and for the plaintiff 

class pursuant to the MSMLA and § 408.562 RSMo. 

Because Plaintiffs are seeking to "enforce a liabi!ity" and/or to recover a "penalty or 

forfeiture" imposed by the MSMLA and § 408.552 against and from Preferred Credit, a 

"moneyed ,_,• ;,o •,4•To.•;,,•,, liable o•: • ,•o•gn•e•, Plaintiffs' statutou claim,• are corporation, 

governed by § 516.420 RSMo. The language of the statute is crystal ctear: "all" suits "to recover 

any penalty or forfeiture imposed, or to enforce any liability created by any law shaI1 be 

brought within six years after the discovery by the aggrieved party of the facts upon which such 

•*•" •'•'•;• •hea, •'• which •-•'• •aa•l•ty ,•,• 
created." § • 16 4)0 RSMo. 2000. 

Hence, the 6-year statute applies in this case. Cf. Nolan v. Kolar, 629 S.W.2d (56i, (563 (Mo. 

an• tOR75 (•tnt•ta nraviding fo, r forfeiture of 10% of amount of deed of trust for failure to 

timely acknowledge satisfaction of deed of trust was subject to § 516.420); Fielder v. Credit 

Acceetance Comer• 19 F. Supp.2d 966, 974 (W.D. Mo. i998) (6-year statute set out in § 

516.420 applies to consumer class action against auto loan finance company brought pursuant to 



§ 408.562 RSMo.). 

II. 

Standards for Determining Class Action 

Missouri Rule of Civil Procedure 52.08 sets forth the requirements for a Class Action 

lawsuit. Rule 52.08(a) provides: 

(a) Prerequisite to a Class Action. One or more members of a class may sue or be 
sued as representative parties on behalf of all only if (1) the class is so numerous that 
joinder of all members is impracticable, (2) there are questions of law or fact 

commaon to the class, (3) the claims or defenses of the representative parties are 

typical of the claims or defenses of the class, and (4) the representative parties will 
fairly and adequately protect the. j.nterest of the class. 

Once the requirements of Rule 52.08(a) are satisfied, an action may be maintained as a class 

action under Rule 5_.08(b)(_•) if: 

IT]he court finds that the questions of law or fact common to the members of the 
class predominate over any questions affecting only individual members, and that a 

class action is superior to other available methods for the fair and efficient 
adjudication of the controversy. The matters pertinent to the findings include: 

(A) the interest of the members of the class in individually controlling the 
prosecution or defense of separate actions; 

(B) the extent and nature of any litigation concerning the controversy already 
commenced by or against members of the class; 

(C) the desirability or undesirability of concentrating the litigation of the claims in 
the particular forum; 

IT% •, th• d•'•-l•lti•< likety tn h• encountered in the management of a class action. 

CIass Action Analysis 

The analysis required in this case is divided into two parts, which correspond to the 

separate requirements of Mo. Rule 52.08(a) and (b)(3). 
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Part I 

A. Numerosity 

Rule 52.08(a)(i) requires that the proponent of a class action demonstrate that "the class 

is so numerous that joinder of all members is impracticable." The rule does not require that 

joinder be impossible; rather, j oinder of all members is impracticable when the procedure "would 

be difficult or inconvenient." Jackson v. Rapps, !32 F.R.Do 226, 230 (W.D. Mo. 1990); Esler v. 

Northrop Corp., 86 F.R.D. 20, 33-34 (W.D. Mo. 1979). "A showing of strong litigational 

inconvenience in the prosecution of cI•ims separately or jointty by the proposed class members 

is sufficient." Esle___•_•r, 86 F.R.D. at 34.1 

Rule 52.08(a) does not contain any explicit numerical limitations. See Bradford v. A•co 

Cor•., 187 F.R.D. 600, 604 (W.D. Mo. 1999). Nor does the m!e require precise enumeration of 

the ctass size before the action can proceed as a class action. Morgan v. United Parcel Service of 

ia•-nerica, Inc., 169 F.R.D. 349, 355 (E.D. Mo. 1996); see Jackson, 132 F.R.D. at 230. It is 

permissible to estimate Class size. Fielder v. Credit Acceptance Corp., 175 F.R.D. 313 (W.D. 

Mo. 1997) (between 120 and 160 members). However, impracticability ofjoinder has generally 

been found where the class is composed of more than 40 persons° Ester, 86 F.R.D. at 33 ("the 

difficulty inherent in joining as few as 25 or 30 ctass members should raise a presumption that 

joinder is impracticable, and the plaintiff whose class is that large or larger should meet the test 

of 23(a)(!) on that fact alone") (quoting H. Newberg, Class Actions § 1105b (1977 & Suppo 

1978)); Serm v. Manchester Bank of St. Louis_, 583 S.W.2d t19, 132-33 (Mo. bane I979) 

Mo.R.Civ.P. 52.08 is identical to FederaI Rule 23. Consequently, Missouri courts consider 

interpretations of Rule 23 in interpreting Rule 52.08. Ra_A!p_•v. American Family Mut. Ins. Co., 809 

S.W.2d 173,174 (Mo.App. WD 1991). 



overruled on other grounds, Harman v. Davis, 651 S.W.2d 134, 136 (Mo. 1983) (triaI court 

property permitted cause to proceed as class action with class comprised of approximately 80 

members); Paxton v. Union Nat. Bank, 688 F.2d 552 (8 th Cir. 1982) (15 membersi; Bradford, 

187 F.R.D. at 600 (W.D. Mo. 1999) (65 members); Morgan, 159 F.R.D. 349 (possibly t9 

members)) 

The Court may also consider a number of additionai factors when determining 

impracticability of joinder, including the nature of the action, the inconvenience of trying 

individual suits, geographical distribution, the size of the claims of the individual class members, 

the ability of individual Iitigants to institute an action on their own beha!f "and any other factor 

relevant to the practicability of.joining all the putative class members. Paxton, 688 F.2d at 559- 

•,,•, 
86 F.R.D. at 33. The fact that a!! class members a•,'e !ocated in the same state does 

defeat certification. In fact, having all the piaintiffs in close proximity actually substantiates the 

need for certification. Bradford, 187 F.R.D. at 604 ("If the same witnesses traveled to the same 

'courthouse to testify about the same [facts] in multiple cases, then `judicial resources would be 

wasted"). 

Rule 52.08(a)(t) is Satisfied 

The Court finds as a fact that Preferred Credit has made no less than 416 "high interest" 

second mortgage home loans secured by Missouri real estate since June t994. The Court also 

finds that as to the 41 bo•owers •om whom P!aintiffs received loan documents, as to all 41 

loans Preferred Credit ,•,•r•ed a "loan or•gmatm** or other fees and costs that appear to have 

either exceeded the Iawful permissibIe amount aIIowed by § 408._•2.1(5) or to be fees and 

Though a specific number is not required, Professor Newber,, s survey of court r'aIings on the 
numerosity issue concludes that any class consisting of 40 or more members presumptively fulfills the 
numerosity requirements. Newberg on Class Actions § 3.05 (3d Ed. 2001). 
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charges not mentioned by § 408.232.t(3). These 416 loans may also pertain to property in a 

number of counties throughout the state of Missouri, making joinder of all class members in a 

single action more problematic and costly. Despite the number of loans, however, the parties 

and the Court can identify the particular members of the Class by name and address and in fact 

the Plaintiffs have obtained that information through a county by county search. Under the above 

facts, the Court concludes that the numerosity requirement of Mo. Rule 52.08(a) is satisfied. 

B. Commonality 

Mo. Rule 52.08(a)(2) requires a showing of the existence of "questions of law or fact 

common to the class." This threshold of"commonality" is not high. Winkler v. DTE, Inc,, 205 

F.R.D. 235,240 (D. Ariz. 2001) ("It]he standard for commonality is minimal because 'all that is 

required is a comanon issue of !aw or fact'"). This prong of the mIe is satisfied when the "legal 

question 'linking the class members is substantially related to the resolution of the litigation.'" 

Fielder v. Credit Acceptance Corp., 175 F.R.D. 3t3,319-20 (W.D. Mo. 1997) (quoting Paxton, 

688 F.2d at 561); see Senn, 583 S.W.2d at 132 (commonality existed where legal theory and 

underlying ageements were the same). 

Rule 52.08(a)(1) is Satisfied 

The causes of action stated in the Second Amended Petition altege claims common to the 

members of the Class. These ctaims raise questions of law or fact common to the Ctass because 

they aI! pe•ain to each member's !oan and the application of the MSMLA to such loans. The Cou• 

further finds that the class issues sufficiently predominate so as to justify use of a class action in th_•s 

case under Mo. Rule. 52.08. 

It is not for the Court to determine on certification whether the cornmon questions g•darantee 

a determination of liability. Eisen v. Carlisle & Jacctuelin, 4t7 U.S. 156, 178, 94 S.Ct. 2i40 (1974). 



The question, instead, is whether the legal issues and the factual underpinnings of any decision are 

common to all members of the class. Id__:.; Jackson v. Rat•_p_!, t32 F.R.D. 226, 230 (W.D. Mo. 1990) 

(°'The Court may go beyond the pleadings in determining whether class action prerequisites have 

been met, but may not review the sufficiency or substantive merits of [the plaintiff's claims and 

factual] allegations"). Here, both the liability and the damages issues presented by Plaintiffs' claims 

have a common nucleus. 

The MSMLA claims advanced by Plaintiffs are statutorily based, thus providing common 

questions of law with respect to the interpretation of the statute. Violation of the statute grants 

specific remedies and carries specific penalties. Neither the interpretation of the statute, which 

the parties dispute, nor the methodology for application of the statutory remedy will vary 

beV,veen class members. Should there be a finding of liability, each class member may receive a 

different amount based upon his or her loan, but the method of determining the amount wii1 not 

vary. Plaintiffs have alteged that it was a common procedure of Preferred Creditto charge the 

lame type of "loan origination" and other fees and costs to all its borrowers, thus further 

reducing the prospect of differences among class members' claims. Plaintiffs' claims are based 

upon a comxnon interpretation of the limits imposed on such fees by the MSMLA. The 

determination of that issue will effect the named and unnamed class members alike. If, as 

alleged, Preferred Credit emptoyed a common practice with respect to the subject fees and costs 

it charged its many borrowers, the question of whether those fees violated the MSMLA will be 

common to all class members. 

The Court has also carefully considered the issue of damages in this action. As many 

courts recognize, when a plaintiff establishes an issue of law common to all class members, the 

possibility of individuaIized damages cannot bar class certification. In re Visa Chec1•qMaster 



Money Antitrust Litigation, 280 F.3d 124, 139 (2 nd Cir. 2001); Bertulli v. ]indep. Ass'n of Cont'l 

Pilots, 242 F.3d 290, 298 (5 th Cir. 2001); Blackie v. Barrack, 524 F.2d 89I, 905 (9 th Cir. 1975); 

Gold Strike Stamp Co. v. Christensen, 436 F.2d 791, 796,798 (10 th Cir. 1970). The issue of 

damages, therefore, must be considered in the context of whether the common issues of law or 

fact predominate over any collateral issue as to individualized damages. Id__:. Thus, individualized 

issues of damages are relegated to secondary status in making the decision on whether or not 

common issues predominate. To the extent that each borrower may have a claim for a different 

amount depending on the amount of his or her loan, or whether or not the loan has been repaid, 

these distinctions are not sufficient to 6iitweigh the predominance of the common elements of the 

damage issues; nor will the calculation of those damages pose an insurmountable problem for the 

management of this action as a class action. 

Based upon the foregoing, the Court finds as a fact and concludes as a matter of law that 

a "class" within the meaning of Mo. Rule 52.08 exists and that there iikewise exist common 

issues of law and fact with respect to that Class. The Court further concludes as a matter of law 

that the class issues sufficiently predominate to justify use of a class action in this case under 

Mo. Rule 52.08. 

C. Typicality 

Rule 52.08(a)(3) requires that the claims of the class representatives be "typical of the 

claims •" o• •he class." The threshold for •* •'•' •, 
MetIon •.•a•,•Ishm• typicality is a!so low. DeBoer v. 

Mort•aee •., 64 F.3d !171, 1174 (8 th Cir. 1995). "The burden of demonstrating t?10icality is 

fairly easily met so long as other class members have claims similar to the named piaintifli" id. 

Typicality does not require that the claims of the class rnembers be identical. Id.; FieIder, 175 

F.R.D. at 320. Typicality is frequently demonstrated by showing that the plaintiff has the same 



or similar grievances as the other members of the class. Paxton, 688 F.2d at 562; Donaldson v. 

Pillsbury Co,., 554 F.2d 825,830 (Sth Cir.), cert. denied, 434 U.S. 856 (1977)). "The court must 

be shown that the representative is not alone." Paxton. 688 F.2d at 562. 

Rule 52.08(a)(3) is Satisfied 

The action also satisfies the typicality requirement. The named Plaintiffs' claims arise 

out of the same course of conduct as the Class claims; Plaintiffs have no conflict of interest; and 

their claims are based upon the same legal theories, which will apply to the Class in general. The 

named Plaintiffs' claims also arise out of the same course of conduct, i.e., the alleged violation of 

§ 408.233.1, and are based on the same legal theories as those of the members of the Class. 

Plaintiffs, like the members of the Class, allege that they were aggrieved in the first instance by 

m• 
conduct of the same and •;-• •"-' i•,•o,. -o•-•fo,-r•ct •redlt, in nreci•elv the same way 

they were all charged unauthorized and/or excessive fees and costs in connection with their 

second mortgage loans. This is true of the Gilmors, whose claims are not "atypical" simply 

because they paid off their loan. Nor does the Court find at tNs time that the Gilmors are 

"atypical" because of their bankruptcy and they shall remain in this case as plaintiffs. Thus, the 

Court concludes that the typicality requirement of Rule 52.08(a) is also met. 

D. Adequacy of Representation 

The requirement of Rule 52.08(a)(4) is satisfied if it appears that (1) the named plaintiffs' 

interests are not antagonistic to those of the ciass they seek to represent and (2) the named 

piaintiffs' attorneys are qualified, experienced and generally able to conduct the !itigation. 

Paxton, 688 F.2d at 562-63; Bradford. 187 F.R.D. at 605; Fielder. 175 F.R.D. at 320. The 

existence of these elements is to be presumed, absent proof to the contrary. See Morgan, 

169 F.R.D. at 357. As the court explained in Cook v. Rockwett ]int'l Cort•., 151 F.R.D. 378 (D. 



Colo. 1993): 

[A]dequate representation presumptions are usually invoked in the absence of 
contrary evidence by the party opposing the class. On the issue of no conflict 
with the class, one of the tests for adequate representation, the presumption fairly 
arises because of the difficulty of proving negative facts. On the issue of 
professional competence of counsel for the class representative, the presumption 
fairly arises that aI1 members of the bar in good standing are competent. Finally, 
on the issue of intent to prosecute the action vigorously, the favorable 
presumption arises because the test involves future conduct of persons, which 

cannot fairly be prejudged adversely. 

Id. at 386 (quoting from Newber• on Class Actions, § 7.24 at 7-80) 

Rule 52.08(a)(4) is Satisfied 

The named Plaintiffs in this action seek money damages and injunctive relief from 

Preferred Credit and its assignees as a result of its unlawful acts. Given this identity of claims, 

there is no potentiai for conflicting interests in this action. The tim•tcu• 
r 
tam•xx•nl-:•'•:*'*" seek the same 

relief as the Class based on the same legal theories. 

The overwhelming focus of Defendants' effort to oppose certification has been to attack 

the adequacy of Class counsel. This attack does not go to the competency or experience of 

counsel but is limited to the al!egation that they are inadequate for alIegedly having unethically 

so!icited c!ass representatives. The Court has considered those facts and the legal authorities 

presented by both sides on this issue, both in this and the other second mortgage cases pending 

before it, and finds that Class counseI is more thmn adequate as the allegation of unethical 

solicitation is factually unfounded and •ega•y' deficient. •'•e•e• •s simply no ewde that BNan 

Thomas, consulting expert for Plaintiffs, was paid to refer potentiai Class representatives to either 

Walters Bender Strohbehn & Vaughan or Lawson & Fields (n/k/a Lawson, Fields, McCue, Lee 

& Campbe!l) or that Mr. Thomas has any financia! interest in the outcome of this lawsuit. The 

Court also incorporates and restates herein its findings and conclusions as expressed with regard 



to the issue of adequacy on December 11, 2002 in Couch v. SMC Lending, Case No. CV100- 

4332CC. 

As in Couch, the Court notes with approval the authorities cited by Plaintiffs, which 

instruct that the purpose behind the ethical cannons is subverted when used as a weapon by 

adversaries. See Terre Du Lac Property Owners Ass'n, Inc. v. Shrum, 661 S.W.2d 45, 48 (Mo. 

App. E.D. 1983); Smith v. Kansas City Southern Railway Co., 2002 WL 1393697 (Mo. App. 

W.D. June 28, 2002, mot. for reh'• and/or transfer to Sup. Ct. denied, as modified, Oct. 1, 2002) 

at *8 n. 8; State ex rel. Wallace v. Munton, 989 S.W.2d 641,645 (Mo. App. S.D.1999). Indeed, 

as it held in Couch, the Court believes that this forum is not the proper place to assert an ethical 

complaint as the alleged ethical violation has nothing to do with the competence and experience 

of class counsel and their corresponding ability to fair!y and adequate!y represent the class. 

Rather, any such complaint is more properly piaced before the authority with .•urisdiction to 

investigate and determine such matters, i.e. the Office of Chief Disciplinary Counsel of the 

Missouri Bar. 

Additionally, the cases relied upon by Defendants on the issue of solicitation of class 

plaintiffs are obsolete. Based on protections under the First Amendment and the general 

evolution of the standards relating to solicitation of clients, attorneys today may directly solicit 

potential class representatives. Mo. Rules 4-7.!-7.3(a)(eff. 1/I/86) (pemxitting direct solicitation 

with persons known to need Iega! serv•ices of the kind provided by t_h_e !awyer) and 4-1.8(e)(eff. 

1/1/86) (permitting a tawyer to advance court costs and expenses of litigation); see also Zauderer 

v. Office of Disciplinary Counsel of the Supreme Court of Ohio, 471 U.S. 626, 647, 105 S.Ct. 

2265, 85 L.Ed 2d 652 (1985); Kennedy v. United HealthCare of Ohio, Inc., 206 F.R.D. 191 (S.D. 

Ohio 2002); Rand v. Monsanto Co., 926 F.2d 596, 600 (7 th Cir. 1991). 



The Court also rejects any contention by Defendants that a conflict of interest exists 

between Class counsel and the class given the agreement by counsel to pay the costs and 

expenses associated with the litigation. See Mo. Rule 4-1.8(e) ("a lawyer may advance court 

costs and expenses of Iitigation, the repa•nent of which may be contingent on the outcome of 

the matter"); • 926 F.2d at 600 (the then recently adopted "Model Rule t.8(e) allows a 

lawyer [in a class action lawsuit] to pick up the tab for costs if the suit is unsuccessful"); Mo,/e v. 

Credit Accet?tance Com•., 200I WL 589101, at *4 (Corm. 2001) (in light of Model Rule 1.8(e), 

"plaintiffs' arrangement with their [class] counsel whereby their counsel will advance the costs 

of litigation does not demonstrate inadequacy"). 

Defendants also claim that the named Plaintiffs are not adequate to represent the Class 

because they are not familiar with their claims and have abdicated control of the case to counsel. 

The Cou• rejects these arguments as well. The law does not require that a class representative 

know every detail of their claim or be familiar with the facts of the other class members' claims. 

Surowitz 
v. Hilton Hotels Corp., 383 U.S. 363, 366, 86 S.Ct. 845, 847-48, 15 L.Ed.2d 807 

(1966); Lewis v. Curtis, 671 F.2d 779, 789 (3 rd Cir. 1982). All that is required is that the Class 

plaintiffs have a fundamental understanding of their claims and a wiltingmess to vigorously 

pursue the Defendants and rely on counsel's expertise. Baffa v. Donaldson, Lufkin & Jet•n'ette Sec. 

Cor]2., 222 F.3d 52, 01-62 (2 "e Cir.2000). A review of the testimony of the named class 

lep•e•c•ta•vc• reveals that each understands their uia•m•: rand +•'•e•'- responsibility to the other 

Class members, and that each has and intends to continue to pursue such claims vigorously. Nor 

have these Class representatives abdicated control of the litigation to their counsel. They are 

appropriately rel>•ing on counsel to prepare and present their claims, as is typical in class actions 

and, indeed, in litigation in general; but the Court has seen nothing to indicate that any of the 



representatives are anything but committed to pursing their claims. Bradford v. AGCO Corp., 

187 F.R.D. 600, 605 (W.D. Mo. t999); Nathan Gordon Trust v. Northgage Exploration, Ltd., 

I48 F.R.D. 105, 107 (S.D.N.Y. 1993). 

Defendants also claim that the Class representatives are "inadequate" because they either 

do not have the ability and/or financial willingness to pursue the class action. While this was a 

valid point of contention in class action litigation at one time, it is no longer vatid given Mo. 

Rule 4-1.8(e), which a11ows counsel to agee to be responsible for all costs, which is in fact what 

has happened in this case. 

In sum, the Court finds that both the named Plaintiffs and their counsei will fairly and 

adequately protect the interests of the Class. 

Part II 

Having determined that the requirements of Mo. Rule 52.08(a) are met, the Court must 

determine whether, in its discretion, a class action procedure constitutes a superior method for 

adjudicating the Plaintiffs' ctaims pursuant to Mo. Rule 52.08(b)(3). 3 

A. Rule 52.08(b)(3) 

The Court finds as a fact and concludes as a matter of taw that the class action 

mechanism is the superior method for adjudication of the claims in this case. In making this 

determination, the Court, in the exercise of its *: &screwworm, reaffirms its conclusions above that 

there are common issues of fact and law wNch predominate in this action and that Plaintiffs are 

adequate cIass representatives. These two factors substantially support the superiority of 

adjudication as a class action. The Court also finds that the usefut purposes of ctass actions in 

Plaintiffs initially sought certification under Rule 52.08(b)(2) in the alternative. That no longer is the case as 

Plaintiffs now seek certification only under Rule 52.08(b)(3). 



preventing multiplicity of lawsuits and inconsistent verdicts is served in this instance. Se___•e 

Dublin v. UCR. ]inc., 115 N.C. App. 209,444 S.E.2d 455 (1994). 

The Court has also considered the nature of the damages in this case. They are not 

nominal. Should Plaintiffs prevail they stand to recover all of the illegal fees and interest they 

have thus far paid on the loans obtained from Preferred Credit, together with a forfeiture of any 

future interest owed. §§ 408.236, 408.562 RSMo. The fees and interest could total millions of 

dollars. Statutory penalties including attorneys' fees and punitive damages could also increase 

that amount. § 408.562 RSMo. The damages are sig-nificant in amount and sig-nificant to 

Plaintiffs and the class of homeowner's"they wilt represent since their home mortgages could be 

affected. It is therefore likely that class members would make claims. 

Next, the Court has considered whether there are any individualized issues that adversely 

impact the superiority of the class mechanism. The Court finds no such issues based upon its 

understanding of Plaintiffs' claims. Were such issues to exist, however, the Court would be 

i'equired to give them tittle weight. When there has been established an issue of taw common to 

all class members, as is the case here, the fact that there will be individualized damages is a 

collateral matter and no bar to certification. In re Visa Check/2v•aster Money Antitrust Liti,•atio____•n, 

280 F.3d at 13%140. 

A class action will foster economies of time and effort and expense, and uniformity of 

decisions wilt be ensured. The only alternative to a class action is fbr Plaintiffs and the members 

of the Class to rite no less than 4!6 individual claims. To do so would be tirn_e consuming and 

redundant, as each claimant would be required to conduct discovery into Defendants' business 

practices to prove exactly the same allegations and proffer exactly the same evidence. Each 

claimant would then be required to brief and argue the same questions of law. Moreover, the 
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individual members may not be aware of their rights. Nor may they be in a position (through 

lack of experience or financially) to commence individual lawsuits against Preferred Credit and 

its various assignees. As a result, the many members of the Class would not likely proceed 

individually against the Defendants. 

The Court also notes that it has been widely recognized that a class action is superior to 

other available methods particularly, individual lawsuits for the fair and efficient 

adjudication of a suit that affects a large number of persons injured by vioiations of consumer 

protection laws or the common law. Prudential Insurance Co. of America Sales Practices 

Litigation v. Prudential Insurance Co. ••America, !48 F.3d 282, 316 (3 rd Cir. 1988). Consumer 

class actions such as the case at bar typically satisfy the superiority requirement of Rule 52.08. 

See, ¢_•., Lozada v. Dale Baker Oldsmobile, !nc.• !97 F•R.D. 321, 332 (W.D. Mich. 2000) 

(consumer class actions are recognized as particularly efficient where individual claims are 

small"); Lake v. First Nationwide Bank, 156 F.R.D. 615,626 (E.D. Pa. t994) (public interest in 

•eeing that rights of consumers are vindicated favors disposition of claims in a class action). 

In addition, the Court notes that, unlike many consumer finance cases involving fraud 

claims, the MSMLA issues raised in this case do not involve reliance issues, nor will the vatidity 

or invalidity of some of the fees be dependent upon the state of mind of the ctass member. 

Whether or not the loan origination and other costs and fees were unauthorized or excessive wiI1 

be a question of law for the Court to decide. 

The Court has also considered the nature and extent of other similar litigation desirability 

or undesirability of concentrating the claim in this forum and concludes that it is desirable to 

proceed with a class action here. To the knowledge of the Court, there is no other similar action 

involving Preferred Credit pending before any court. In addition, the claims in this case involve 



Missouri second mortgage loans, secured by Missouri real estate, which are subject to Missouri 

law. This Court is well equipped to handle the administrative transaction of this case. No party 

has argued otherwise. 

Finally, the Court has also considered whether there are excessive transaction costs or 

management difficulties raised by the nature of the case that would influence the determination 

of the superior method for handing this particular case. The Court does not find any 

management difficulties that cannot be overcome and which would negatively impact the use of 

the class action mechanism. The size and significance of the claims will likely result in the 

claims process being utilized if Plaintiffs prevail. The size of the class and identification of the 

class members do not present insurmountable problems. There is no issue here of the cost of 

litigation su@assing any potep•iat recover, or payout to claimants. Ln sum, the Court finds no 

factors that it believes would render the class action mechanism an inferior method of 

adjudicating this dispute. Lndeed, this is the type of case that the courts of Missouri and other 

jurisdictions routinely certify as a class action. Se__•e, e_•., Order dated December 11, 2002, 

certifying MSMLA consumer class action in Couch v. SMC Lending, Inc., Case No. CV100- 

4332, in the Circuit Court of Clay County, Missouri (Div. It, Russell, J.); Order dated December 

17, 2002, certifying Missouri Second Mortgage Loan Act case in McLean v. First Horizon Home 

Loan Corporation f/k/a McGuire Mort•e Company, Case No.00 CV 228530 in the Circuit 

Court of Jackson County, Missouri (Div. i5, Ro!dan, J.); Order dated May i, 2002, certifying 

consumer class action in Roberson v. Associates Financial Ser•ices of Kansas, Inc., Case No. 

00-CV-2II760-0t, in tee Circuit Court of Jackson County, Missouri (Div. 8, McGraw, 

Fabricant v. Sears Roebuck, 202 F.RoD. 3!0, 317 (S.D. Fla. 200t) (numerous courts have 

certified TILA class actions on the issue of liability to resolve common questions of fact and 



_/ 
taw)(citing Hill v. Galaxy Telecom, 184 F.R.D. 82, 87 (N.D. Miss. t999)); Sanchez v. Lowell 

Lebermann, Inc., 79 F.R.D. 21 (W.D. Tex. i978); McCoy v. Salem Mortgage Co.., 74 F.R.D. 8, 

12 (E.D. Mich. 1976). 

IT IS THEREFORE, ORDERED, ADJ-LrDGED and DECREED that Plaintiffs' motion 

for certification of a plaintiff class is granted and the Court hereby certifies a class of plaintiffs 

under Rule 52.08(b)(3) defined as foI1ows: 

All individuals who, on or after June 27, 1994: 

A. obtained a '°Second Mortgage Loan" loan from Preferred Credit; and 

B. who paid the follo,adng, or who financed the payment of the following as a part of 
the principal loan balance, at or before the dosing: 

1. An origination fee exceeding 2% of the principal loan amount for 
having a tno, da•o •,•',,• •,,l•,,•t 28, 1998; or 

2. An origination fee exceeding 5% of the principal loan amount for 
loans having a loan date on or after August 28, 1998; or 

3. Any other prohibited fees or costs paid or financed as a part of the 
principal loan balance including, without iimitation, the folIowing 
fees and costs: 

* BROKER FEES 

® 
DOCUMENT PREPARATION FEES 

® 
LOAN (OR OTHER) PROCESSING FEES 

, UNDERWRITING FEES 

® 
SUB-ESCROW FEES 

* 
•xJPPLICATiON FEES 

* 
REV•W/APP•ISAL FdEVIEW FEES 

® 
C R •nTT/COU!• JEP, f[•,rPS FEES 

,• 
DOCUMENT SIGNING FEES 

o 
PROCESSING/ADMI•'ISTRATION FEES 

The prohibited fees and costs do not include the following: 

® •'• and charges paid for ,,-•-¢•"*;,• 
•' o, 

releasing, oK 
satisfying a security interest related to the second mortgage 
Ioan 

,• Taxes 
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Fees or premiums for title examination, title insurance, or 

similar pu•oses lnCl•l±l• SIJ, J.--• e y 
Fees for preparation of a deed, settlement statement, or 

other documents 
Fees for notarizing deeds and other documents 
Appraisal fees 
Fees for credit reports 
Charges for insurance (i) protecting the lender against the 
borrower's default or other credit loss (ii) against loss of or 

damage to the property, where no such coverage then 
existed or (h) providing life, accident, health or involuntary 
unemployment coverage. 

A "Second Mortgage Loan" is defined by Missouri Statutes as a "a 
loan secured in whole or in part by a lien upon any interest in 
Residential 4•eal Estate created by a security instrument, including a 

mortgage, deed of trust, or other similar instrument or document, 
which provides for interest to be caiculated at the rate allowed by the 
provisions of section 408.232, which Residential Reai Estate is subject 
to one or more prior mortgage loans." 

"ResidentiaI Real Estate" shall mean "any real estate used or intended 
to be used as a residence by not more than four families, and which is 
situated within the state of Missouri." 

IT IS FURTHER, ORDERED, ADJI2DGED and DECREED (1) that Plaintiffs Michael and 

Sheiiie Giimor, Michael and Lois Hams, Ted and Raye Ann Varns and Leo Parvin are designated 

as Representatives for the above Class; (2) that Plaintiffs' counsel and the firms Walters Bender 

Strohbehn & Vaughan, PC and Lawson & Fields, PC are desi•;nated as Counsel for the above Class; 

and (3) that Class Counsel shall prepare a Notice consistent with Rule 52.08 for dissemination to the 

Class through the best practicable means under the circumstances. 

David W. Russell, Circuit Judge 
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of 13.99% per year. In addition, Century Financial charged the Bakers a $2,500.00 "loan 

origination fee," approximately 7% of the total loan amount, as well as a "Loan Discount fee of 

$335.00, an "Underwriting Fee" of $495.00, a "Doc[ument] Signing Fee" of $150.00 and a 

"Check and Wire Fee" of $155.00. Plaintiffs allege that, in doing so, Century Financial violated 

the MSMLA, particularly § 408.231, because: (1) the loan origination fee was greater than the 

$670.00 (2%) amount allowed at the time by § 408.23!.!(5) RSMo. and/or (2) § 408.231.!(3) 

RSMo. prohibited Century Financial from charging or receiving the loan discount, underwriting 

and/or other fees described above. 

B. Jeffrey and Michelle Cox 

In September 1997, Plaintiffs Jeffrey and Michelle Cox obtained a $48,000.00 mortgage 

loan from Century Financial. The Coxes claim that the loan was a "Second Mortgage Loan" 

within the meaning of the MSMLA. For the loan, Century Financial charged the Coxes interest 

at a rate of !5o99% per year° In addition, Century Financial charged the Coxes a $3,500.00 "loan 

origination fee," approximately 7% of the total loan amount, as well as an "Underwriting Fee" of 

$495.00 and a °'Doc[ument] Signing Fee" of $ i50.00. Plaintiffs allege that, in doing so, Century 

Financial violated the MSMLA, particularly § 408.231, because: (1) the loan origination fee was 

greater than the $960.00 (2%) amount allowed at the time by § 408.231.1(5) RSMo. and/or (2) § 

408.231.1(3) RSMo. prohibited Century Financial from charging or receiving the underwriting 

and/or ig aocumem s ning 
u•sc•u•u •tuuw. 

C. William and Linda Springer 

In October !997, P!aintiffs Wi!!iam a_n_d Li•ada Springer obtained a $29,200.00 mortgage 

loan from Century Financial. The Springers claim that the loan was a "Second Mortgage Loan" 

,•n the meaning of the MSMLA. For the loan0 Century Finmnciai charged the Springers 
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interest at a rate of 13.99% per year. In addition, Century Financial charged the Springers a 

$2,900.00 "loan origination fee," approximately 10% of the total loan amount, as well as an 

"Underwriting Fee" of $495.00 and a "Doc[ument] Signing Fee" of $150.00. Plaintiffs allege 

that, in doing so, Century Financial violated the MSMLA, particularly § 408.231, because: (1) 

the loan origination fee was greater than the $584.00 (2%) amount allowed at the time by § 

408.231.1(5) RSMo. and/or (2) § 408.231.1(3) RSMo. prohibited Century Financial from 

charging or receiving the underwriting and/or document signing described above. 

D. The Petition and Plaintiffs' Claims 

Plaintiffs James and Jill Baker originally filed this action on June 28, 2000. The Court 

joined the Coxes and the Springers as plaintiffs on March 4, 2002. In their Second Amended 

Petition, Plaintiffs assert claims both individually and on behalf of all other Missouri 

homeowners alleged to have been similarly aggrieved by Century Financial's acts (i.e., those 

Missouri borrowers charged the same type of allegedly unauthorized and/or excessive "loan 

origination" and other costs and fees in violation of the MSMLA and Missouri law). Among 

other things, Plaintiffs seek to recover the uniaw#ai fees and costs that they were charged, as well 

as all of the interest they have paid on their respective second mortgage loan, and a forfeiture of 

any interest not yet due, a remedy that Plaintiffs claim is expressly made availabie to them by 

virtue of the MSMLA, § 408.236 RSMo. Plaintiffs seek the same relief and remedies for the 

E. The Applicable Statute of Limitations 

In nnnn•in• Pln•ndffa' marion ta certify, and in an earlier filed motion of summary 

judgment, Defendants have urged the Cou• to find that Plaintiffs' claims are governed by • 

hm•t•,•,s, on the ot•er •,d, contend that me 516.130(2) • •'; •+:• D•;,•;• • 
,•,•., a 3-year sta•ut• 
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6-year statute of limitations contained in § 516.420 RSMo applies. The Court agrees with 

Plaintiffs. 

The 6-year statute of limitations contained in § 516.420 RSMo. applies to "all" lawst•its 

where the claimant seeks relief (i.e., "to recover an,/penalty or forfeiture imposed, or to enforce 

any liability created b•¢ law") from and/or against a "moneyed corporation." The statute 

provides: 

None of the provisions of sections 515.380 to 516.420 shall apply to suits against 
moneyed corporations or against the directors or stockholders thereof, to recover • 
penalty or forfeiture imposed, or to enforce any liability created by the act of 
incorporation or any other law; but all such suits shall be brought within six gears after 
the discovery by the aggrieved party of the facts upon which such penalty or forfeiture 
attached, or by which such liability- was created. 

§ 516.420 RSMo. 2000 (emphasis added). 

The named Plaintiffs seek to "enforce a liability" and/or to recover a "penalty or 

forfeiture" imposed by Missouri law against and from Century Financial, a second mortgage 

lender, and its various assignees. Specifically, the named Plaintiffs seek to recover the unlawful 

fees and costs that they and the members of the putative plaintiff class were charged for their 

second mortgage loans, as well as (1) all of the interest that they and any class member paid on 

their loans, (2) a forfeiture of any interest not yet due, and (3) statutory penalties, punitive 

damages, and attorneys' fees. Plaintiffs seek this relief both for themselves and for the plaintiff 

class pursuant to the MSMLA and § 408.562 RSMo. 

Because Plaintiffs are seeking to "enforce a liability" and/or to recover a "penalty or 

forfeiture" imposed by the MSMLA and § 408.562 against and from Century Finalacial, a 

"moneyed corporation," and its derivatively liable assignees, Plaintiffs' statutory claims are 

governed by § 516.420 RSMo. The language of the statute is crystal clear: "all" suits "to recover 

any penalty or forfeiture imposed, or to enforce any liability created by any law shall be 
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brought within six years after the discovery by the aggrieved party of the facts upon which such 

penalty or forfeiture attached, or by which such liability was created." § 516.420 RSMo. 2000. 

Hence, the 6-year statute applies in this case. Cf. Nolan v. Kolar, 629 S.W.2d 661, 663 (Mo. 

App. 1982) (statute providing for forfeiture of 10% of amount of deed of trust for •ailure to 

timely acknowledge satisfaction of deed of trust was subject to § 516.420); Fielder v. Credit 

Acceptance Corporation, 19 F. Supp.2d 966, 974 (W.D. Mo. 1998) (6-year statute set out in § 

•,•t•on aga t auto !oan finance company brought pursuant to 5 !6.420 applies to consumer class •,,o 

§ 408.562 RSMo.). The Court incorporates herein its December 19, 2002 decision to deny 

Defendant Master Financial Asset Securitization Trust 1998-1's motion of summary judgment 

and again holds that the applicable statute of limitations in this cause is the 6-year limitation 

a•l •xelldm•ts, all as was more under § 516.42u RSlvm., which shall be deemed applicable to 11 •,_• 

fully stated on December 19, 2002° 

Standards for Determining Class Action 

Missouri Rule of Civil Procedure 52.08 sets tbrth the requirements for a Class 

lawsuit. Rule 52.08(a) provides: 

(a) Prerequisite to a Class Action. One or more members of a class may sue or be 
sued as representative parties on behalf of all only if (1) the class is so numerous that 
joinder of all members is impracticable, (2) there are questions of law or fact 

common to the class, (3) the claims or defenses of the representative parties are 

typical •" •'• •;• 
• or defenses of the • • (4) the • parties rep will 

•r•y and adequately •,•o• ,•,• interest of the o• 

Once the requirements of Rule 52.08(a) are satisfied, an action may be maintained as a class 

action under Rule 52.08(b)(3) if: 

rT•he court finds that the questions of law or fact comxnon to the members of the 
class pr,•domina•e over any questions affecting ;"•;": "• only ,•au• members, as•d that a 

class action is superior to other available methods for the fair and efficient 
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adjudication of the controversy. The matters pertinent to the findings include: 

(A) the interest of the members of the class in individually controlling the 
prosecution or defense of separate actions; 

(B) the extent and nature of any litigation concerning the controversy already 
commenced by or against members of the class; 

(C) the desirability or undesirability of concentrating the litigation of the claims in 
the particular forum; 

(D) the difficulties likely to be encountered in the management of a class action. 

Class Action Analysis 

The analysis required in this case is divided imo two parts, which correspond to the 

separate requirements of Mo. Rule 52.08(a) and (b)(3). 

Part I 

A. Numerosity 

Rule 52.08(a)(1) requires that the proponent of a class action demonstrate that "the class 

is so numerous that joinder of all members is impracticable." The rule does not require that 

joinder be impossible; rather, joinder of all members is impracticable when the procedure "would 

be difficult or inconvenient." Jackson v. Rar•s, 132 F.R.D. 226, 230 (W.D. Mo. 1990); Esler v. 

Northrop Corp., 86 F.R.D. 20, 33-34 (W.D. Mo. 1979). "A showing of strong Iitigational 

inconvenience in the prosecution of claims separately or jointly by the proposed class members 

• *" •A is sm•clen•, w• mslcr, 86 F.R.D. at 

Rule 52.08(a) does not contain any explicit numerical limitations. See Bradford v. A_g_9_0_ 

Cor.p=., 187 F.R.D. 600, 604 (W.D. Mo. 1999). Nor does the rule require precise enumeration of 

Mo.R.Civ.P. 52.08 is identical to Federal Rule 23. Consequently, Missouri courts consider 
interpretations of Rule 23 in interpreting Rule 52.08. Ralph v. American Familv Mut. Ins. Co., 809 
S.W.2d 173, 174 (Mo.App. WD 1991). 
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the class size before the action can proceed as a class action. Morgan vo United Parcel Service of 

America, Inc., 169 F.R.D. 349, 355 (E.D. Mo. 1996); see Jackson, 132 F.R.D. at 230. It is 

permissible to estimate class size. Fielder v. Credit Acceptance Corp., 175 F.R.D. 313 (W.D. 

Mo. 1997) (between 120 and 160 members). However, impracticability of joinder has generally 

been found where the class is composed of more than 40 persons. Este___xr, 86 F.R.D. at 33 ("the 

difficulty inherent in joining as few as 25 or 30 class members should raise a presumption that 

joinder is •mp•a,•cabl,•, and the plaintiff whose class is that large or larger should meet the test 

of 23(a)(1) on that fact alone") (quoting H. Newberg, Class Actions § 1105b (1977 & Supp. 

1978)); Senn v. Manchester Bank of St. Louis, 583 S.W.2d 119, 132-33 (Mo. banc 1979) 

overruled on other grounds, Harman v. Davis, 651 S.W.2d 134, 136 (Mo. 1983) (trial court 

property permitted cause to proceed as class action with class comprised of approximately 80 

members); Paxton v. Union Nat. Bank, 688 Fo2d 552 (8 tll Cir. 1982) (16 members); Bradford, 

187 F.R.D. at 600 (W.D. Moo i999) (65 members); Mo•, 169 F.R.D. 349 (possibly 19 

members). ? 

The Court may also consider a number of additional factors when determining 

impracticability of joinder, including the nature of the action, the inconvenience of trying 

individual suits, geographical distribution, the size of the claims of the individual class members, 

the ability of individual litigants to institute an action on their own behalf "and any other factor 

reievam to the practicability 
u• jum,•g •" •v,• 

a, l,• 
putative class -'•'•'•° •'•" • F.2d o• •o_ 

60;. Esle___yr, 86 F.R.D. at 33. The fact that all class members are located in the same state does not 

de•at certification. In fact, having a!! the plaintiffs in close proximity actua!!y substantiates the 

2 Though a specific number is not required, Professor Newberg's survey of court rulings on the 
•.mmerosi• issue concludes that any ciass consisting of 40 or more members presumptively fulfills the 
numerosity requirements. Newberg on Class Actions § 3.05 (3d Ed. 2001). 
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need for certification. Bradford, 187 F.R.D. at 604 ("If the same witnesses traveled to the same 

courthouse to testify about the same [facts] in multiple cases, then judicial resources would be 

wasted"). 

Rule 52o08(a)(1) is Satisfied 

The Court finds as a fact that Century Financial has made no less than 560 "high interest" 

second mortgage home loans secured by Missouri real estate since June 1994. The Court also 

finds that no fewer than 393 of these second mol-tgage loans Century Financial charged a "loan 

origination" or other fees and costs that appear to have either exceeded the lawful permissible 

amount allowed by § 408.232.1(5) or to be fees and charges not mentioned by § 408.232.1(3). 

These 393 loans may also pertain to property in a number of counties throughout the state of 

Missouri, making joinder of all class members in a single action more problematic and costly. 

Despite the number of loans, however, the parties and the Court can identify the particular 

members of the Class by name and address using the business records of Century Financial and 

of the current holders of the loans. Under the above facts, the Court concludes that the 

numerosity requirement of Mo. Rule 52.08(a) is satisfied° 

Bo Commonality 

Mo. Rule 52.08(a)(2) requires a showing of the existence of "questions of law or fact 

common to the class." This threshold of "commonality" is not high. Winkler v. DTE, Inc., 205 

F.R.D. 235, 240 (D. Ariz. 200i) ('•-[t]he standard tbr commonality is minimal because 'all that is 

required is a common issue of law or fact'"). This prong of the rule is satisfied when the "legal 

Fielder v. Credit Acceptance Cor•., 175 F.R.D. 313,319-20 (W.D. Mo. 1997) (quoting Paxton, 

(commonaiity existed where theory and 688 F.zu at 561): see Senm S.Vv.zd at •_•z • •ega• 
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underlying agreements were the same). 

Rule 52.08(a)(1) is Satisfied 

The causes of action stated in the Second Amended Petition allege claims common to the 

members of the Class. These claims raise questions of law or fact common to the Class because 

they all pertain to each member's loan and the application of the MSMLA to such loans. The Court 

further finds that the class issues sufficiently predominate so as to justigl use of a class action in tNs 

case under Mo. Rule. 52.08. 

It is not for the Court to deter•rfine on certification whether the common questions guarantee 

a determination of liability. Eisen v. Carlisle & Jacquelin, 417 U.S. 156, 178, 94 S.Ct. 2140 (1974). 

The question, instead, is whether the legal issues and the factual underpinnings of any decision are 

common to all members of the class. Id.; Jackson v. Rap_p•s, 132 F.R.D. 226, 230 (W.D. Moo 1990) 

("The Court may go beyond the pleadings in determining whether class action prerequisites have 

been met, but may not review the sufficiency or substantive merits of [the plaintiff's claims and 

factual] allegations"). Here, both the liability and the dmnages issues presented by Plaintiffs' claims 

have a common nucieus. 

The MSMLA claims advanced by Plaintiffs are statutorily based, thus providing common 

questions of law with respect to the interpretation of the statute. Violation of the statute grants 

specific remedies and can'ies specific penalties. Neither the interpretation of the statute, which 

the parties dispute, nor the methodology •%r app•cauon'-'--*:-- of the statutory ,cmcuy•-" will vary 

between class members. Shoutd there be a finding of liability, each class member may receive a 

different amount based upon his or her !oan, but t!•e '.4•ethod of determining the am_ou_n_t wi!! not 

vary. Plaintiffs have alleged that it was a common procedure of Century Financial to charge the 

same type of "loan "" +" ,•,e, fees o_a ,• :+• o•Iglnm•on and •+•- costs to borrowers, *•"'•**• further 
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reducing the prospect of differences among class members' claims. Plaintiffs' claims are based 

upon a common interpretation of the limits imposed on such fees by the MSMLA. The 

determination of that issue will effect the named and unnamed class members alike. If, as 

alleged, Century Financial employed a common practice with respect to the subject fees and 

costs it charged its many borrowers, the question of whether those fees violated the MSMLA will 

be common to all class members. 

The Court has also carefully considered the issue of damages in this action. As many 

courts recognize, when a plaintiff establishes an issue of law common to all class members, the 

possibility of individualized damages cannot bar class certification. In re Visa Check/Master 

Money Antitrust Litigation, 280 F.3d 124, 139 (2 '•d Cir. 2001); Bertulli v. Indep. Ass'n of Cont'l 

Pilots, 242 F.3d 290, 298 (5 t!•- Cir. 200•);•" Blackie vo Barrack, 524 
r.e.u 
• • 891, an•,,o (9 m Cir. 1975); 

Gold Strike Stamp Co. v. Christensen, 436 F.2d 791, 796,798 (10 t• Cir. 1970). The issue of 

damages, therefore, must be considered in the context of whether the common issues of law or 

fact predominate over any collateral issue as to individualized damages. Id__: Thus, individualized 

issues of damages are relegated to secondary status in making the decision on whether or not 

common issues predominate. To the extent that each borrower may have a claim for a different 

amount depending on the amount of his or her loan, or whether or not the loan has beer• repaid, 

these distinctions are not sufficient to outweigh the predominance of the common elements of the 

,•.: •*•'• dama es pose ;.,o,,.•,•,•a*,• rr•'hlel • •'nr tha damage issues; nor wm Lne 
c•tlvmnuon 

•,•w• g p 

management of this action as a class action. 

•.ae•.d the f.qreo•;,-• th• C t f•n•t• as fact and conclucteg as a matter of law that 

a "class" within the meaning of Mo. Rule 52.08 exists and that there likewise exist commor• 

•.calac•t to tl.*aL ,•*•S. ***e {2vu, further co**c,ud•a as a matter ox •uw 
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that the class issues sufficiently predominate to justify use of a class action in this case under 

Mo. Rule 52.08. 

C. Typicality 

Rule 52.08(a)(3) requires that the claims of the class representatives be "typical of the 

claims of the class." The threshold for establishing typicality is also low. DeBoer v. Mellon 

Mo•gage Co., 64 F.3d ! !71, 1• 1• 7•t,. •th, C•. 1995). '•The burden of demonstrating typicality is 

C *°g" ,a•rly easily met so long as other class members have claims similar to the named plammt', td. 

Typicality does not require that the claims of the class members be identical. I_d.; Fielder, 175 

F.R.D. at 320. Typicality is frequently demonstrated by showing that the plaintiff has the same 

or similar grievances as the other members of the class. Paxt 688 F.2d at 562; Donaldson v. 

Piiisburv Co., 554 F.2d 825,830 (8th •lr. •, certo c•emec•, 434 •.•. 856 (19 •/•. "The com-t must 

be shown that the representative is not alone." Paxt 688 F.2d at 562. 

Rule 52.08(a)(3) is Satisfied 

The action also satisfies the typicality requirement. The named Plaintiffs' claims arise 

out of the same course of conduct as the Class claims; Plaintiffs have no conflict of interest; and 

their claims are based upon the same legal theories, which will apply to the Class in general. The 

named Plaintiffs' claims also arise out of the same course of conduct, i.e., the alleged violation of 

§ 408.233.1, and are based on the same legal theories as those of the members of the Class. 

t'laln•l•S, like the niembers • •-•-" "• '• 
o• m• •asb, m•cgc •ha• m•y were aggrl•,•,, 111 the 

the conduct of the same and single mortgage lender, Century Financial, in precisely the same 

u•y fho,, M! charged ,•,•,,-;•oa and/at excessive fees and costs in connectian with 

their second mortgage loans. This is true of the Bakers, whose claims are not "atypical" simply 

because they paid off*'--: Fmanc•m may have allegedly "warehoused" 
u,c• 

loan, or because Mab•er -'-- 
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the loan for a short time, as Defendants claim. The Court concludes that the typicality 

requirement of Rule 52.08(a) is also met. 

D. Adequacy of Representation 

The requirement of Rule 52.08(a)(4) is satisfied if it appears that (1) the named plaintiffs' 

interests are not antagonistic to those of the class they seek to represent and (2) the named 

plaintiffs' attorneys are qualified, experienced and generally able to conduct the litigation. 

•'o-•+•'" 688 F.2d at 562-63; Bradford, 187 F.R.D. at 605; Fielder, 175 F.R.D. at 320. The 

existence of these elements is to be presumed, absent proof to the contrary. _See Morgam su_Kp_•, 

169 F.R.Do at 357. As the court explained in Cook v. Rockwell Int'l Corp., 151 F.R.D. 378 (D. 

Colo. 1993): 

[A]dequate representation presumptions are usually invoked in the absence of 
contrary evidence by the party opposing the class. On the issue of no conflict 
with the class, one of the tests for adequate representation, the presumption fairly 
arises because of the difficulty of proving negative facts. On the issue of 
professional competence of counsel for the class representative, the presumption 
fairly arises that all members of the bar in good standing are competent. Finally, 
on the issue of intent to prosecute the action vigorously, the favorable 
presumption arises because the test involves future conduct of persons, which 
cannot fairly be prejudged adverseiy. 

Id. at 386 (quoting from Newber• on Class Actions, § 7.24 at 7-80) 

Rule 52.08(a)(4) is Satistied 

The named Plaintiffs in this action seek money damages and injunctive relief from 

Century 1, _•- •,,1 
financial and its assignees as a IebutL ux iL• 

unla•, a•.•+• Given +•';°•,•o ;'•"*•*'•,•,,• of claims, 

there is no potential for conflicting interests in this action. The named Plaintiffs seek the same 

The overwhelming focus of Defendants' effort to oppose certification has been to attack 

•un•c•. This attack •'-• •,e adequacy of Class go uuc• 
not to the competency or experience of 
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counsel but is limited to the allegation that they are inadequate for allegedly having unethically 

solicited class representatives. The Court has considered those facts and the legal authorities 

presented by both sides on this issue, both in this and the other second mortgage cases pending 

before it, and finds that Class counsel is more than adequate as the allegation of unethical 

solicitation is factually unfounded and legally deficient. There is simply no evidence that Brian 

Thomas, consulting expert for Plaintiffs, was paid to refer potential class representatives to either 

Walters Bender Strohbehn & ,1 Vau•na,• or Lawson & Fields (l•/l,•/a Lawson, •,•,,•,•';•1•o McCue, Lee 

& Campbell) or that Mr. Thomas has any financial interest in the outcome of this lawsuit. The 

Court also incorporates and restates herein its findings and conclusions as expressed with regard 

to the issue of adequacy on December 11, 2002 in Couch v. SMC Lending, Case No. CV100- 

4332CC. 

As in Couc___•h, the Court notes with approval the authorities cited by Plaintiffs, which 

instruct that the purpose behind the ethical cannons is subverted when used as a weapon by 

adversaries. See Terre Du Lac Pro• Owners Ass'n, Inc. v. Shrtma• 661 S.W.2d 45, 48 (Me. 

App. E.D. 1983); Smith v. Kansas City Southern Railway Co., 2002 WL 1393697 (Me. App. 

W.D. June 28, 2002, mot. for reh'g and/or transfer to Sup. Ct. denied, as modified, Oct. 1, 2002) 

at *8 n. 8; State ex relo Wallace v. Munton, 989 S.W.2d 641,645 (Me. App. S.D.i999). indeed, 

as it held in Couch, the Court believes that this forum is not the proper place to assert an ethical 

• tillC•il LU tit) at•egeu wo•auoit has 
iio t•li•g with the •,•pc• experience 

of class counsel and their corresponding ability to fairly and adequately represent the class. 

D n.+h.•r e•t•,h .,'omn]•.,:nf ;o more 
nroner]v n!•ced Before the a:•thoritv with jurisdiction to 

investigate and determine such matters, i.e. the Office of Chief Disciplinary Counsel of the 

Missouri Bar. 
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Additionally, the cases relied upon by Defendants on the issue of solicitation of class 

plaintiffs are obsolete. Based on protections under the First Amendment and the general 

evolution of the standards relating to solicitation of clients, attorneys today may directly solicit 

potential class representatives. Mo. Rules 4-7.1-7.3(a)(eff. 1/1/86) (permitting direct solicitation 

with persons ½•own to need legal services of the kind provided by the lawyer) and 4-1.8(e)(eff. 

!/1/86) (permitting a lawyer to advance court costs and expenses of litigation); see also Zauderer 

vo Office of Dls,,@•mary Co•11s,A of the Supreme Court of Ohio, 471 U.S. 626, 647, 105 

2265, 85 L.Ed 2d 652 (1985); Kennedy v. United HealthCare of Ohio, Inc., 206 F.R.D. 191 (S.D. 

Ohio 2002); Rand v. Monsanto Co., 926 F.2d 596, 600 (7 th Cir. 1991). 

The Court also rejects any contention by Defendants that a conflict of interest exists 

between Class counsel and the class given the agreement by counsel to pay the costs and 

expenses associated with the litigation. See Mo. Rule 4-1.8(e) (% lawyer may advance court 

costs and expenses of litigation, the repayment of which may be contingent on the outcome of 

the matter"); Rand, 926 F.2d at 600 (the then recently adopted "Model Rule 1.8(e) allows a 

lawyer [in a class action lawsuit] to pick up the tab for costs if the suit is unsuccessful"); Mo'r'e v. 

Credit Acceptance Corp., 2001 WL 589101, at *4 (Conn. 2001) (in light of Model Rule 1.8(e), 

"plaintiffs' arrangement with their [class] counsel whereby their counsel will advance the costs 

of litigation does not demonstrae inadequacy"). 

Defendants also •-^* *•- 
c•mm m• me named •D•'•:•f*>•a•,•xx• not •o•,a• • represent the Class 

because they are not familiar with their claims and have abdicated control of the case to counsel. 

•.om• • 

require that class representative 

•ow every detail of their claim or be fhmiliar with the facts of the other class members' claims. 

Surowitz v. Ho•e,• •orp., 383 U.S. 363, 366, 86 S.Ct. o,•,°• 847-48, 15 •.•d.•d 
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(1966); Lewis v. Curtis, 671 F.2d 779, 789 (3 rd Cir. 1982). All that is required is that the Class 

plaintiffs have a fundamental understanding of their claims and a willingness to vigorously 

pursue the Defendants and rely on counsel's expertise. Baffa v. Donaldson. Lufldn & Jenrette Sec. 

Co12., 222 F.3d 52, 61-62 (2 nd Cir.2000). A review of the testimony of the named class 

representatives reveals that each understands their claims and their responsibility to the other 

Class members, and that each has and intends to continue to pursue such c!aims vigorously. Nor 

have these Class representatives abdicated control of the litigation to their counsel. They are 

appropriately relying on counsel to prepare and present their claims, as is typical in class actions 

and, indeed, in litigation in general; but the Court has seen nothing to indicate that any of the 

representatives are anything but committed to pursing their claims. Bradford v. AGCO Corlk., 

187 F.R.Do 600, 605 (W.D. Mo. 1999); Nathan Gordon Trust v. North•a•e r•xi)lorau•,m Ltd., 

148 F.R.D. 105, 107 (S.D.N.Y. 1993). 

Defendants also claim that the Class representatives are '•inadequate" because they either 

do not have the ability and/or willingness to financially pursue the class action. While this was a 

valid point of contention in class action litigation at one time, it is no longer valid given Mo. 

Rule 4-1.8(e), which allows counsel to agree to be responsible for all costs, which is in fact what 

has happened in this case. 

In sum, the Court finds that both the named Plaintiffs, including Plaintiffs James and Jill 

aKer, 

the interests of the Class. 

Part •.• 

Having determined that the requirements of Mo. Rule 52.08(a) are met, the Court must 

¢•,•s•,•u•c• a superior method deterrnine whether, in its discretion, a class actior• procedure 
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adjudicating the Plaintiffs' claims pursuant to Mo. Rule 52.08(b)(3). 3 

Ao Rule 52.08(b)(3) 

The Court finds as a fact and concludes as a matter of law that the class action 

mechanism is the superior method for adjudicatior• of the claims in this case. In making this 

determination, the Court, in the exercise of its discretion, reaffirms its conclusions above that 

there are common issues of fact and law which predominate in this action and that Plaintiffs are 

•c•,•ls substantially support the superiority of adequate class representatives. These two •'• 

adjudication as a class action. The Court also finds that the useful purposes of class actions in 

preventing multiplicity of lawsuits and inconsistent verdicts is served in this instance. See 

Dublin vo UCR, Inc., 115 N.C. App. 209, 444 S.E.2d 455 (1994). 

The Court has also considered the nature of the damages in this case. They are not 

nominal. Should Plaintiffs prevail they stand to recover all of the illegal fees and interest they 

have thus far paid on the loans obtained from Century Financial, together with a forfeiture of any 

future interest not yet due. §§ 408.236, 408.562 RSMo. The fees and interest could total 

millions of dollars. Statutory penalties including attorneys' fees and punitive damages could also 

increase that amount. § 408.562 RSMo. The damages are significant in amount and significant 

to Plaintiffs and the class of homeowners they will represent since their home mortgages could 

be affected. It is therefore likely that class members would make claims. 

LilG hats CUIIblU•I•U 
wll•tU•l 

til•ic are any adverse 

impact the superiority of the class mechanism. The Court finds no such issues based upon its 

•nct•refnn•:.n,• nf Pln{nt;.Ff•' e!nim• \•]ara •,•c!• i•ues to exist, howaver tha Canrt would be 

required to give them little weight. When there has been established an issue of law common to 

Plaintiffs initially sought certification under Rule 52.08(b)(2) in the alternative. That no longer is the case as 

Plaintiffs now seek certification only under Rule 52.08(b)(3). 
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all class members, as is the case here, the fact that there will be individualized damages is a 

collateral matter and no bar to certification. In re Visa ChecldMaster Mones, Antitrust Litigation, 

280 F.3d at 139-140. 

A class action will foster economies of time and effort and expense, and uniformity of 

decisions will be ensured. The only alternative to a class action is for Plaintiffs and the members 

of the Class to file no less than 393 individual claims. To do so would be time ,'•'' consm•ll•g and 

redundant, as each claimant • •o,• be required to conduct discovery into Defendants' business 

practices to prove exactly the same allegations and proffer exactly the same evidence. Each 

claimant would then be required to brief and argue the same questions of law. Moreover, the 

individual members may not be aware of their rights. Nor may they be in a position (through 

iack of experience or financially) to commence individual lawsuits against Century Financial and 

its various assignees. As a result, the many members of the Class would •ot likely proceed 

individually against the Defendants. 

The Cou• also notes that it has been widely recognized that a class action is superior to 

other available methods particularly, individual lawsuits for the fair and efficient 

adjudication of a suit that affects a large number of persons injured by violations of consumer 

protection laws or the common law. Prudential Insurance Co. of America Saies Practices 

Litigation v. Prudential Insurance Co. of America, 148 F.3d 282, 316 (3 rd Cir. 1988). Consumer 

m• c• • •m 
typically 

• 
superiority 

• 
52.08. 

Se•, •, Lozada v. Dale Baker Oldsmobile Inc., 197 F.R.D. 321, 332 (W.D. Mich. 2000) 

(.•nc•m•r •!n• n•$•an• 
nra 

rac•n•Ted • 
•*•o•l•]v efficient where individual claim• are 

small"); Lake v. First Nationwide Bank, 156 F.R.D. 615, 626 (E.D. Pa. 1994) (public interest in 

•mas in a class action). seeing that •:-•* •s of consumers are vindicated favors disposition of •'•:- 
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In addition, the Court notes that, unlike many consumer finance cases involving fraud 

claims, the MSMLA issues raised in this case do not involve reliance issues, nor will the validity 

or invalidity of some of the fees be dependent upon the state of mind of the class member. 

Whether or not the loan origination and other costs and fees were unauthorized or excessive will 

be a question of law for the Court to decide. 

The Court has also considered the nature and extent of other similar litigation desirability 

or undesirability of- •;• *•'• ,•on,•ellLra g claim m this forum and concludes that it is desirable 

proceed with a class action here. To the knowledge of the Court, there is no other similar action 

involving Century Financial pending before any court. In addition, the claims in this case 

involve Missouri second moKgage loans, secured by Missouri real estate, which are subject to 

Missouri law. This Cou• is well equipped to handle the administrative transaction of this case. 

No paKy has argued otherwise. 

Finally, the CouK has also considered whether there are excessive transaction costs or 

management difficulties raised by the nature of the case that would influence the determination 

of the superior method for handing this particular case. The Court does not find any 

m•agement difficulties that cannot be overcome and which would negatively impact the use of 

the class action mechanism. The size and significance of the claims will likeiy result in the 

claims process being utilized if Plaintiffs prevail. The size of the class and identification of the 

III5•IIIIOUlIL•UI• •IUUIClII•. issue [he • 
class members do not present k• a• •1 

litigation su•assing any potential recovery or payout to claimants. In sum, the Cou• finds no 

£a•* .... a•+ ;+ hMiev•e 1A randar tl•a al• actinn mechanism a!! inferior method af 

adjudicaing this dispute. Indeed, this is the type of case that the couKs of Missouri and other 

lu,•u•,•s routinely :•" c¢,•**y as a class action. Se•, •, Order dated December ii 2002, 
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certifying MSMLA consumer class action in Couch v. SMC Lending, Inc., Case No. CV100- 

4332, in the Circuit Court of Clay County, Missouri (Div. II, Russell, J.); Order dated May 1, 

2002, certifying consumer class action in Roberson v. Associates Financial Services of Kansas, 

Inc__=, Case No. 00-CV-211760-01, in the Circuit Court of Jackson County, Missouri (Div. 8, 

McGraw, J.); Fabricant v. Sears Roebuck, 202 F.R.D. 310, 317 (S.D. Fla. 2001) (numerous 

courts have certified T!LA class actions on the issue of !iability to resolve common questions of 

fact and law)(citing Hill v. Galaxy Telecom, 184 F.R.D. 82, 87 •.D. Miss. 1999)); Sanchez v. 

Lowell Lebermann, Inc., 79 F.R.D. 21 (W.D. Tex. 1978); McCoy v. Salem Mortgage Co., 74 

F.R.D. 8, 12 (E.D. Mich. 1976). 

IT IS THEREFORE, ORDERED, ADJUDGED and DECREED that Plaintiffs' motion 

for certification of a plaintiff class is granted and the Court hereby certifies a class o• 

under Rule 52.08(b)(3) defined as follows: 

All individuals who, on or after June 28, 1994: 

A. obtained a "Second Mortgage Loan" loan from Century Financial; and 

B. who paid the following, or who financed the payment of the •%liow-ing as a peat of 
the principal loan balance, at or before the closing: 

1. A_n_ origi•ation fee exceeding 2% of the principal loan amount for 
loans having a loan date before August 28, 1998; or 

2. An origination fee exceeding 5% of the principal loan amount for 
loans having a loan date on or after August 28, 1998; or 

•. 
Any other prohibited •'• or costs paid or financed as a part •f the 
principal loan balance including, without limitation, the following 
fees and costs: 

® 
UNDERWRITING FEES 

® 
LOAN DISCOUNT FEES 

® BROKERS FEES 

® 
DOCUMENT SIGNING FEES 

® 
PROCESSING FEES 
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APPLICATION FEES 
SETTLEMENT/CLOSING e•e 

SIGNING/RESIGNING FEES 
CHECK/WIRE TRANSFER FEES 

The prohibited fees and costs do not include the following: 

Fees and charges paid for perfecting, releasing, or 

satisfying a security interest related to the second mortgage 
loan 
Taxes 
Fees or premiums for title examination, title insurance, or 

similar purposes including survey 
Fees for preparation of a deed, settlement statement, or 

other documents 
Fees for notarizing deeds and other documents 
Appraisal fees 
Fees for credit reports 
Charges for insurance (i) protecting the lender against the 
borrower's default or other credit loss (ii) against loss of or 

damage to the prope1•y, w,n•,• ,•u •uc• coverage then 
existed or (h) providing life, accident, health or involuntary 
unemployment coverage. 

Definitions: For purposes of the Class, 

"Second Mortgage Loan" shall mean % loan secured in whole or in part 
::• m Residential Real Estate created by a by a a,•, up any interest 

security instrument, including a mortgage, deed of trust, or other similar 
instrument or document, which provides for interest to be calculated at 
the rate allowed by the provisions of section 408.232, which Residential 

•oans. Real Estate is subject to one or more prior mortgage 

"Residential Real Estate" shall mean "any real estate used or intended to 

be used as a residence by not more than four families, and which is 
situated withi•_• the state of Missouri." 

IT IS FURTHER, ORDERED, ADJUDGED and DECREED (i) that Plaintiffs James and 

Jill Baker, Jeffrey and Michelle Cox, and William and Linda Springer are designated as 

Representatives for the above Class; (2) that Plaintiffs' counsel and the fimas Wakers Bender 

Strohbelm & Vaughan, PC and Lawson & Fields, PC are designated as Com•se! for the above (-glass; 

and (3) that Class Counsel shall prepare a Notice consistent with Rule 52.08 for dissemination to the 
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Class through the best practicable means under the circumstances. 

Dated: •J•N 2- 2U•,•0 
iS/ [3AVID W. RUSSELL 

David W. Russell, Circuit Judge 
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either faxed to us or mailed to our home.

5. Preferred told us over the phone that it would send a representative to our home

with the loan papers for us to sign. On or about September 30, 1997, a person whom we

understood to be Preferred's representative came to our home in Missouri. He had two sets of

loan papers. The representative had us sign one set of the papers, which he kept. The

representative gave us the second set and told us that this was all we needed to do and that the

loan was done.

6. Mike and I signed the application for our second mortgage loan in our home on

or about September 30, 1997. This was when the representative from Preferred came to our

home with the two sets of loan papers. A genuine copy of the signed application is attached as

Exhibit A-3.

7. A genuine copy of the Note we received when we signed up for our loan is

attached as Exhibit A-4.

8. A genuine copy of the Deed of Trust we received when we signed up for our loan

is attached as Exhibit A-5.

9. Both the note and the deed of trust for the loan contained a notation on the bottom

left-hand corner of each page indicating that the loan was a "MISSOURI - SECOND

MORTGAGE."

10. A genuine copy of the Settlement Statement that Mike and I received when we

signed up for our loan is attached as Exhibit A-6. It shows a Settlement Date of 09/27/1997.

The disbursement listing on the Settlement Statement matches up with what I will call the

Creditor Payoff Sheet, which we also received and signed on or about September 30, 1997,

attached as Exhibit A-7.

11. Mike and I borrowed all the fees and any prepaid interest that we had to pay to
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obtain our loan as a part of the $40,000 total loan amount. This is the way Preferred proposed

the loan to us. I do not remember anyone from Preferred ever telling or suggesting to us that we

could (or should) pay for the fees ourselves with cash, instead of from the money we were

borrowing.

12. A genuine copy of the Federal Truth in Lending Disclosure Statement that Mike

and I received when we signed up for our loan is attached as Exhibit A-8.

13. A genuine copy of the Itemization of Amount Financed that Mike and I received

when we signed up for our loan is attached as Exhibit A-9.

14. A genuine copy of the Notice of Right to Cancel that Mike and I received when

we signed up for our loan is attached to this affidavit as Exhibit A-10. We did not cancel the

loan at any time.

15. A genuine copy of the Loan Servicing Disclosure Statement that Mike and I

received when we signed up for our loan is attached as Exhibit A-II.

16. Our records show that, after we "closed" our loan in September, Preferred mailed

us a Final Closing Statement, together with the disbursement checks and the letter attached as

Exhibit A-12. Our records also show that we probably received the Settlement Statement

attached as Exhibit 3, which shows a Settlement Date of 10/0311997, along with the Final

Closing Statement and checks.

17. I paid most of the bills and I made most if not all of the payments on our second

mortgage loan. I do not remember ever making any monthly payments to Preferred Credit. I

recall sending some of the payments to Advanta Mortgage. Later, and at or about the time we

received the Notice of Assignment, Sale or Transfer of Servicing Rights from Advanta

Mortgage, attached as Exhibit A-14, I started sending our payments to Wendover Financial

Services Corporation.
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18. I wrote most if not all of the checks we sent in to pay our second mortgage loan.

Mike and I made all of the monthly payments from Missouri. All of the checks were drawn on our

bank account in Missouri. We wrote each check after receiving a written bill, which was also

mailed to us in Missouri. Mike and I made all of the monthly payments due on the loan up until the

time it was repaid.

19. Even though I sent the monthly payments to Wendover, our bills still came from

Impac Funding Corp. A genuine copy of one of the bills we received for our loan is attached as

Exhibit A-IS.

20. Genuine copIes of the Form 1098's that Mike and I received for our loan are

collectively attached as Exhibits A-16. Like the monthly bills, the 1098's were mailed to us in

Missouri for each year.

21. Before filing this suit, Mike and I requested Wendover to identifY the holder or

owner of our mortgage note. A genuine copy of the letter Wendover mailed in response is attached

as Exhibit A-17.

22. Mike and I were able to payoff our second mortgage loan in 2001. A genuine copy

of the Deed of Release available on-line from the Clay County Recorder of Deeds is attached as

Exhibit A-18.

23. The signatures on the documents collectively attached as Exhibit A-19 are Mike's

and mine.

24. I have personal knowledge of each of the matters set out above and state that they

are true.
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STATE OF MISSOURI )
) ss

COUNTY OF JACKSON )

Before me, on this day of November 2010, the undersigned, a Notary Public within
and for the County and State aforesaid, came :Ste"v: L. Gilmor, who is personally known to me to
be the same person who executed this instrument, and such person duly acknowledged the
execution of the same to her own fee act and deed.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my official seal; the
day and year last above written.

My Commission Expires:
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5. Once everything was in order Preferred told us on the phone that it would send a

representative to our home with the loan papers for us to sign. On or about August 7, 1997, a

person whom we understood to be Preferred's representative came to our home in Missouri. She

had two sets of loan papers. The representative had us sign one set of the papers, which she kept.

The representative gave us the second set and told us that this was all we needed to do and that

the loan was done.

6. Lois and I signed the application for our second mortgage loan in our home on or

about August 7, 1997. This was when the representative from Preferred came to our home with

the two sets ofloan papers. A genuine copy of the signed application is attached as Exhibit B-2.

7. A genuine copy of the Note we received when we signed up for our loan is

attached as Exhibit B-3.

8. A genuine copy of the Deed of Trust we received when we signed up for our loan

is attached as Exhibit B-4.

9. Both the note and the deed oftrust for the loan contained a notation on the bottom

left-hand comer of each page indicating that the loan was a "MISSOURI - SECOND

MORTGAGE."

10. A genuine copy of the Settlement Statement that Lois and I received when we

signed up for our loan is attached as Exhibit B-5. It shows a Settlement Date of 08/12/1997.

The disbursement listing on the Settlement Statement matches up with the list of debts to be paid

with our loan funds, which we also received when we signed up for our loan, and which is

attached as Exhibit B-6.

11. Lois and I borrowed all the loan fees and any prepaid interest that we had to pay

to obtain our loan as a part of the $45,000.00 total loan amount. This is the way Preferred
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proposed the loan to us. I do not remember anyone from Preferred ever suggesting or telling us

that we could (or should) pay for the fees with cash, instead of from the money we were

borrowing.

12. A genuine copy of the Federal Truth in Lending Disclosure Statement that Lois

and I received when we signed up for our loan is attached as Exhibit B-7.

13. A genuine copy of the Itemization of Amount Financed that Lois and I received

when we signed up for our loan is attached as Exhibit B-8.

14. A genuine copy of the Notice of Right to Cancel that Lois and I received when we

signed up for our loan is attached to this affidavit as Exhibit B-9. We did not cancel the loan at

anytime.

15. A genume copy of the Loan Servicing Disclosure Statement that Lois and I

received when we signed up for our loan is attached as Exhibit B-1 O.

16. Our records show that, after we "closed" our loan on or about August 7, 1997,

Preferred mailed us a Final Closing Statement dated 8/15/97, attached as Exhibit B-ll, together

with the disbursement checks. Our records also show that we probably received the Settlement

Statement, attached as Exhibit B-12, which shows a Settlement Date of 08/18/1997, along with

the Final Closing Statement and disbursement checks.

17. I paid most of the bills and I made most if not all of the payments on our second

mortgage loan. I do not remember making any monthly payments to Preferred Credit. I recall

making payments to Advanta Mortgage, and later I started sending our payments to Wendover

Financial Services, and then to Countrywide Home Loans at the end.

18. I wrote most if not all of the checks we sent in to pay our second mortgage loan.

Lois and I made all of the monthly payments from Missouri. All of the checks were drawn on our

3



bank account in Missouri. We wrote each check after receiving a written bill, which was also

mailed to us in Missouri.

19. Even though I sent the monthly payments to Wendover, our bills still came from

Impac Funding Corp. Genuine copies of two of the bills and stubs we received for our loan are

attached as Exhibit B-13.

20. Genuine copies of the Form 1098's that Lois and I received for our loan are

collectively attached as Exhibits B-14. Like the monthly bills, the 1098's were mailed to us in

Missouri for each year.

21. Before we joined this lawsuit, Lois and I requested Wendover to identify the holder

or owner of our mortgage note. A genuine copy of the letter Wendover mailed in response is

attached as Exhibit B-IS.

22. Lois and I were able to payoff our second mortgage loan in 2006. A genuine copy

of the Deed of Release available on-line from the Jackson County Recorder of Deeds is attached as

Exhibit B-16.

23. The signatures on the documents collectively attached as Exhibit A-17 are Lois' and

mme.

24. I have personal knowledge of each of the matters set out above and state that they

are true.
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Dated:
-----------"----

Michael E. Harris

STATE OF MISSOURI )
) ss

COUNTY OF JACKSON )

Before me, on this of November 2010, the undersigned, a Notary Public within
and for the County and State aforesaid, came Michael E. Harris, who is personally known to me to
be the same person who executed this instrument, and such person duly acknowledged the
execution of the same to her own fee act and deed.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my official seal; the
day and year last above written.

My CornmJlSSICm
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Raytown, Missouri, designated by Preferred Credit. The loan officer had two sets of loan papers. 

The loan officer had me sign one set of the papers, which he kept. The loan officer gave me the 

second set and told me that this was all I needed to do and that the loan was done. 

6. A genuine copy of the Note I received when I signed up for my loan is attached as 

Exhibit D-2. 

7. A genuine copy of the Deed of Trust I received when I signed up for my loan is 

attached as Exhibit D-3. 

8. Both the note and the deed of trust for the loan contained a notation on the bottom 

left-hand comer of each page indicating that the loan was a "MISSOURI - SECOND 

MORTGAGE." 

9. A genuine copy of the Settlement Statement that I received in connection with my 

second mortgage loan is attached as Exhibit D-4. It shows a Settlement Date of June 11, 1997. 

The disbursement listing on the Settlement Statement matches up with the list of debts to be paid 

with my loan funds, which I received and signed on or about June 11, 1997, attached as Exhibit 

D-S. 

10. I borrowed all the fees and any prepaid interest that I had to pay to obtain my loan 

as a part of the $20,000 total loan amount. This is the way Preferred proposed the loan to me. I 

do not remember anyone from Preferred ever telling or suggesting to me that I could (or should) 

pay for the fees myself with cash, instead of from the money I was bon'owing. 

1 1 
~ >. A genuine copy of the Federal Truth in Lending Disclosure Statement that I 

received when I signed up for my loan is attached as Exhibit D-6. 

12. A genuine copy of the Itemization of Amount Financed that I received when I 

signed up for my loan is attached as Exhibit D-7. 
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13. A genuine copy of the Notice of Right to Cancel that I received when I signed up 

for my loan is attached to this affidavit as Exhibit D-8. I did not cancel the loan at any time. 

14. A genuine copy of the Loan Servicing Disclosure Statement that I received when 

I signed up for our loan is attached as Exhibit D-9. 

15. I paid all of the bills and I made all of the payments on my second mortgage loan. 

I do not remember ever making any monthly payments to Preferred Credit. I recall sending some 

of the payments to Advanta Mortgage, Empire Funding and Countrywide Home Loans, Inc. 

16. I wrote all of the checks I sent in to pay my second mortgage loan. I made all of the 

monthly payments from Missouri. All of the checks were drawn on my bank account in Missouri. I 

wrote each check after receiving a written bill, which was also mailed to me in Missouri. 

17 
~ I. Genuine copies of the Form 1098's that I received for my loan are collectively 

attached as Exhibits D-lO. Like the monthly bills, the 1098's were mailed to me in Missouri for 

each year. 

18. I was able to payoff my second mortgage loan from Preferred Credit. A genuine 

copy of the Deed of Release available on-line from the Jackson County Recorder's Office is 

attached at Exhibit D-l1. 

19. I have personal knowledge of each of the matters set out above and state that they 

are true. 

Dated: 
~------~~----
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STATE OF MISSOURI ) 
) ss 

COUNTY OF JACKSON ) 

Before me, on this day of November 2010, the undersigned, a Notary Public within 
and for the County and State aforesaid, came Leo E. Parvin, who is personally known to me to be 
the same person who executed this instrument, and such person duly acknowledged the execution of 
the same to her own fee act and deed. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my official seal; the 
day and year last above written. 

My Commission Expires: 
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Remit

Investor 353-216- ICIFC/Preferred Loans Sold To Empire Funding

Wire Amount:

Checked by:

Date:

Page 2
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~.
ADVANTA

TO: Financial Processing

FROM: Theresa Bales

DATE: 12/1/97

SUBJECT: Service Release

The following service release transactions occurred today:

INTEROFFICE MEMORANDU

Transaction Name

ICIFC/Empire

Batch Name

EMPIRE

--Attached is a copy of the trial balance, reconciliation and check request for this
transaction.

If you have any questions, please call me at x5003.

cc: Patricia Ramif8z, Diane Weaver

CONFIDENTIAL ADV20675



Service Release Cash Reconciliation
New Servicer: Empire Funding

Effective: 12/1/97

Escrow Balances $ 46.95
Interest on Escrow $ 0.51

Suspense Balances:
Miscellaneous $ 34,747.69
Forbearance/Partial Payment $ 2,373.14
Hazard Loss $ 0.00

Subtotal $ 37,168.29

Escrow Advances $ 20,231.06
0.00

Corporate Advances <t. 195.00....
0.00

Subtotal $ 20,426.06

Net Total $ 16,742.23

CheckfRequestAttached

ABA/Routing No.

Funds Wired To:
City/State:
For Credit To:
Account No.:
Reference:

IPrepared By

Reviewe Manager Approva By

CONFIDENTIAL

Wire/See Below

ANB/Accounting Approval

Wire Confirmed By

Remit From:
CENTRAL

DISBURSEMENT

ADV20676
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UPB :> ZERO; SUSP/ADV INFO

FOR LOAN ACQUISITIONS

PAGE 19

LO
(1)
CD
o
N
>
C«

INV
CODE

PQ()L
NMllR

LOAN ALTERNATE BORROWER
NUMBER LN NUMllER LAST NAME

UNPA!D 1JINE:XT*
PRIN BALA.NCR PYMT

DUll

ESCROW
BAl.

susp
MIse

SUSP
HAZ

SUSP
FORB

ESCROW

AD"
CORP
ADV SAL

QUERY NAME, RELACQ4CA SUSANK
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w
C
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U



----------_._-----------------------------~-_._._.~.

12/01/97 08, S3, 37 INVBSTOR 353 POOLS 216
UPB > ZERO; suspjADV INFO

FOR LOAN ACQUISITIONS

PAGE :a

r--.
en
<.0
o
N
>
C«

INV
CODE

POOL
NMBR

LOAN ALTERNATE BORROWER
NUMBER LN NUMBER LAST AAME

UNPAID ·NEXT.
PUN BAIJ\NCE PYMT

DUE

ESCROII
BAL

SUSP

MISC

SUSP

HAZ
SUSP

FORB

ESCROW
AnV

COR~

AnV llAL

RICE

QUERY NAME, RELACQ4CA

.00

SUSANK

.00 "--:00------.~00 ----:00
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12/01/97 08,53,37 INVESTOR 353 POOLS 216
lJPB > ZERO; SUSP/ADV INFO

FOR LOAN ACQUIS ITrONS

PAGE 23

00
C»
CD
o
N
>o
<

INV

CODE
POOL
NMBR

LOAN ALTERNATll BORROWER
NUMBEll LN NUMBER LAST NAME

UNPAID "'NEXT'"
PRIN BALANCE PYMT

DUE

ESCROW

BAL
SUSP
MISC

SUSP

HAZ

StJSP
FORB

ESCROW
ADV

CORP
ADV SAL

QUERY NAME, llELACQ4CA StJSANK
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12/01/97 08,53,37 INVESTOR 353 POOLS 216

UPB » ZERO; SUSP/ADV INFO
FOR LOAN IICQUISITIONS

PAGE 22

CJ')
CJ')

CD
o
N
>o«

INII
CODE

POOL

NMBR

LOAN ALTBRNATE BORROWER

NUMBER LN NUMBBR LAST NAMB
UNPAID *NEXT*

PR IN BALANCE PYMT

DUE

ESCROW

BIlL

SUSP

MIse
susP.
RAZ

SUSP

FORB

ESCR.Oll

AnV
CORI?
AnV HAL

I '''-'-'1'''"'

~

--

'-lT129~ ~5(r -:iJo '.-60 :00" 0" 00

QUERY NAME, RELACg<a SUSANX
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I""""""""---------~--------------------------------------

12/01/97 08,53,37 INVRSTOR 353 POOLS 216
UPB > ZERO, SUSP/ADV INFO

FOR LOAN ACQUISITIONS

PAGE: 24

e
e
l"
e
N
>o«

INV
CODE

POOL
NMBR

LOAN ALTERNATE BORROWER
NUMlIRR W NUMlIRR LAST NAME

UN~AID *NEXT-
PRIN BAI...ANCB PYMT

ESCROW
BAL

SUSP
MISC

SUSP
HAZ

SUSP
FORB

ESCROW
ADV

COl,P

ADV SAL

353
353

216
216

.3132941 40001205
3132958 40001213

SCHOTT

SCHMITZ
34,619,OB 121197
30,550.52 121597

,00
.00

,00

.00
,00
.00

,00
,00

,00

,00
.00
00

e

I

e

353 216 3135373 20615549 FRAZIER 22,758.90 121797 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

QUERY NAME, RBLACQ4CA SUSANK
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12/01/97 08:53:37 INVESTOR 353 POOLS 216
UPB ;:. ZERO; SUSP/ADV INFO

FOR LOAN ACQUISITIONS

PAGE 32

00
o
r-...
o
N
>o«

INV
CODE

POOL
NMllR

LOAN ALTERNATE BORROWER
NUMBER LN llIJMBER LAST Nl\Ml!

UNPAID .NEXT*
PRIN BALANCE PYMT

ESCROW
BAL

susp
MISC

SUSP
!lAZ

SUSP
FORB

ESCROW
ADV

CORP
JillV SAL

e

I
Ie,

L

BBNXERT 49,680.52 121097 .00 .00

"

QUERY NAME, RELACQ4CA SUSANK
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12/01/91 08,53,37 INVESTOR 35 J POOLS 216
UPS;> ZERO; SUSPjADV INFO

Felt LOAN ACQUIS1TIONS

PAGE 33

en
o
r--.
o
N
>o
<

1NV
CODE

POOL
NMBR

LOAN ALTEllNATE
NUMBER LN NUMBER

BOl<l<OWER

LAST NAME

UNPAlJ)
PRIN :BJ'U.ANCR

-"NEXT*
PYMT

DUE

ESCROW

BAL
'J:wf
~(.,

StlSP

MIse
strsp
HAZ

SUSP

FORB

ESCROW

ADV
CORP

ADV BAL

e

QUERY NAME, RELACQ4CA SUSANK
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~....._--------_......._----------'---'--------_._------_.

12/01/97 08,53,37 INVESTOR 353 POOLS 216
UPB > ZERO; SUSP/ADV INFO

FOR LOAN ACQUISITIONS

PAGE )il

e
~

l"
e
N
>o«

INV
CODE

POOL
NMBR

LOAN ALTERNATl! BORROWER
NUMBER LN NUMBBR LAST NAME

UNPAID "'NEXT*
PRIN BALANCE PY'MT

DUE

ESCROW

BAL

susp
MIse

susp
HAZ

susP
FORB

ESCROW
ADV

CORP

ADV HAL

3156320 40001159

.W·.i~---··--·----··.-(m

.0044,540.66 111097OSMl\N

882

40001153

216353

IREDACTED

-I
~.

e

QUERY NAME, RBLACQ4CA SUSANK
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12/01/97 08,53 Il'/VESTOR 353 POOLS 216
UPS> ZERO, SUSP/ADV INFO

FOR LOAN ACQUI S ITIONS

PAGE 36

N
"F"

f"
a
N
>o
<C

INV
CODB

POOL
NMBR

LOAN ALTERNATE BORROWER
NUMBER I.N NUMBER LAST NAMB

UNPAID *NEXT·
PRIN BALANCE PYMT

DUE

ESCROW

SAL

susp
MISC

SUSP
HAZ

SUS!'
FORB

ESCROW
ADV

COR]?
ADV SAL

-

22001042 RIEDL

QUERY NAME, RELACQ4CA
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SUSANK

.00 .00 .00 .00
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12/01/97 08,53,37 INVESTOR 353 POOLS 216
upa > ZERO; SUSP I AnV INFO

FOR LOAN ACQUISITIONS

PAGE: 42

co
~

I"
o
N
>o«

INV
CODE

POOL
NMBR

LOAN ALTERNATE

NUMBER LN NUMBER
BORROWER

LAST NAME

UNPAID
MIN BALANCB

"'NEXT*'
FYM"l'
DUE

ESCROW

SAL

,,.. .,.
e;c..

SUSP

MIse
SUSP

HAZ
SUSP

PORB

ESCROW

ADV
CORP
ADV SAL

e

40001I 72 RICHTER 49.217.40 010598 .00 .00 .00 .00 ---:o1l-~'--

QUERY NAME, RELACQ4CA SUSAN!(
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12/01/97 DS,S3,37 INVESTOR 353 POOLS 216
UPS > ZERO; SUS PI ADV !NFO

FOR LOAN ACQUISITIONS

PAGE 44

o
N

'"oN
5«

lIN
CODE

POOL
NMBR

LOAN ALTERNATE BORROWER
NUMBBR LN NUMBER LAST NAME

UNPAID *NEXT*
['RIN BALANCE PYMT

DUE

ESCROW

BAr.

SUSP
MIse

SUSP
HAZ

SUSP

FORB

ESCROW

ADV
CORP

AD'J BAL

e

353 216 3211703 22001019 GIACONIA 46,264.29 010398 .00 .00 . 00 .00 .00 .00

QUERY NAME, RELACQ4CA SUSANK
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12/01/91 08,53,31 INVESTOR 353 POOLS 216
UPII > ZERO; SUSP/ AnV INFO

FOR. LOAN l'CQtJISITIONS

PAGE 45

'C"""
N
......
o
N
>
C«

INV
CODE

POOL

NMllR
LOAN ALTERNATE BORROWER

NUMBER LN NU'MBER LAST NAME
UNPAID "'NEXT-

PRIN BAlANCE PYMT
ESCROW

BAL

SUSP

MIse

SUSP
!lAZ

SUSP
FORB

ESCROW
ADV

53.,00

eORP
A'Dv BAL

.00

QUERY NAME, RBIACQ4CA SUSANK
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12/01/9'l 08,53,37 INVESTOR 353 POOLS 216
UPB > ZERO; SUSP/ADV INFO

POP. LOAN ACQUISITIONS

PAGE 47

M
('oJ
I'
o
('oJ

>
C
c.1::

INV
CODE

353

353

POOL
IOOlR

216

216

LOAN ALTERNATE BORROWER
NUMBER LN NUMBER LAST NAME

3214814 40001202 WRIGflT
3214905 40001258 MCVEHIL

UNPAID *NEXT*
PRIN BALANCE PYMT

DUE

19,799. n 110997
44,602.74 112397

ESCROW
BAr.

.00

.00

SUSP
MIse

27.98
_00

SUS?
!IAZ

. 00

.00

SUS?
FORB

.00

ESCROW
ADV

. 00

CORP.
ADV BAL

_00

-L
._--------,_.._._------_.

QUERY NAME, RELACQ4CA SUSAN!<
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12/01/97 OS,S3,37 INVESTOR. 353 POOLS 216
UPB > ZERO;' SUSP!ADV INFO

FOR. LOAN ACQUISITIONS

PAGE 50

W
N
r-
o
N
>
C
<l

INV

CODE
POOL

NMBR.
LOAN ALTERNATB BaRR-OllER.

NUMBER LN NUMBER LAST NAME

UNPAID tlNEn-
PRIN BALANCE PYMT

DUE

ESCROW
SAL

susp
MIse

SUSP

HAZ
SUSP

FORB

ESCROW
lID'l

CORP
ADV' SAL

e

QUERY NAME, RELACQ4CA StJS.ANK
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12/01/97 OS,S3,37 INVES'I'OR 353 POOLS 216
UPB ;l> ZERO; SUSP / ADV INFO

FOR UlANI\CQUISITIONS

PAGE S2

co
N
r-..
o
N
>o
<

INV
CODE

POOL

NMBR

LOAN ALTERNATE BORROWER

NUMBER LN NUMBER LAST NAME
UNPAID *NEXT*

PR IN BALANCR PYMT
DUE

ESCROW

BAL

SUSP

MIse
SUS?

HAZ
SUS?
FORB

RSt.'ROW

ADV
COR]?

IlDV IlAL

3331ij23-40001212 KNIRR
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I
Z
W
C
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Zo
U



---------------~~-----------------~-

12/01/97 08,53,37 INVESTOR 353 POOLS 216
UPB :> ZERO; SUSP/ADV INFO

FOR LOAN ACQUISITIONS

PAGE S4

o
C'?
r-
o
C"Il
>
C
<{

INV
CODE

POOL
NMBR

LOAN ALTERNATE BORROWER
NUMIl~R LN NUMBER LAST NAMB

UNPAID *NEXT"
PRIN BALANCE PYMT

DUE

ESCROW
SAL

SUSP
MISC

SUSP
lIAZ

SUSP
FORI!

ESCROW
ADV

CORP
ADV BAL

40001457 TOHILL 112297 .00 .00

OtlERY NAME, RELACQ4CA S(JSANX
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12/01/97 DB, 53,)7 INVESTOR 353 POOLS 216
UPS :> ZEl'tO; SUSP/ ADV INFO

FOR LOAN ACQUISITIONS

PAGE 5S

,.....
('I)

I""
o
N

5«
INV
CODE

POOL
NMBR

LOAN ALTERNATE BORROWER
NUMBER LN NUMBER LAST >lAME

UNPAID -NEXT·
PUN BALANCE PYMT

DUE

ESCROW

BAL
SUSP
MIse

SUSl?
HAZ

SUSP
FORB

ESCROW

ADV
CORl?
ADV llAL

QUERY NAME, RBLACQ4CA

''--'-.''''-' II::.U

e

22001705 SMITH 20,762.08 122297 "00 .00

SUSANK

.00 .00 .0C! .00
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12/01/97 08,53,37 INVESTOR 353 POOLS 216
UPS > ZERO; SUSP! ADV INFO

FOR LOAN ACQUISITIONS

PAGE 60

CD
('I')
!'
o
N
>o
~

INY
CODE

POOL
NMllR

WAN ALT,ERNATB BORROWER
NUMlIER LN NUMlIER LAST NAME

UNPAID -NEXT*
PRIN BALANCE PYM'!

DUE

ESCROW
SAL

susr
MIse

SUSP

HAZ

SUSP

FORB

ESCROW
lillV

CORl?
lillv SAL

e
730.94 112797 .00

QUERY NAME, RELACQ4CA SUBANK
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12/01/97 08,53,37 INVESTOR 353 POOLS 216
UPB ::> ZERO; SUSP / ADV INFO

FOR LOAN ACQUISITIONS

PAGE 64

o
"<::t,....
o
N
>o«

IN\'
CODE

POOL
NMBR

LOAN ALTERNATE BORROllER

NUMBER LN NUMBER LAST NAME
UNPAID ·NEXT*

PRIN BALANCE PYMr
DUE

ESCROW

BAL
SUSP

MISC

susp
HAZ

SUSP

FORB

ESCROW

AD"
CORP

ADV BAll

-I
I
I
I

353 216 3433000 40001456 STARK 46,354.33 112697 000 000 000
353 216 3433018 40001479 VORBECK 54,630007 112597 000 .00 .00 .00 oOll 00

353 216 3433026 40001489 RADCLIFFE 49.843.35 112597 000 000 .00 .00 .00 .00

e

QUERY NAME, RELACQ4CA SUSANJ<

..J«
i=z
w
o
u..
Zo
U



12/01/97 08,53,37 INVESTOR 353 POOLS 216
UPB > ZERO, StJSP/AllV INFO

FOR LOAN ACQUISITIONS

PAGE 68

(of)

-.::t.....
o
N
>o«

INV
CODE

POOL
NMllR

LOAN ALTERNATE BORROWBR
NUMBER LN- NUMBBR LAST NAMB

UNPAID ""NEXT'"
P1UN BALANCE PYMT

DUE

BSCROW
BAL

susp
MIse

SUSP
HAZ

StJSP

FORB

ESCROW

AllV

CORP

ADV SAL

MULLANE 308.40 112097

QUERY NAME, RBLACQ4CA SUSANK
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-----------,_......__._--------------------_.._-----------------------

INVESTOR 353 POOLS 216
UP!! > ZERO; SUSP/ADV INFO

FOR LOAN ACQUISITIONS

o
o
Z
"11

C
mz.....
»r

12/01/97 OB,53,37

INV POOL
COllE NMBR

LOAN
NUMBER

~LTElU1ATE

LN NUMBl:R

BORROWER

LAST NAME

UNPAID

PRIN BALANCE

1tNEXT""
PYM'l'

DUE

ESCROW

SAL

susp
MISC

susp
HAZ

SUSP

FORB

ESCROW

ADV

PAGE 69

CORP

ADV B~L

353
353

216
216

3443397 4000149:l
3443405 4000l<91l

MADDOX
PARVIN

49.663. n 112797
19, B65. 50 112697

.00

.00
.00
.00

.CIO
• CIO

.00

.00
.00
.00

.00

.00

»c
<
'"o
"""".j::o,
.j::o,

•
QUERY NAME, RELACQ4 CA SUSAN!<



--------------------------------------------------

INVESTOR 353 POOLS 216

UPB > ZERO; SUSP/ADV INFO

FOR LOAN ACQUISITIONS

o
oz
"o
m
z
--I
»
r

12/01/97 08: 53,37

INV POOL

CODE NMBR
LOAN

NUMBER

ALTERNATE

LN NUMBER
BORROWER

LAST NAME

UNPAID

PRIN BALANCE

*NE:XT*
PYMT
DUE

ESCROW

BAL

SUSP

MISC

SUSP
HAZ

SUSP

FORB

ESCROW

llJJV

PAGE 71

CORP

ADV SAL

»
o
<
1\.:1
o
"-J
.t:o.
en

/--

e

3452141 210034163 LISLl! 010698

QUERY NAME, RELACQ4CA SUSANK



__________________ pe _

INVESTOR 353 POOLS 216
UPS;:> ZERO, SUSP/ADV INFO

FOR LOAN ACQUISITIONS

()

a
z
'TI

o
mz
-i
»r

12/01/97 OSoS3,37

INV POOL
CODE NMBR

LOAN
NUMBER

ALTER)lATE

LN NUMBER
BORROWER

LAST llAME
UNPAID

PRIN BALANCE
*NEXT'"

PYM'!'
DUE

ESCROW
SAL

SUSP
MISC

SUSP
I!AZ

SUSP
FORB

ESCROW

ADV

PAGE 74

CORP

lillV BAL

,iDO

. 00

.00

.00

.00

.00

.00

.00

00

.00

.00

.00

36,744.84 121097

44.127.23 122497

SANSMRAW

NA()EL3453768 3020212:2

'l 302Q2~__;;-,----.---.-

QUERY NAME, RELACQ4CA SUSANK
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INVESTOR 353 POOLS 216
UPB > ZERO; SUSP/ADV INFO

FOR LOAN ACQur S ITIONS

(')
o
Z
."

Cmz
-t
».-

12/01/9? oe,53,37

IN'! POOL LOAN ALTERNA1'E
CODE NMBR NUMBER:W NUHBER

BORROWER
LlIST NAME

UNPAID

PRIN BAI.ANCE

"*NEXT1t
PYMT

DUE

ESCROW

BAL
SUSP

MISC
SUSP

HAZ

SUSP

FORB

ESCROW

AnV

PAGE 76

CORP
l\DVBAL

~---~~"-,..,."." ..,,,

353 216 3454501 40001489 BOGLE 49,843.35 120497 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00
353 216 3454519 40001497 ALDAG 51,535.80 121197 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

~3
216 3454527 40001515 BEEBE 18,327.88 122797 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00

353 216 3454535 40001517 BROWN 34,904.S9 112797 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00
Redacted ]

35) 3454SsB ;fIfOIiI1gT4~RT 49,558.95 122797 . DO .00 .(10 .00 .00 .00
353 3454568 40001S42 JONES 34,659.21 120897 .00 .00 ,00 .00 .00 .00
353 3454576 40001567 OTTIGER 34,357.56 120897 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00
353 3454584 ·lOOO1587 CHASSELLS 29,798.23 120997 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00
353 3454600 40001595 ARMBRUSTE 24,645.45 110897 .00 24,930.26 .00 .00 .00 .00

e

»
~.....,
o
......
en
..J.

QUERY NAME, RELAC04CA SUSANK



INVESTOR 353 POOLS 216
UPB :> ZERO; SUSP!ADV INFO

FOR LOAN ACQUISITIONS
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o
Z
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o
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"""'!
»r

12/01/97 08,53,37

INV POOL

COllE NMBR
LOAN ~,LTERNATE

NUMBER 1.1< NUMBER

BORJWWER

LAST N1\Mll
UNPAID

PRIN BALANCE
'*NEXT*

PYMT

DUE

ESCROW
ML

SUSP

MISC
SUSP

HAZ
SUSP
FORB

ESCROW
AIJV

PAGE 11

CORP
ADV BAL

fREDACTED

I
/ Ie'E3 216 - 3610460 ;10402158 EDWARI)S 28.701.09 121097 .00 . 00 .00 .00 .00 .00
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QUERY NAME, RELACQ4CA SUSAN](



INVESTOR 353 POOLS 216
UPB :> ZERO; SUSP I ADV INFO

FOR LOAN ACQUISITIONS
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»
r

12/01/97 08:5:1:37

INV POOL

COOE NMBR

LOlIN
NUMBER

II •

ALTERNATE
!..N NUlffiRR

BORROWER
LAST NAME

UNPAIO

PRIN BAI..J\.NCE
*Ntl:XT;\

PYMT

ESCROW

IlAL

StlSP

MISC
SUSP
HAZ

SUSP
FORB

ESCROW
ADV

PAGE 82

CORP

AOV SAL

e
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QUERY NAME RELACQ4CA SUSANK



INVESTOR 353 POOLS 216
UPB > ZERO; SUSP/ADV INFO

FOR LOAN ACQUISITIONS

o
o
Z
."

C
mz
......
»
r

12/01/97 08,53 d 7

IN\! POOL

CODE NMBR

tJOAN ALTERNI\T&

NUMBER I.N NUMBER
BORROWER

LAST NAME
UNPAID

PRllil BJUJlNCE
"'NEXT'"

PYM'!'
DUE

ESCROW

BAL

SUSP

MIse
SUSP
HAZ

SUSP
FORB

ESCROW

ADV

PAGE 83

CORP

ADV SAL

»
o
<
t-,)
o.....,
01
00

353 216 3675857 '0001514 LAY 46,391.38 111597 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00
353 216 3675865 40001519 MUELL1~R 59.596.44 120497 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00_353 216 3675881 40001530 WEST 64.706.54 122797 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00
353 216 3675899 40001532 MEYER 49.843.35 120697 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00
353 216 3675907 4IOOO153e; MOUNT':;AST

.00
353 216 3675956 40001561 TEACUTTER 32.957.01 010698 .00
353 216 3675972 4000156~; SHANKS 21,051.33 011198 .00
353 216 3675980 4000157(l BROWN 64,562.99 121097 .00 .00
353 216 3676004 40001S70 HOLBERT 47.827.59 120897 .00 .(10
353 216 3676038 40001592 BARLEY 49.639.84 120997 .00 .00

QUERY NAME, RELACQ4CA SUSAlilK



------------,---_...-------------------------------------------------------

,00

CORP

ADV BAL

PAGE 84

.OQ

ESCROW

J\DV

,00

SUSP

FORB

,00

SUSP

IlAZ

SUSP

MISC

,00

ESCROW

BAL

.00

INVESTOR 353 POOLS 216

UPS > ZERO; SUSP/ ADV INFO

FOR LOAN ACQUISITIONS

INV POOL LOAN l\.LTERNATE BORROWER UNPAID ·j,NEXT~

CODE NMBR N1lMllER L.N N1lMllER LAST N~IE PRIN BALANCE PYMT

DUE

3676053 ,100016QO COTTEll 28.804,95 121197
3676061 40001602

12/01/97 08:53:37

o
o
Z
"11

o
mz
-I
»r

e-

e

QUERY NAME, RELACQ4CA SUSANJ<
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INVESTOR 353 POOLS 216
UPS,> ZERO, SUSP/ADV INFO

FOR LOAN ACQUISITIONS
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o
Z
'TI

omz.....
»r-

12/01/97 08,53,37

INV POOL

CODE NMllR
LOAN

NtlMBER

lILTSRNATE

f..N NUMBER

BORROWER

LAST t1A1-1E
UNPAID

PR IN BALANCE

'*NEXT1t
PYMT

DUE

ESCROW

J3AL

SUSI'
MIse

SUSP
HAZ

susp
FORB

ESCROW

AnY

PAGE 57

CORP
AnY BAL,

IREDACTEb--'------'----'-""~'-
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each word its everyday meaning and has construed the language of each request in light of the

scope of discovery pennitted by applicable rules.

4. Impac Mortgage objects to Plaintiffs' discovery requests to the extent that they

call for the production of privileged documents, attorney work product, documents protected by

Mo. R. Civ. P. 56.01, or documents otherwise protected under the Missouri discovery rules or

otherwise.

5. Impac Mortgage objects to Plaintiffs' discovery requests to the extent they seek to

impose an obligation upon Impac Mortgage to provide continuing responses in addition to and

other than as specifically required by Mo. R. Civ. P. 56.01.

6. Impac Mortgage objects to Plaintiffs' discovery requests to the extent they call for

legal conclusions.

7. Impac Mortgage objects to Plaintiffs' discovery requests to the extent that they

seek information or documents pertaining to any entity that serviced mortgage loans.

8. Impac Mortgage objects to Plaintiffs' discovery requests to the extent that they

seek infonnation or documents beyond the scope of the Court's Order dated July 10,2003, in

Couch v. SML Lending, Inc., Case No. CV lOOA332 Cc.

9. Impac Mortgage objects to Plaintiffs' discovery requests to the extent that they

call upon Impac Mortgage to produce "all" documents on the grounds that such demands are

overly broad, seek to impose an undue burden upon Impac Mortgage, and call for information

that is neither relevant nor reasonably calculated to lead to the discovery of admissible evidence.

10. lmpac Mortgage objects to Plaintiffs' discovery requests to the extent that they

seek confidential and proprietary business and financial infonnation of Impac Mortgage absent

an order of the Court sufficiently protecting the confidentiality of such information. Impac

Mortgage further objects to producing specific infonnation concerning its borrowers that is

protected on privacy grounds.
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11. As applicable, Impac Mortgage hereby incorporates by reference, as if fully set

forth herein, each of the foregoing general objections in its responses and specific objections to

each of the individual requests set forth below.

12. Impac Mortgage makes its objections and responses without waiver of and with

express reservation with respect to:

A. all questions as to competency, relevance, materiality, privilege, and admissibility

of the responses as evidence for any purpose in this proceeding (including the trial of this action)

and in any other matter or action;

B. the right to object to the use of any such responses on any ground in this

proceeding (including the trial of this action) and in any other action or matter;

C. the right to object to a request for further responses to these Requests on any

ground in this proceeding (including the trial of this action) and in any other actions or matter;

and

D. the right to review, correct, add to, supplement or clarify any of the responses at

any time.

Specific Objections and Responses to Interrogatories

45, For each of the loans made by Defendant Preferred Credit Corporation (as identified on
the schedule hereto attached), that was purchased or acquired by You, identify each
person, entity, trust and/or association known by you to have at any time acquired, held
and/or owned the loan and state the date(s) during which each such person, entity, trust
and/or association held and/or owned the loan.

Response: Subject to and without waiving the foregoing General Objections, and

pursuant to the Court's Order of July 10, 2003, in Couch v, SML Lending, Inc" Case No.

CV 100-4332 CC, Impac Mortgage states that it acquired the loans set forth on the

attached Exhibit A. Prior to their acquisition by Impac Mortgage, these loans were held

by Impac Funding Corporation. All of these loans were subsequently held by

M(ml~ag~e li.O,lGllngl, A.SSt;t C:of):)onl.tlo,n and then placed in a trust, as identified on the
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spreadsheet attached as Exhibit A. Certain of these loans were subsequently placed in

another trust, which is also identified on the attached spreadsheet.

46, If you are aware of any other second mortgage loans not on the attached schedule,
secured by Missouri residential real estate, made by Defendant Preferred Credit
Corporation on or after June 27, 1994, that was purchased or acquired by You, identify
each such loan by providing the name(s) and addressees) ofthe borrower(s), the loan
amount, the interest rate, the closing date, and further identify every person, entity, trust
and/or association known by you to have at any time purchased, acquired, received, held,
transferred, conveyed, serviced, and/or owned each such loan and state the date(s) on or
during which each such person, entity, trust and/or association purchased, acquired,
received, held, transferred, conveyed, serviced, and/or owned the loan.

Response: Subject to and without waiving the foregoing General Objections, Impac

Mortgage states that it has no database that can be searched by loan originator. Other

than a manual review of every file in its possession, Impac Mortgage has no means of

determining whether it possesses information concerning "other second mortgage loans

... secured by Missouri residential real estate, made by Defendant Preferred Credit

Corporation on or after June 27, 1994 ...".

47. For each of the loans made by Defendant Preferred Credit Corporation, that was
purchased or acquired by You, state or attach documents showing the total amount of
interest paid by the borrower(s) each year.

Response: Impac Mortgage incorporates by reference its General Objections.

Interrogatory no. 47 is premature and beyond the scope of permissible discovery and is

therefore overly broad and unduly burdensome,

48. For each of the loans made by Defendant Prefened Credit Corporation, that was
purchased or acquired by You, state or attach documents showing the total amount of
T"'\nnf"'in".:11 nQl't4' "h.." 1-h.a. hArrn.,ue::.~(C'\ ~':J0h 'l.n:::I>".)'t'"
PL!.J.J.VLl:-'\.-l.J. PUlU V) I,.J...! ...... vVJ,..!.vyvv.t.\~J ,""UvU )\"IU1-.

Response: Impac Mortgage incorporates by reference its General Objections,

Interrogatory no. 48 is premature and beyond the scope of permissible discovery and is

therefore overly broad and unduly burdensome.
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49. For each of the loans made by Defendant Preferred Credit Corporation, that was
purchased or acquired by You, state or attach documents showing the type and total
amount of charges other than interest and principal paid by the borrower(s) each year.

Response: Impac Mortgage incorporates by reference its General Objections,

Interrogatory no. 49 is premature and beyond the scope of permissible discovery and is

therefore overly broad and unduly burdensome.

50. State whether each of the loans made by Defendant Preferred Credit Corporation, that
was purchased or acquired by You, are first or second mortgage loans and describe the
nature of the real estate that secures each loan as either residential or commercial

Response: Impac Mortgage incorporates by reference its General Objections.

Interrogatory no. 50 is premature and beyond the scope of permissible discovery and is

therefore overly broad and unduly burdensome.

51. State whether each of the loans made by Defendant Preferred Credit Corporation, that
was purchased or acquired by You, are high cost loans as defined by 15 U.S.c.
§ 1602(aa).

Response: Impac Mortgage incorporates by reference its General Objections.

Interrogatory no. 51 is premature and beyond the scope of permissible discovery and is

therefore overly broad and unduly burdensome.

52. Identify all of the entities having custody of any documents pertaining to each of the
loans made by Defendant Preferred Credit Corporation, that was purchased or acquired
by You, and state the dates during which each such entity acted as custodian.

Response: Impac Mortgage incorporates by reference its General Objections.

Interrogatory no. 52 is premature and beyond the scope of pem1issible discovery and is

therefore overly broad and unduly burdensome.
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53, State whether any of the loans made by Defendant Preferred Credit Corporation, that was
purchased or acquired by You, is or ever has been the subject of foreclosure and, if so,
identify the loan(s), state the date(s) of foreclosure, and identify the forum in which each
action was filed.

Response: Impac Mortgage incorporates by reference its General Objections.

Interrogatory no. 53 is premature and beyond the scope of permissible discovery and is

therefore overly broad and unduly burdensome.

54. State whether any of the loans made by Defendant Preferred Credit Corporation, that was
purchased or acquired by You, was ever the subject of a bap..kruptcy proceeding and, if
so, identify the loan(s), state the date(s) on which each such bankruptcy proceeding
commenced, and identify the court(s) and case number(s) for each.

Response: Impac Mortgage incorporates by reference its General Objections.

Interrogatory no. 54 is premature and beyond the scope of permissible discovery and is

therefore overly broad and unduly burdensome.

55, State whether any of the loans made by Defendant Preferred Credit Corporation, that was
purchased or acquired by You, was conveyed for recovery or liquidated and identify any
amounts recovered.

Response: Impac Mortgage incorporates by reference its General Objections.

Interrogatory no. 55 is premature and beyond the scope of permissible discovery and is

therefore overly broad and unduly burdensome.

Specific Objections and Responses to Requests for Production

45. Copies of the IRS Form 1098's, annual interest statements and/or other documents that
show the total amount of principal, interest, and other charges (including any liquidation
proceeds) paid or received to date for each of the loans made by Defendant Preferred
Credit Corporation that was purchased or acquired by You.

Response: Impac Mortgage incorporates by reference its General Objections. Request

no. 45 is premature and beyond the scope of permissible discovery and is therefore overly

broad and unduly burdensome.
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46. Copies of any loan files for each of the loans made by Defendant Preferred Credit
Corporation that was purchased or acquired by You.

Response: Impac Mortgage incorporates by reference its General Objections. Request

no. 46 is premature and beyond the scope of permissible discovery and is therefore overly

broad and unduly burdensome.

47. Copies of any agreements entered into between and/or among You and the trusts,
trustees, and any person or entity that liquidated any of the loans made by Defendant
Preferred Credit Corporation that was purchased or acquired by You.

Response: Impac Mortgage incorporates by reference its General Objections. Request

no. 47 is premature and beyond the scope of permissible discovery and is therefore overly

broad and unduly burdensome.

IMPAC MORTGAGE HOLDINGS, INC.

As to objections:

Barry L. Pickens MO # 43379
1000 Walnut Street, Suite 1400
Kansas City, MO 64106
(816) 474-8100
(816) 474-3216 (fax)

and:

R. Bruce Allensworth
KIRKPATRICK & LOCKHART LLP
75 State Street
Boston, MA 02109
(617) 261-3100
(617) 261-3175 (fax)
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Dated: September 9, 2003

Daniel J. Tobin
Sean R. Sullivan
Jennifer L. Hieb
KIRKPATRICK & LOCKHART LLP
1800 Massachusetts Avenue, N.W,
Washington, D.C. 20036
(202) 778-9000
(202) 778-9100 (fax)

ATTORNEYS FOR DEFENDANT IMPAC MORTGAGE
HOLDINGS, INC.
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STATE OF CALIFORNIA

COUNTY OF ORANGE

SWORN SIGNATURE

)
) ss.

Richard Johnson hereby certifies that he is Treasurer and Executive Vice President of

Impac Mortgage Holdings, Inc. ("Impac Mortgage"), and that he understands that the above

interrogatories are answered on behalf of and for Impac Mortgage and that the amended answers

given to the above and foregoing interrogatories are true and correct to the best of his

information and belief

Date: ~~Name: Rich~
Title: Treasurer and Executive Vice President of

Impac Mortgage Holdings, Inc.

The foregoing Answers to Interrogatories were subscribed and sworn to before me this

gfl"- day of¥. ,2003.

. ry Public in and for the County and State above
itten

My Commission Expires: Ii.:u ·~
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Certificate of Service

I hereby certify that, on this 9th day of September, 2003, the foregoing was served by
first-class maii, postage prepaid, upon:

Kip D. Richards, Esq.
Walters, Bender, Strohbehn & Vaughan, PC
2500 City Center Square
1i h and Baltimore
P.O. Box 26188
Kansas City, MO 64196

Mark A. Olthoff
Shughart Thomson & Kilroy, P.C.
Twelve Wyandotte Plaza
120 W. lih Street
Kansas City, Missouri 64105

Patrick J. McLaughlin
Dorsey & Whitney LLP
220 South Sixth Street
Minneapolis, Minnesota 55402

10

Gary Lawson, Esq.
Lawson & Fields, PC
5323 Spring Valley Road
Dallas, TX 75240

Leslie A. Greathouse
Kutak Rock, LLP
444 W. 4ih St
Suite 200, Valencia Place
Kansas City, MO 64112-1914

Daniel 1. Tobin
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1I",rJ AC MORTGAGE HOLDINGS, INC.,

ID Name ······firstTrUstNclm~ •...... / ..... .i
S~cQndTl"U$tName

6 Armstrad IMPAC CMB TRUST SERIES 1999-1 IMPAC CMB TRUST SERIES 2001-4
9 Avotte lMPAC CMB TRUST SERIES 1999-1
12 Baird IMPAC CMB TRUST SERIES 1999-1 IMPAC CMB TRUST SERIES 2001-4
55 ICarroll IMPAC CMB TRUST SERIES 1999-1 I
81 Cox IMPAC CMB TRUST SERIES 1999-1 IMPAC CMB TRUST SERIES 2001-4
89 Danchus IMPAC CMB TRUST SERIES 1999-1
102 Eads IMPAC CMB TRUST SERIES 2000-1
107 Eilers IMPAC CMB I RUST SERIES 1999-1
114 Ertl IMPAC CMB TRUS! SERIES 1999-1 IMPAC CMB TRUST SERIES 2001-4
116 Ewart IMPAC CMB TRUST SERIES 1999-1
118 Favrow IMPAC CMB TRUST SERIES 1999-1

v' 128 Frazier oV~ IMPAC CMB TRUST SERIES 2000-2
148 Guvre IMPAC CMB TRUST SERIES 1999-1
150 Hall IMPAC CMB TRUST SERIES 1999~1 IMPAC CMB TRUST SERIES 2001 ~4

159 Harrell IMPAC CMB TRUST SERIES 1999-1 IMPAC CMB TRUST SERIES 2001-4
173 Hilliard IMPAC CMB TRUST SERIES 1999-1 IMPAC CMB TRUST SERIES 2001-4
179 Hudson fMPAC CMB TRUST SERIES 1999-1 IMPAC CMB TRUST SERIES 2001-4
191 Johnson IMPAC CMB TRUST SERIES 1999-1 IMPAC CMB TRUST SERIES 2001-4
213 Lattrace IMPAC CMB TRUST SERIES 1999-1 lMPAC CMB TRUST SERIES 2001-4
233 Lvnch IMPAC CMB TRUST SERIES 1999-1
261 Miller IMPAC CMB TRUST SERIES 1999-1
263 Miller IMPAC CMB TRUST SERIES 1999-1 IMPAC CMB TRUST SERIES 2001-4
268 Moman IMPAC CMB TRUST SERIES 1999-1
270 Morris IMPAC CMB TRUST SERIES 1999-1
303 Parvin, Jr. IMPAC CMB TRUST SERIES 2000-1 IMPAC CMB TRUST SERIES 2003-5
348 Rockett lMPAC CMB TRUST SERIES 2000-2
412 Uminn IMPAC CMB TRUST SERIES 1999-1 IMPAC CMB TRUST SERIES 2001-4
436 Wensel IMPAC CMB TRUST SERIES 1999-1 IMPAC CMB TRUST SERIES 2001-4
448 Wineaar IMPAC CMB TRUS I SERiES 1999-1
450 Woodward IMPAC CMB TRUST SERiES 1999-1 IMPAC CMB TRUST SERIES 2002-1
452 Worthy IMPAC CMB TRUST SERIES 1999-2 IMPAC CMB TRUST SERIES 2003-5
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I may make a full prepayment or a partial prepayment without paying any penalty. The Note Holder 
will use all of my prepayments to reduce the amount of principal that lowe under this Note. If I make a 
partial prepayment, there will be no delays in the due dates or changes in the amounts of my monthly 
payments unless the Note Holder agrees in writing to those delays or changes. I may make a full prepayment 
at any time. If I choose to make a partial prepayment, the Note Holder may require me to make the 
prepayment on the same day that one of my monthly payments is due. The Note Holder may also require 
that the amount of my partial prepayment be equal to the amount of principal that would have been part of 
my next one or more monthly payments. 
7. BORROWER'S WAIVER 

I waive my rights to require the Note Holder to do certain things. Those things are: (A) to demand 
payment of amounts due (known as "presentment"); (B) to give notice that amounts due have not been paid 
(knownoas "notice of dishonor"); (C) to obtain an official certification of nonpayment (known as a "protest"). 
Anyone else who agrees to keep the promises made in this Note, or who agrees to make payments to the Note 
Holder if I fail to keep my promises under this Note, or who signs this Note to transfer it to someone else also 
waives these rights. These persons are known as "guarantors, sureties and endorsers." 
8. GIVING OF NOTICES 

Ar.y notice that must be given to me under this Note will be given by delivering it or by mailing it by 
certified mail addressed to me at the Property Address above. A notice will be delivered or mailed to me at 
a different address if I give the Note Holder a notice of my different address. 

Any notice that must be given to the Note Holder under this Note will be given by mailing it by certified 
mail to the Note Holder at the address stated in Section 3 above. A notice will be mailed to the Note Holder 
at a di C"erent address if I am given a notice of that different address. 
9. Rl.3PONSIDILITY OF PERSONS UNDER THIS NOTE 

If more than one person signs this Note, each of us is fully and personally obligated to pay the full 
amount owed and to keep all of the promises made in this Note. Any guarantor, surety, or endorser of this 
Note (as described in Section 7 above) is also obligated to do these things. The Note Holder may enforce its 
rights under this Note against each of us individually or against all of us together. This means that anyone 
of us may be required to pay all of the amounts owed under this Note. Any person who takes over my rights 
or obligations under this Note will have all of my rights and must keep all of my promises made in this Note. 
Any person who takes over the rights or obligations of a guarantor, surety, or endorser of this Note (as 
described in Section 7 above) is also obligated to keep all of the promises made in this Note. 

(Seal) 

(L.C=- ,;yroJ~ 
Borrower 

(Seal) 
Borrower 

(Seal) 
Borrower 

MISSOURI- SECOND MORTGAGE - 1180 - F'NIlAIF1ILM:C UNIFORM INSTRUMENT 
ICC12855.PClr2-9S Page 2of2 

N Borrower 

(Seal) 
Borrower 

(Seal) 
Borrower 

(Sign Original Only) 

Certified to be a true, correct and 
complete copy of the original. 

Initials '>.. /" 

Form 3926 

AMC0139 












































































































































































































































































